Stock code: 6024

2018
ANNUAL REPORT
Capital Futures Corp.

Notice to readers
This English-version annual report is a summary translation of
the Chinese version and is not an official document of the
shareholders’ meeting. If there is any discrepancy between the
English and Chinese versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.

Annual report is available at: http://mops.twse.com.tw
Company Website: https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw
Printed on April 10th, 2019

I. Spokesperson:
Name: Lee, Wen Chu
Title: President
TEL: (02)2700-2888
Email Address: marklee@futures.capital.com.tw
II. Deputy Spokesperson:
Name: Chen, Wen Tsay
Title: Senior Executive Vice President
TEL: (02)2700-2888
Email Address: dan_chen@futures.capital.com.tw
III. Address and telephone number of the Head Office and branches:
Company Name

Address

TEL

Head Office

B1, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Road. Da'an
Dist., Taipei City, R.O.C

(02)2700-2888

Taichung Office

3F.-6, No.633, Sec. 2, Taiwan Blvd., Xitun
Dist., Taichung City, R.O.C

(04)2319-9909

IV. Name, address, website and contact number of share administration agent
Name: Capital Securities Corp.
Address: B2., No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Rord. Da'an Dist., Taipei City,
R.O.C
TEL: (02)2703-5000
Website: www.capital.com.tw
V. Auditor and auditor's firm of the latest audited financial report
Name of CPA: Feng-Hui Lee, Tan-Tan Chung
Auditor’s Firm: KPMG Certified Public Accountants
Address: 68F., No.7, Sec. 5, Xinyi Rd., Xinyi Dist., Taipei City, R.O.C
TEL: (02)8101-6666
Website: www.kpmg.com
VI. Name of overseas exchange where securities are listed, and the methods for
inquiring the foreign-listed securities: None.
VII. Company Website:https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw

Table of contents
I. Letter to shareholders ................................................................................. 1
II. Company Profile......................................................................................... 4
2.1 Date of incorporation .................................................................................. 4
2.2 Company History ........................................................................................ 4
2.3 Capital Futures Awards ............................................................................... 5
III. Corporate Governance Report ................................................................ 7
3.1 Organization ................................................................................................ 7
3.2 Background information of Directors, Supervisors, President, Vice
Presidents, Assistant Vice Presidents and heads of various
departments and branches ........................................................................... 9
3.3 Corporate Governance................................................................................. 26
3.4 Disclosure of CPA’s remuneration ............................................................. 78
3.5 Change of CPA ............................................................................................ 78
3.6 Disclosure of any of the Company’s Chairman, President, or
managers involved in financial or accounting affairs being employed
by the auditor’s firm or any of its affiliated company ............................... 78
3.7 Transfer and pledge of shares by Directors, Supervisors, Managers
and Major shareholders ............................................................................... 78
3.8 Relationships among the Company’s top 10 shareholders including
spouses, second degree relatives or closer .................................................. 80
3.9 Investments jointly held by The Company, The Company’s directors,
managers and enterprises directly or indirectly controlled by The
Company. Calculate shareholding in aggregate of the above parties ......... 81
IV. Funding Status .......................................................................................... 82
4.1 Capital and outstanding shares .................................................................... 82
4.2 Disclosure relating to corporate bonds, preference shares, depository
receipts and employee stock warrants ......................................................... 86
4.3 Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and
Acquisitions ................................................................................................. 86
4.4 Financing Plans and Implementation .......................................................... 86
V. Operational Highlights............................................................................... 87
5.1 Content of business ..................................................................................... 87
5.2 Market and sales overview .......................................................................... 97

5.3 Employee information ................................................................................. 100
5.4 Contribution to Environmental Protection .................................................. 100
5.5 Employer and employee relationships ........................................................ 101
5.6 Major contracts ............................................................................................ 106
VI. Financial summary ................................................................................... 110
6.1 Summary of balance sheet and comprehensive income statement for
the last 5 years ............................................................................................. 110
6.2 Financial analysis for the previous 5 years ............................................... 114
6.3 Audit report on the most recent year financial statement by the audit
committee .................................................................................................... 117
6.4 Standalone financial statements audited & certified by Accountants
in the most recent years ............................................................................... 117
6.5 Financial insolvency incidents encountered by the Company and
affiliate companies in the last year, up till the publication date of this
annual report ................................................................................................ 117
VII. Review of Financial Position, Business Performance and Risk
Issues…………………………………………………………………… 194
7.1 Financial status…………………………………………………………... 194
7.2 Financial performance................................................................................ 194
7.3 Cash flow…………………………………………………………………. 195
7.4 Impacts of major capital expenditures in the last year to financial performance
................................................................................................................. ....195
7.5 Causes of profit or loss incurred on investments in the last year, and any
improvement or investment planned for the next year ............................... 195
7.6 Analysis of Risk Management…………………………………………….195
7.7 Other material issues ................................................................................... 210
VIII. Special Remarks..................................................................................... 211
8.1 Information of affiliated companies…………………………………….... 211
8.2 Private placement of securities in the last year up till the publication date
of this annual report…………………………………………...………….. 213
8.3 Holding or disposal of the Company's shares by subsidiaries in the last
financial year, up till the publication date of this annual report ................ 213
8.4 Other supplementary information…………………………………………213
8.5 Occurrences of events defined under Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 2, Article
36 of the Securities and Exchange Act in the latest year up till the publishing
date of this annual report that significantly impacted shareholders’ equity or
security prices……………………………………………………………..213

I. Letter to shareholders
1.1 Overview of Operating Performance in 2018
In 2018, with the efforts from whole employees of Capital Futures (“the Company”),
the annual trading volume of domestic futures business has reached 6.97% market share
and 42.93 million lots which increased by 28% from the previous year. The Company has
reached 22.5% market share in overseas futures market, and the annual trading volume
was 9.6 million lots which increased by 27.6% from the previous year. This outstanding
performance was mainly benefited from obtaining memberships from several exchanges,
trading through Direct Market Access (DMA), and holding marketing activities
consequently. In terms of FX trading business, it also contributes profit to the Company,
the annual trading volume was 0.22 million lots which increased by 39% from the previous
year.
The consolidated revenues and net income before tax of the Company in 2018
was NT$2,849 million and NT$954 million which increased by 6.47% and 15.12%
from the previous year respectively. The Company’s profit grew up continuously, the
consolidated after-tax net income was NT$838 million which increased by 14.27% from the
last year and hit the record high since from established. Obviously, every business line of
the Company keeps growing up in 2018, especially on domestic stock futures, overseas
futures and FX trading business, which all contributed a lot to revenues. During the last
year, futures market became more active since the high volatility of financial market,
which has driven the revenues of brokerage sales business, FX trading business and
proprietary trading business increased under the fluctuation investment environment.
Moreover, in July of 2018, the Company’s stock was constituted in the TWSE Corporate
Governance 100 index who is the only FCM in Taiwan to be listed on it. It is also a
positive acknowledgement of the Company's operation and management.
As a leader in the field of Fintech development, the Company not only captures
market trends in an efficiency way, but also constructs a self-owned IT system actively
with taking innovation differences as the DNA. The Capital view is the exclusive live
show program of the Company which could lead in analyzing global investment products
and opportunities through researching fundamental financial information and market
analysis to provide professional real-time investment suggestions. In the next years, the
Company is going to expand the business landscape, such as looking for the suitable
merger and acquisition targets from domestic and abroad, and setting up futures
companies in China, Singapore…etc. if possible. Besides, the Company would also
strengthen the leverage trading and asset management business to earn absolute
return. Furthermore, the Company aims to operate diversified business and profit
diversification for building a multi-engine profit model, and the overall performance of the
Company will continue to challenge its new highs.
Additionally, the Company sets 7 Board of Directors (including 3 independent
Directors) who are all with the profession of operating management, financial &
accounting, law professional, international market and leadership strategy. Through
ample financial experience and various operating expertise from Directors who are
with diversified background, the Company could implement the operation supervision
and management for pushing up the Company’s whole development strategy, business
performance, business operating improvement, and right protection of investors. The
Company will continue to implement the service entity economy, strengthen corporate
governance, fully safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders, and comply with the
rigorous internal control system. For
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pursuing long-term profit stability, the Company not only constructs a safe investment
environment, but also fulfills the corporate social responsibility to become a financial
company which could do all the best to customers.

1.2 2018 income, expense, and profitability are summarized:
Unit: NT$ thousand

Item

Income
Expenses
Non-operating income and
expenses
Net income before income tax
Net income
Return on Equity (%)
Net profit margin (%)
Return on Asset (%)
Earnings per share（dollar）

2018
2,849,492
2,321,961

2017
2,676,371
2,164,286

427,445

317,442

954,976
838,110
17.24%
29.41%
2.27%
4.73

829,527
733,431
18.67%
27.40%
2.43%
4.25

1.3 The Business Plan of 2019
Looking ahead to 2019, although the external competition environment and the related
regulatory framework remains severe, such as the anti-money laundering provisions become
more rigorous; however, the overall operating environment of the futures industry will grow
up continuously due to the enhancement in price fluctuations of the financial market. The
business plan and development strategy of the Company is as following:
1. To richly cultivate and duplicate the overseas market business: The Company will
develop the greater China market with the DMA advantages of overseas futures products,
such as CME Group、HK、SGX、Euronext、EUREX、ICE…etc.
2. To enhance the professional services of IB (introducing brokerage) business in
domestic and foreign futures and ETF hedging business which protect customers’ asset
and increase sales profit.
3. The Company expands the leveraged trading and derivative business to provide the
hedge solutions for listing companies, small and medium enterprises for creating new
source of income.
4. To enhance the trading performance of our futures and securities proprietary team
continuously and also recruit outstanding traders who are with the profession of spread
strategy, high-frequency trading, market making and operating ability for raising the
profit and diversifying the market risk.
5. To develop the advantages of our real-time system and popularize the hedge module for
expanding domestic/ foreign institutional customers aggressively and focus on raising the
trading volume and customer margin.
6. To keep the leading advantages in innovation, the Company upgraded new functions
for our global trading platform (includes mobile platform) to provide speedy and safe
investment environment.
7. Continue to develop our Hong Kong subsidy as a global trading center for providing the
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turnkey trading system in the global market, combines the information advantage for
supporting the trading platform of B2B and B2C which is highly relied on trading
companies and Chinese Private Equity Fund.
8. To recruit professional consultants who are focused on futures and securities area, and
combine with promoting Hong Kong Type 4 and 5 business licenses.
9. The Company plans to establish a Futures Company in China (joint venture or solelyinvested) which combined with the comprehensive effect of Shanghai and Chengdu
subsidiaries.
10. The innovated live program of “Capital View” mainly provides exclusive financial
overview points and investment analysis would let customer wins at the starting point.
11. To establish a futures investment trust company and also combine Hong Kong Type 9
business license for developing the asset management business.
12. To evaluate participating “Regulatory Sandbox” and try out various financial innovation
business.
13. To connect with social medium and develop platform subscription economy for
providing global financial information and professional research suggestions which
towards to member management and community business.
14. Big data center will be established for precision marketing with information integration
and customer classification management to enhance customer satisfaction.
15. To strength the corporate governance implement, the Company would hold training
courses regarding to internal control, information system safety and money
laundering….etc. Also, above training courses will be considered with risk management
control.

Capital Futures Corp.
Sun, Tien-Shan
Chairman
Lee, Wen-Chu
President
Lin, Li-Juan
Accounting manager
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II. Company Profile
2.1 Date of incorporation: February 26th, 1997.
Head Office:
Address: B1, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Road. Da'an Dist., Taipei City, R.O.C.
TEL:(02)2700-2888
Taichung Branch:
Address: 3F.-6, No.633, Sec. 2, Taiwan Blvd., Xitun Dist., Taichung City , R.O.C.
TEL:(04)2319-9909

2.2 Company history:
Year

Major events

1997

The Capital Futures Brokerage Crop. was established on February
26th.Became a public company in November.

1998
2000

Approved as a General Clearing Member of Taiwan Futures Exchange in
March and started to provide the clearing services for concurrent FCM and the
introducing Brokers.
Taichung Brach of the Company was established in December.。

2003

Acquired the Futures Advisory License in February.

2003

Started the proprietary trading business in December and changed the name of
the Company to “Capital Futures Crop.” in December.
Reinvested a subsidiary named Capital Managed Futures Business Corp. in
May, providing the discretionary services.
Acquired the qualification of Taiwan Futures Exchange for Market Maker
business in July.
The stocks of the company traded on the emerging market, starting from May
15th.
Approved to promote the futures advisory service and training in Mainland
China in September.
The stocks of the Company listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market
(over-the-counter) on April 27th.
Approved to provide the service of securities introducing brokerage and to
operate concurrently managed futures business in August.
The head office moved to current address “B1, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S.
Road. Da'an Dist., Taipei City” in July.
Approved to reinvest the CSC Futures (Hong Kong) Ltd. in August.

2004
2006
2008
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2012

2014

Acquired the certification of CG6007 corporate governance from Taiwan
Corporate governance association in September.
Acquired the certification of BS10012 personal information protection from
British Standard Institution in February.
Hong Kong subsidiary acquired the qualification of stock option market maker
of HKEX in April.
Acquired the qualification of market maker of EUREX in 15th May.

2014

Approved the securities investment and consulting business in August.

2014

Approved to reinvest Capital International Technology Corp. and Capital True
Partner Technology (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. in November.

2013
2014
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2015

Approved the securities proprietary trading business in September.

2015

Approved to invest Capital True Partner Advisor (HK) with acquiring its HK
Type 9 License for Asset Management Business in July.
CSC Futures (HK) was approved to engage in securities and futures business in
China since February.
Approved to concurrently operate a leverage transaction merchant in August.

2016
2016
2016
2016
2017

The first leverage transaction merchant approved by the Central Bank to
conduct business of foreign exchange margin trading in December.
Capital International Technology Corp. was approved to establish Capital
Futures Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. in Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone in
December.
The stocks of the company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation
(TWSE) on October 16th.

2.3 Capital Futures Awards
Date
1997.07

Award –Approval
Organization

Awards

Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.
Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.
Securities & Futures Institute
of R.O.C.
General Chamber of
Commerce of R.O.C.
Taiwan Futures Exchange

The 4th-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Securities
lndustry Talent to Chairman Tim Sun.
The 6th-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Futures
Industry Talent to Vice President Tsai Jen-Tsuen.
The 8th-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding
Entrepreneurial Leader to Chairman Tim Sun.
The Golden Merchant Award to Chairman Tim Sun.

The 1st FCM in Taiwan approved as a SGX-DT Trading Member
(Agency and Proprietary).

2010.07

Singapore Exchange
Derivatives Trading Limited
(SGX-DT)
Chinese National Futures
Association
Taiwan Futures Exchange

2010.10

CME Group

2001.07
2005.07
2005.11
2009.03
2009.07
2009.07
2009.08

2010.06

2011.03
2011.03
2011.06
2011.06
2011.07
2011.07

Awarded for high trading volume FCM in Taiwan's futures
market in 2008.
Securities & Futures Institute The 10th-term Golden Goblet Company Award for Outstanding
of R.O.C.
Finance Innovation.
Taiwan Futures Exchange
The 4th-term Board of Directors--Chairman Tim Sun.

Convener of Standing Supervisors of CNFA--Chairman Tim Sun.
The 5th-term Board of Supervisors--Chairman Tim Sun.

The 1st FCM in Taiwan certified by the CME group for Direct
Market Access (DMA).
CME Group--CME
The 1st FCM in Taiwan approved as a CME Rule 106.H. Trading
Member Firm.
CME Group--CBOT
The 1st FCM in Taiwan approve as a CBOT Rule 106.R. Trading
Member Firm (Transferred to Rule 106.H).
CME Group--COMEX
The 1st FCM in Taiwan approved as a COMEX Rule 106.J.
Member Firm.
CME Group--NYMEX
The 1st FCM in Taiwan approved as a NYMEX Rule 106.J.
Member Firm.
Securities & Futures Institute The 11th-term Golden Goblet Award for Special Contribution to
of R.O.C.
Independent Director Chao Chuan Chu.
Securities & Futures Institute The 11th-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding
of R.O.C.
Entrepreneurial Leader to President Alex Chia.
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2011.07

2014.10

NYSE Euronext--NYSE Liffe The 1st FCM in Taiwan approved as a Member of NYSE
Euronext--NYSE Liffe in London and Paris Markets.
Taiwan Futures Exchange
Award for the top trading volume (average branch volume) of the
stock futures competition in September.
CME Group--Electronic
The 1st FCM in Asia offers B to C options E-trading of the CME
Transaction to Option
Group.
Commodities
Eurex
Approved as a Market Participant (NCM) of Eurex and developed
the Direct Market Access (DMA).
General Chamber of
The Golden Merchant Award to President Chia, Chung-Tao.
Commerce of R.O.C.
ICE Futures US
Approved as an Energy Member Firm of ICE Futures US and set
up the Direct Market Access (DMA).
Securities & Futures Institute The 12th-term Golden Goblet Company Award for Outstanding
of R.O.C.
Finance Innovation.
Securities & Futures Institute The 12th-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Futures
of R.O.C.
Industry. Talent to Executive Vice President Chen, Wen-Tasy.
Futures & Options World
FOW Awards for Asia 2013--NON-BANK FCM OF THE
YEAR.
Taiwan Futures Exchange
Eurex/TAIFEX Link Award for Market Making Price Quoting of
Local FCMs.
ICE Futures Europe
Approved as a Market Participant and developed the DMA.

2014.11

Taiwan Futures Exchange

Promotional Sales Award of Eurex/TAIFEX Linked Products.

2015.02

Singapore Exchange
Derivatives Trading Limited
(SGX-DT)
SGX-DT

Taiwan FCM of Top-one trading volume in SGX-DT in 2014.

2011.10
2012.07

2012.07
2012.11
2012.12
2013.08
2013.08
2013.08
2014.05

2015.03
2015.11
2016.10
2016.11
2017.11
2017.11

The 2014 Volume Growth Award for CSC Futures (HK).

Securities & Futures Institute The 13th Golden Goblet Company Award for Special Salary
of R.O.C.
Raise.
Taiwan Futures Exchange
Top-One Performance in Market Making of RMB Currency
Options.
HKEX 3rd Global Derivatives Top-One Performance in Market Making of RMB Currency
Real-Trading Competition
Options. The Excellent FCM of HKEX.
General Chamber of
The Golden Merchant Award to President Lee, Wen-Chu.
Commerce of R.O.C.
Securities & Futures Institute The 14th-term Golden Goblet Award for Outstanding Futures
of R.O.C.
Industry. Talent to Executive Vice President Mao, Jen-Hua.
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III. Corporate Governance Report
3.1 Organization

3.1.1 Organization Chart

Shareholders’
Meeting

Chairman

Administration Department

Research & Development Department
Dealing & Settlement Department
Managed Futures Department
Securities Advisory Department

Futures Advisory Futures Department
Foreign Institutional Clients Dept.

Domestic Institutional Clients Dept.
Leverage Transaction Department
Derivatives Department

Securities Proprietary Trading Dept.
Proprietary Trading Department

Introducing Broker Sales Department
Direct Sales Department
Taichung Branch
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Remuneration
Committee
Risk Management
Department

Audit Committee
Board of
Directors
Internal Auditing
Department

Legal Compliance
Department

President

3.1.2 Major Corporate Functions
Department
Internal auditing
department
Legal Compliance
department
Risk management
department
Administration
department
Dealing & Settlement
Department
Research &
Development
Department
Direct sales
Department
Introducing and
Brokerage Department
Domestic Institutional
Clients Department
Foreign Institutional
Clients Department
Proprietary Trading
Department.
Securities Proprietary
Trading Department
Derivatives
Department
Leverage Transaction
Department
Futures Advisory
Department
Securities Advisory
Department
Managed Futures
Department
Taichung Branch

Functions
To identify deficiencies in the internal control system, assess the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and provide appropriate
improvement suggestions.
Responsible for planning, managing and executing of legal compliance
affairs of the Company.
Responsible for maintaining and monitoring the risk analysis,
identification, control and response of daily sales activities.
Responsible for managing the relevant affairs of financial and
accounting, general matters, administration and internet information.
Responsible for processing the request for clearing and settlement of
futures transaction by investors or commission futures merchants.
Responsible for providing the foreign and domestic product information,
product strategy development and the research report.
Responsible for processing the request for the foreign and domestic
futures, securities trading business and other trading business which
approved by authorization.
Responsible for planning, executing, recruiting and training business
which was approved by authorization for assisting introducing brokers.
Responsible for the trading request which was approved by
authorization for domestic institutional clients, and also develop the
related service and maintain.
Responsible for developing and providing the related market
information, research report and trading information for foreign
institutional clients. Handling onshore and offshore futures trade orders
of foreign institutional clients which approved by authorization.
Responsible for trading authorized financial products with equity fund.
Execute orders for securities traded in the stock markets and the trading
of authorized financial products.
Responsible for trading in market making business which approved by
the competent authority and traded related derivatives products with the
Company’s fund.
Execute the leverage transaction business which is approved by
authorities.
Hold the professional classes and the investment seminars for recruiting
the futures advisory membership and providing the professional
consulting and suggestions.
Responsible for providing the research result and prediction of
macro-economy, industry and individual company information base on
professional knowledge.
Handle all the discretionary transaction business related matters,
including research, executing, trading, deciding, and recruiting.
Execute trading orders of futures at domestic/foreign markets, securities
transaction, and other authorized business which follow the marketing
strategies of headquarter.
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Gender

Male

Male

Name

Capital
Securities
Corp.
Representative
: Sun,
Tien-Shan

Capital
Securities
Corp.
Representative
: Wang,
Jiunn-Chih

Nationality/
Place of
Incorporation

Republic
Of China

Republic
Of China

Title
(Note1)

Chairman

Director

2018.05.24 3 years

Shares

1997.07.08
90,166,223
2012.11.22
56.21%

56.21%

%

Shareholding
When Elected

1997.07.08
90,166,223
1997.07.08

Date First
Term
Elected
(Years)
(Note2)

2018.05.24 3 years

Date
Elected

3.2.1 Directors and Supervisors

0.37%

56.21%

99,182,845

56.21%

99,182,845

656,162

%

Shares

Current
Shareholding

-

%

-

-

-

615,550 0.35%

Shares

Spouse & Minor
Shareholding
Shares

-

-

-

%

Experience
(Education)

Other Position

-

Chairman of Capital
Securities Corp.
Director of CSC
Ph.D. in Technology
International
Management, Chung Hua
Holdings Ltd.,
University
Capital Securities (HK)
Capital Securities Corp.
Corp. and Capital
Chairman
Futures (HK) Ltd.
Chairman of CSC
Venture Capital Corp.

CSO of Capital Futures
Corp.
Chairman of
Capital Futures (HK)
Ltd.
Chairman of
Business Administration Capital International
Executive Program, National Technology Corp.
Chengchi University
Chairman of
Capital Securities Corp. True Partner Capital
Technology (Chengdu)
Senior Executive Vice
President
Co., Ltd.
Chairman of
Capital Futures
Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.
Supervisor of Taiwan
Futures Exchange

Shareholding by
Nominee
Arrangement

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Title Name Relation

Executives, Directors or
Supervisors Who are
Spouses or within Two
Degrees of kinship

Mar.31th, 2019

3.2 Background information of Directors, Supervisors, President, Vice Presidents, Assistant Vice Presidents and heads of
various departments and branches
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Republic
Of China

Independent
Director

Chen,
Kuo-Tay

Chuang,
Chih-Chen

Male

Male

2018.05.24 3 years 2018.05.24

2018.05.24 3 years 2012.06.19

2018.05.24 3 years 2015.05.20

-

-

1600

-

-

-

0.00%

56.21%

%

-

-

-

1,760

-

99,182,845

Shares

-

-

-

0.00%

-

56.21%

%

Current
Shareholding
Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

%

Spouse & Minor
Shareholding

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

%

Other Position

Department of Public
Finance, National Chung
Hsing University
Hontai Life Insurance
Director

Director of Bao Sheng
Investment Co., Ltd
Supervisor of Wei Wong
Investment Co., Ltd.

M.P.A., University of San Director of Capital
Francisco, USA
Securities Corp.
Capital Securities Corp.
Chairman

Experience
(Education)

-

Ph.D. in The University of
None
Texas at Austin, USA

Ph.D. in Economics, Stanford
University, USA
Central Bank of R.O.V.
Vice President
Ministry of Finance of R.O.C Independent director of
Capital Securities Corp.
Minister
Central Trust of China
Chairman
Taiwan Academy of Banking
and Finance
Chairman
College of Law, National
Taiwan University
Lawyer, Time law firm
Lawyer, Time law firm

-

-

Shareholding by
Nominee
Arrangement

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Title Name Relation

Executives, Directors or
Supervisors Who are
Spouses or within Two
Degrees of kinship

Note1: For corporate shareholders, the names and representatives are stated individually (for representatives, the names of the respective corporate shareholders they represent are stated separately), and additional
disclosures are made in Table 1.
Note2: Any disruption of duty as a director or supervisor after the date first elected are addressed in a separate remark.
Note3: The work experiences of anyone above relating to their current roles, e.g. previous employment in the CPA's firm or employment in a related company, are disclosed with detailed job titles and responsibilities.
Note4: The director Ms. Lee, Yi-Hui who assigned from Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd, and the ex-representative Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao has already resigned.

Republic
Of China

Independent
Director

Male

Director

Shea,
Jia-Dong

Republic
Of China

Republic
Of China

Hung Yeh
Investment
2012.06.19
Co.,Ltd
Representative Female 2018.10.16 3 years
2018.10.16
: Lee, Yi-Hui
(Note4)

Director

Independent
Director

Male

Republic
Of China

Shares

Shareholding
When Elected

1997.07.08
2018.05.24 3 years
90,166,223
2011.09.19

Capital
Securities
Corp.
Representative
: Liu, Ching–
Tsun

Date
Elected

Gender

Name

Title
(Note1)

Date First
Term
Elected
(Years)
(Note2)

Nationality/
Place of
Incorporation

Table 1: Major Shareholders of the institutional shareholders
Name of Institutional
Shareholders (Note 1)

Capital Securities Corp.

Hong Ye Investment Co., Ltd.

Mar.31th 2019

Institutional Shareholders’ main shareholders (%) (Note 2)
Hontai life insurance Co., Ltd. (3.87%)
Kwang Yang Motor Co., Ltd. (3.40%)
Fu Ding Investment Co., Ltd. (3.29%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (3.27%)
China Trust Bank (3.14%)
Bao Sheng Investment Co., Ltd (3.12%)
Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (3.08%)
Min Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd.
(2.64%)
Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd. (2.63%)
Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd. (2.36%)
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (41.25%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (18.58%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (18.54%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (9.73%)
Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd. (3.28%)
Tai He Construction Management Co., Ltd. (1.74%)
Tai Lian Investment Co., Ltd. (1.72%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (1.52%)
Fu Ding Investment Co., Ltd. (1.52%)
Tai Chun Investment Co., Ltd (0.93%)

Note 1: Where major shareholders listed in Table 1 are corporate entities, the names of the corporate entities are displayed.
Note 2: The above table shows the names and shareholding percentages of major shareholders (top 10 shareholders) in the respective
corporate entities. If major shareholders’ major shareholders are institutional investor should be listed on table 2.

Table 2: Major shareholders of major institutional shareholders listed in Table 1
Name of Corporate Shareholder
Institutional shareholders' main shareholders (%) (Note2)
(Note1)
Hontai life insurance Co., Ltd. Lin, Chang-Lung (24.77%)
Wang, Wan-Ling (14.97%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (6.63%)
Kai Ta Enterprise Co., Ltd. (6.62%)
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.92%)
Taiyo Life Insurance Company (3.44%)
Hong Chang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.23%)
Everpro Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd. (2.56%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd (2.46%)
Chen Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.41%)
Kwang Yang Motor Co., Ltd.
Hsin Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (11.31%)
Hong Kuang Investment Co., Ltd. (7.99%)
Kuang Chou Investment Co., Ltd. (6.66%)
Da Ming Investment Co., Ltd. (6.54%)
Kwang Hsing Industrial Co., Ltd. (5.39%)
Ko, Hung-Ming (1.03%)
Ko Wang, Shu-Yuan (1.03%)
Ko, Hsiao-Hsiung (1.02%)
Ko, Shing-Lang (1.01%)
Hong Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (0.95%)
Fu Ding Investment Co., Ltd.
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (24.73%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (13.02%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (9.76%)
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Name of Corporate Shareholder
(Note1)

Institutional shareholders' main shareholders (%) (Note2)

Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd. (6.51%)
Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd. (6.51%)
Yu Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (6.03%)
Fu Tai Construction Corporation (5.80%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (5.21%)
Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.28%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.27%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (21.83%)
Chen Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (18.43%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (12.16%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (10.55%)
Kai Da Enterprise Co., Ltd. (10.55%)
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (9.91%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (7.74%)
Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (3.17%)
Tai Chien Investment Co., Ltd. (1.93%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (1.38%)
Pao Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (56.09%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (9.25%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (9.25%)
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (9.25%)
Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.73%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.24%)
Kai Da Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.15%)
Chen Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.99%)
Yu Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.91%)
Yin Feng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.82%）
Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (23.93%)
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (19.86%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (11.01%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (10.29%)
Yu Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.98%)
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.27%)
Chen Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.42%)
Yu Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.40%)
Fu Tai Construction Corporation (3.77%)
Chuan Yi Construction Co., Ltd. (3.54%)
Min Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Lian Mao Investment Co., Ltd. (16.54%)
Wei Wang Investment Co., Ltd. (14.75%)
Hong Chang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (13.66%)
Tai Chun Investment Co., Ltd. (10.02%)
Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (8.48%)
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (8.47%)
Chen Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (6.42%)
Yu Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.80%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.38%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (4.76%)
Hong Chia Investment Co., Ltd. Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (24.20%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (12.42%)
Hong Tai Construction Co., Ltd. (9.97%)
Fu Tai Construction Corporation (9.97%)
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Name of Corporate Shareholder
(Note1)

Institutional shareholders' main shareholders (%) (Note2)

Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd.

Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (7.96%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (6.37%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (6.37%)
Lian Mao Investment Co., Ltd. (4.78%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (3.18%)
Kai Da Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.18%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (19.72%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (19.43%)
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (19.43%)
Chuan Yi Construction Co., Ltd. (6.93%)
Fu Tai Construction Corporation (6.93%)
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.51%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5.51%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (4.93%)
Bao Zuo Investment Co., Ltd (4.35%)
Tai Sheng Investment Co., Ltd. (4.35%)
Y.L. Lin Hung Tai Education Foundation(100.00%）

Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd.

Y.L. Lin Hung Tai Education Foundation (100.00%）

Bao Qing Investment Co., Ltd.

Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. Y.L. Lin Hung Tai Education Foundation (100.00%）
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd.
Tai He Construction
Management Co., Ltd.

Tai Lian Investment Co., Ltd.

Tai Chun Investment Co., Ltd.

Y.L. Lin Hung Tai Education Foundation (100.00%）
Hong Long Enterprise Co., Ltd. (18.75%)
Min Huei Enterprise Co., Ltd. (18.75%)
Kai Da Enterprise Co., Ltd. (15.14%)
Tsai Chiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (13.36%)
Chang Hsin Asset Management Co., Ltd. (12.50%)
Chung Lung Technology Co., Ltd. (12.50%)
Financial Information Corporation (8.89%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (43.02%)
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (16.65%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (15.27%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (8.33%)
Yin Feng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.26%)
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.26%)
Kai Da Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.26%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (3.26%)
Fu Tai Construction Corporation (3.23%)
Hong Tai Construction Co., Ltd. (0.44%)
Tai Fa Investment Co., Ltd. (30.63%)
Hao Long Investment Co., Ltd. (19.71%)
Tai Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. (18.91%)
Tai He Investment Co., Ltd. (15.98%)
Tai Chun Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.91%)
Han Bao Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.88%)
Yin Feng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.74%)
Kai Da Enterprise Co., Ltd. (2.49%)
Run Hsiang Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.89%)
Hong Sheng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (1.85%)

Note 1: Where major shareholders listed in Table 1 are corporate entities, the names of the corporate entities are displayed.
Note 2: The above table shows the names and shareholding percentages of major shareholders (top 10 shareholders) in the respective
corporate entities.
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3.2.2 Professional qualifications and independence analysis of directors and
supervisors
Mar. 31th, 2019

Criteria

Name
(Note1)

Meet One of the Following Professional Qualification
Requirements, Together with at Least Five Years Work
Experience
An Instructor or
A Judge, Public
Have Work
Higher Position in a Prosecutor, Attorney, Experience in the
Department of
Certified Public
Areas of
Commerce, Law,
Accountant, or Other Commerce, Law,
Finance, Accounting, Professional or
Finance, or
or Other Academic Technical Specialist
Accounting, or
Department Related Who has Passed a
Otherwise
National Examination Necessary for the
to the Business
and been Awarded a
Needs of the
Business of the
Company in a Public Certificate in a
Company
Profession Necessary
or Private Junior
College, College or for the Business of the
Company
University

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan
Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Liu, Ching–

Representative: Lee, Yi-Hui
Shea, Jia-Dong




Chuang, Chih-Chen
Chen, Kuo-Tay



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

-         -

0



 -   - -    -

0



- -   - -    -

0



         -

0



         

1



         

0



         

0

Jiunn-Chih
Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd

Number of
Other Public
Companies in
Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an
Independent
Director



Tsun
Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Wang,

Independence Criteria
（Note 2）

Note1: Adjust the number of columns as needed.
Note2: A "" is placed in the box if the Director or Supervisor met the following conditions during active duty and two years prior to the
date elected.
(1) Not employed by the Company or any of its affiliated companies.
(2) Not a director or supervisor of any of the Company's related companies (this restriction does not apply to independent director
positions in the Company, its parent company or subsidiary, which have been appointed in accordance with local laws or laws of the
registered country).
(3) Does not hold more than 1% of the Company's outstanding shares in their own names or under the name of spouse, underage children,
or proxy shareholder; nor is a top-10 natural-person shareholder of the Company.
(4) Not a spouse, relative of second degree or closer, or direct blood relative of third degree or closer to any person listed in the three
preceding criteria.
(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of any company that has 5% or higher ownership interest in the Company; nor a director,
supervisor, or employee of any of the top-5 corporate shareholders.
(6) Not a director, supervisor, manager, or shareholder with more than 5% ownership interest in any companies or institutions that have
financial or business relationship with the Company.
(7) Not a professional who provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting, or consulting services to the Company or its affiliated, nor
is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager, or the spouse of any of the above, of a sole proprietorship, partnership,
company, or organization that provides such services to the Company or its affiliated. However, this excludes members of the
Remuneration Committee who have been appointed to exercise duties in accordance with Article 7 of Regulations Governing the
Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee of a Company Whose Stock is listed on the Stock Exchange or
Traded over the Counter.
(8) Not a spouse or relative of second degree or closer to any other directors.
(9) Does not meet any of the conditions stated in Article 30 of The Company Act.
(10) Not elected as a government or corporate representative, as described in Article 27 of The Company Act.
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Male 2015/10/01 118,000

Lee,
Wen-Chu,

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

President

Senior
Executive
Vice
president

Senior
Executive
Vice
president

Senior
Executive
Vice
president

Senior
Executive
Vice
president

Executive
Vice
president

Senior
Executive
Officer

Hsu ,
Jhen-Zong

Yang ,
Rui-Ling

Ho,
Yu-Wen

Lin,
Chi-Cheng

Mao,
Jen-Hua

Chen,
Wen-Tsay,

Male 2002/03/18 656,162

Sun,
Tien-Shan

Republic of
China

Male 2003/06/23

Female 2011/12/28

Male 2019/01/02

Male 2019/01/02

Male 2005/09/06

-

65,715

-

-

46,394

Male 2006/11/01 111,206

Shares

Shares

-

0.04%

-

-

0.03%

0.06%

0.07%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.35%

Shareholding
percentage

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

Current positions in the company and
other companies

Master of International Business
National Taiwan University
Guosen Securities
Vice President of Derivatives Dept.

Master of Science in Finance
Illinois Institute of Technology
Guosen Securities
President of Derivatives Dept.

Department of International Trade
Tunghai University
Concord Futures Corp.
Director

Master of Business Administration,
Florida State University
Capital Futures Corp.
Senior Executive Vice President

Executive Master of Business
Administration, National Chengchi
University
Hua Nan Futures Corp.
President

Department of Cooperative Economics
Feng Chia University
Capital Securities Corp.
Vice President

None

None

None

None

-

-

-

-

-

-

Director of Capital International
Technology Corp
Director of T rue Partner Capital
Technology (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.
Director of Capital Futures Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Title Name Relationship

-

Director of Capital Futures Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Mar.31th, 2019
Spouse or relatives of
second degree or closer
acting as managers

Director of Capital International
Technology Corp.
Director of True Partner Capital
Technology (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.
Director of Capital Futures Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

The Director of Capital Futures (HK) Ltd.
Chairman of Capital International
Technology Corp.
Business Administration Executive
Chairman of True Partner Capital
Program, National Chengchi University
Technology (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.
Capital Securities Corp.
Senior Executive Vice President
Chairman of Capital Futures Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Supervisor of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Major Career (academic)
(Note 2)

Department of business administration
Shih Chien University
Masterlink Futures Corp.
Sales Vice President

-

-

-

-

-

Shareholding
percentage

Shareholdings of spouse Shares held in the names
and underage children
of others

0.37% 615,550

Shareholding
percentage

Shares held

CSO
Chairman

Date
Gender Elected/
Appointed

Nationality

Title
(Note 1)

Name

3.2.3 President, Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents, Department Heads & Branch Heads
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Male 2010/06/10

Hsu ,
Ji-Ching

Lin ,
Li-Juan

Chen ,
Wei-Ting

Senior Vice Republic of
China
President

Senior Vice Republic of
China
President

Senior Vice Republic of
China
President

Senior Vice Republic of
Lin ,
China
Xiao-Chian
President

Female 2006/06/01

Male 2005/01/01

Male 2017/04/06

Chen ,
Chi-Hau

Senior Vice Republic of
China
President

Male 2013/10/01

Kuo ,
Female 2013/01/01
Shu-Zhen,

Senior Vice Republic of
China
President

Male 2012/07/02

Lee,
2014/07/14
Chung-Wei Male

Senior Vice Republic of
Peng ,
China
Jian-Cheng
President

Senior Vice Republic of
China
President

Male 2009/08/01

Yang,
Yau-Yu

Republic of
China

Male 2007/10/11

Senior
Executive
Officer

Tseng ,
Wen-Jun

Republic of
China

Senior
Executive
Officer

Name

Nationality

Title
(Note 1)

Date
Gender Elected/
Appointed

-

55,000

1,300

22,000

33,273

82,808

82,118

7,830

-

12,214

Shares

-

0.03%

0.00%

0.01%

0.02%

0.05%

0.05%

0.00%

-

0.01%

Shareholding
percentage

Shares held

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shareholding
percentage

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

Master of Finance
National Chung Hsing University
President Futures Corp.
Deputy Manager

-

None

Ph.D. Of Law
University of Washington
Yuanta Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
Deputy Manager of Legal Department
-

-

None

None

-

None

Master of Science
Columbia University in the City
of New York
KGI securities Corp.
Vice president

None

Department of Finance
National Kaohsiung First University of
Science
New Futures Corp.
Deputy Manager

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Master of Business Administration,
University of La Verne
J.P. Morgan Chase & Corp.
Deputy Manager

None

Supervisor of Capital International
Technology Corp

None

None

None

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Title Name Relationship

Spouse or relatives of
second degree or closer
acting as managers

-

Department of Business
Providence University
Polaris Futures Corp.
Manager

Department of International Trade
Tamkang University
Masterlink Futures Corp.
Deputy Manager

Master of Finance,
National Taiwan University
BusinessWeek Corp.
Advisor of Editorial department

Department of Forestry
Chiayi Agricultural College
Hua Nan Futures Corp.
Manager

Major Career (academic)
(Note 2)

Current positions in the company and
other companies

Department of International Business
Administration
Yuan Ze University
Sinopac Futures Corp.
Deputy Manager

-

-

-

Shareholding
percentage

Shareholdings of spouse Shares held in the names
and underage children
of others
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Nationality

Jung,
Republic of
China
Jeng-Huang

Republic of
China

Republic of
Yang,
Male 2019/01/02
China
Shih-Chuang

Republic of
Lin,
China
Ching-Ming

Vice
President

Vice
President

Vice
President

Ju,Shiu

Male 2019/01/02

Male 2019/01/02

Male 2018/04/02

Male 2018/04/01

Vice
President

Chen,
Tzung-Yu

Republic of
China

Male 2016/08/01

Vice
President

Ho ,
Zhuo-Yi

Republic of
China

Vice
President

Jhuo
Republic of
2016/04/01
China
,Zheng-Gang Male

Male 2015/10/01

Senior
Vice
President

Fan ,
Jhen-Hong

Shares

-

-

-

-

-

16,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.01%

0.01%

Shareholding
percentage

Shares held

Male 2014/04/01 15,292

Republic of
China

Huang,
Wei-Ben

Name

Senior
Vice
President

Senior Vice Republic of
China
President

Title
(Note 1)

Date
Gender Elected/
Appointed

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shareholding
percentage

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shareholding
percentage

Shareholdings of spouse Shares held in the names
and underage children
of others

-

-

-

Master of Information System
Administration
Texas State University
Barclays Securities
Deputy Manager
Department of Financial Engineering
and Actuarial Mathematics
Soochow University
Capital Futures Corp.
Manager
Ph.D. Of Finance Department
National Taiwan University
Waterland Securities
Manager of Risk Management Dept.

Department of Information
management
Ming-Chuan University
Guosen Securities
Vice director of Derivatives Dept.

Master of Physics
National Taiwan University
Waterland Securitites
Assistant Manager

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

-

-

-

-

Department of Finance
National Taichung University of
Science and Technology
Capital Securities (H.K.) Corp.
Sales Manager

Master of International Business
National Taiwan University
Guosen Securities
Vice director of Derivatives Dept.

-

Executive Master of Business
Administration
The City University of New York
President Securities Corp.
Sales Deputy Manager
None

-

None

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Title Name Relationship

Spouse or relatives of
second degree or closer
acting as managers

Master of Financial Operating
National Kaohsiung First University of
Science
Sinopac Futures Corp.
Sales Manager

Major Career (academic)
(Note 2)

Current positions in the company and
other companies
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Republic of
China

Sales
Vice
President

Chang,
Mu-Min

Liu ,
Bao-Hua

Tsao,
Shu-Hui

Lin ,
Shiou-Ju

Chang ,
Li-Jiao

Huang ,
Guo-Rong

Lian ,
Jing-Lian

Huang,
Pei-Luen

Name

Male 2018/04/01

Male 2015/04/01

Female 2015/12/29

Female 2017/04/01

Female 2015/10/01

Male 2012/06/01

Male 2003/05/02

Male 2019/02/11

4,800

37,400

73,774

22,000

15,000

20,064

43,300

-

Shares

0.00%

0.02%

0.04%

0.01%

0.01%

0.01%

0.02%

-

Shareholding
percentage

Shares held

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shareholding
percentage

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shares

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Shareholding
percentage

Shareholdings of spouse Shares held in the names
and underage children
of others

Department of Transportation and
Communication Management Science
& Institute of Telecommunications
Management
National Cheng Kung University

Department of Finance
National Taiwan University
Capital Futures Corp.
Manager

Department of Accounting
Chinese Culture University
Capital Futures Corp.
Deputy Manager

Department of Insurance
Shih Chien University
Capital Futures Corp.
Manager

None

None

None

None

-

-

-

-

-

None

EMBA of
National Taiwan Normal University
Concord Securities Co., Ltd.
Senior Manager

-

-

-

None

None

None

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Title Name Relationship

Spouse or relatives of
second degree or closer
acting as managers

Department of Economics
National Tsing Hua University
Capital Futures Corp.
Deputy manager of Managed Futures
Department

Department of Statistics
Tamkang University
Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd.
Deputy Manager

Master in Business Administration
Long Island University
Fubon Securities
Senior Manager

Major Career (academic)
(Note 2)

Current positions in the company and
other companies

Note1: The information of Presidents, senior executive vice president, director and the head of every branch…etc. should be disclosed.
Note2: The work experiences of anyone above relating to their current roles, e.g. previous employment in the CPA's firm or employment in a related company, are disclosed with detailed job titles and responsibilities.

Republic of
China

Senior
Specialist

Republic of
China

Senior
Specialist

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

Assistant
Vice
President

Senior
Specialist

Republic of
China

Assistant
Vice
President

Republic of
China

Republic of
China

Vice
President

Senior
Specialist

Nationality

Title
(Note 1)

Date
Gender Elected/
Appointed
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Capital Securities Corp.

Name

Chen, Kuo-Tay (Note5)

Chang, Yao-Tsai (Note4)

Chuang, Chih-Chen

Shea, Jia-Dong

Chia, Chung-Tao

Lee, Yi-Hui

Representative:

Co.,Ltd (Note3)

Hung Yeh Investment

Liu, Ching–Tsun

Representative:

Capital Securities Corp.

Wang, Jiunn-Chih

Representative:

(C) (Note3)

(Note4)

The sum of A, B, C and D
as a percentage of after-tax Salaries, bonuses,
profit
special allowances etc.
(Note 10)
(E)(Note 5)

18,459

18,459

2,712

(Note2) (Note2)

2,712
12,083

12,083

775

5,412

4.07%

4.61%

0

0

All
All
All
All
All
All
companies
companies
companies
companies
companies
companies
shown in
shown in
shown in
shown in
shown in
shown in the
The
The
The
The
the
the
the
the
the
The Company
The Company
financial
financial
financial Company financial Company financial
Company
Company financial
report
report
report
report
report
report
(Note 7)
(Note 7)
(Note 7)
(Note 7)
(Note 7)
(Note 7)

(B)

(Note 2)

Remuneration to directors Fees for services rendered (D)

0

0

0

0

Unit: NT$ thousand

(Note 10)

0

0

4.07%

4.61%

None

(Note 11)

Remuneration
from invested
businesses
other than the
All
companies subsidiaries

NT$ thousand The
sum of A, B, C, D,
E , F and G as a
percentage of
after-tax net profit

contained
The
in the
(Note 7)
Cash Stock company financial
report
amount amount
(Note 7)

All companies
contained in the
financial report

(G) (Note 6)

Remuneration to employees

All
companies
The Company
shown in
The
the
Company financial Cash Stock
report amount amount
(Note 7)

(F)

Pension

Remuneration as an employee

Compensation received by director for providing service to any company included in the consolidated financial statements (e.g. consultancy service without the title of an employee) in the last year, except those
disclosed in the above table: NT$ 0 dollars.
Note1: The remuneration of driver is 1,311 thousand dollars.
Note2: The actual amount of retirement pension paid in 2018 was NT 2,640 thousand dollars; the withdrawal amount of retirement pension expenses shall be NT 72 thousand dollars.
Note3: Hung Yeh Investment Co., Ltd. designated Ms. Lee to be the director representative on Oct. 16th, 2018 since the previous director representative Mr. Chia resigned.
Note4&5: Mr. Chen, Kuo-Tay elected to be independent director on May 24th, 2018 and Mr. Chang, Yao-Tsai resigned on May 23th.
:

Director

Independent

Director

Independent

Director

Independent

Director

Independent

Director

Director

Director

Capital Securities Corp.

Sun, Tien-Shan

Chairman Representative:

Title

Pension

Remuneration(A)

Director’s remuneration

3.2.4 Remuneration paid to Directors, the President, and the Vice President in 2018

- 20 7 persons

7 persons

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan

Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd

Wang, Jiunn-Chih、
Liu, Ching–Tsun、
Chuang, Chih-Chen、
Shea, Jia-Dong、
Chang, Yao-Tsai、
Chen, Kuo-Tay

The Company
(Note 8)

7 persons

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan

Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd

All companies shown in the
financial report
(Note 9)I
Wang, Jiunn-Chih、
Liu, Ching–Tsun、
Chuang, Chih-Chen、
Shea, Jia-Dong、
Chang, Yao-Tsai、
Chen, Kuo-Tay

Note 1: Directors' names should be presented separately (for corporate shareholders, state separately the name of the corporate shareholder and its representatives); the amount of benefits and allowances can be
presented in aggregate sums. If directors who have also worked in the capacity as President or asst President should fill out this table or below table (3-1) or (3-2).
Note 2: Refers to Director's remuneration in the latest year (including salaries, work subsidies, severance pay, various bonuses and incentives etc.).
Note 3: Please fill in the amount of remuneration to directors resolved in the most recent board meeting.
Note 4: Refers to compensations for services rendered (including travel, special allowances, various subsidies, accommodation, corporate vehicle and other items). If houses, cars or other vehicles, or personal
allowances were granted, please describe the nature and cost of assets, their rental rates calculated based on actual or fair value, and details on petrol and other subsidies. If personal drivers were allocated, please make a
footnote disclosure of the salaries made to these driver, but do not count them as part of the beneficiaries' remuneration.
Note 5: Remunerations received by directors who have also worked in the capacity as employees (including the position of President, Vice President, mangers, and employees), including, salaries, subsidies, severance
pay, bonus, awards, traveling subsidy, special subsidy, different forms of subsidies, accommodation, company car, and other supplies in kind. If houses, cars or other vehicles, or personal allowances were granted,
please describe the nature and cost of assets, their rental rates calculated based on actual or fair value, and details on petrol and other subsidies. If personal drivers were allocated, please make a footnote disclosure of the
salaries made to these driver, but do not count them as part of the beneficiaries' remuneration. Besides, according to IFRS2 share-based Payment requires an entity to recognize share-bases payment transactions,
including granted shares, share options or share appreciation rights.
Note 6: For the directors who are also employees (including President, Vice President, managers, and staff) of the Company in the most recent year with remuneration received (including stock and cash), the
remuneration amount to employees resolved in the board meeting in the most recent year should be disclosed. If the remuneration amount cannot be estimated, the amount to be distributed this year is to be estimated
proportionally to the actual amount distributed last year; also, Attachment 1.3 should be filled out.
Note 7: It refers to the amount of exercisable shares vested in employees' warrants, which the Director has received up till the publishing date of this annual report (excluding those that were exercised), for taking the
role of a company employee (such as President, Vice President, other managers and employees).
Note 8: The total amount of remunerations to each director of the Company under the consolidated financial statement (including the Company) shall be disclosed with the disclosure of the names of the directors falling
in relevant brackets.
Note 9: The disclosure should cover all companies included in the consolidated financial statements (including The Company); present the total amount of remuneration paid by all companies above to The Company's
Directors.
Note 10: Corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation. If IFRS has already been adopted, corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation of individual entities or individual financial statements.
Note 11: a. This field must state any form of remuneration the Director has received from The Company's invested businesses other than subsidiaries.
b. For Directors who receive remuneration from invested businesses other than subsidiaries, the amount of remuneration from these invested businesses should be added to column J of the Remuneration
brackets table. Change the name of column J to "All invested businesses".

Total

> NT$100,000,000

NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$15,000,000 ~ NT$30,000,000 (exclusive)

7 persons

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan

NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$10,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000 (exclusive)

Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd

Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd

Wang, Jiunn-Chih、
Liu, Ching–Tsun、
Chuang, Chih-Chen、
Shea, Jia-Dong、
Chang, Yao-Tsai、
Chen, Kuo-Tay

The Company
(Note 8)

The total of the aforementioned 7 items (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

Name of director
All companies shown in the
financial report
(Note 9)H
Wang, Jiunn-Chih、
Liu, Ching–Tsun、
Chuang, Chih-Chen、
Shea, Jia-Dong、
Chang, Yao-Tsai、
Chen, Kuo-Tay

The total of the aforementioned 4 items (A+B+C+D)

NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$5,000,000 (exclusive)

<NT$2,000,000

Remunerations to individual directors in respective
brackets along the salaries scale

Remuneration bracket table
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Chia,
Chung-Tao
(Note 1)

CIO

Yang, Yau-Yu

Hsu, Jhen-Zong

Tseng ,Wen-Jun

Yang, Rui-Ling

Chian, Yi-Cheng
(Note 2)

Xia ,Huan-Ting

Mao ,Jen-Hua

Chen, Wen-Tsay

15,242

15,242

All companies
included in the
consolidated
statements
(Note 5)

854

The
Company

854

All companies
included in the
consolidated
statements
(Note 5)

Pension
(B)

28,288

The
Company

28,288

All companies
included in the
consolidated
statements
(Note 5)

Bonuses and allowances etc.
(C)(Note 3)

1,869

Cash
amount

0

Stock
amount

The Company

1,869

0

Stock
amount

All companies
included in the
consolidated
statements
(Note 5)
Cash
amount

(Note 4)

Remuneration to employees
(D)

*The information of president, senior executive vice president, director and the head of every branch…etc. should be disclosure.
Note 1: The retirement effective date of Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao was Oct. 17th, 2018,
Note 2: The termination effective date of Mr. Chian, Yi-Cheng was May 1st, 2018.

Officer

Senior Executive

Officer

Senior Executive

Officer

Senior Executive

president

Executive Vice

president

Executive Vice

vice president

Senior Executive

President

Senior Executive Vice

President

Senior Executive Vice

Lee, Wen-Chu

Sun, Tien-Shan

CSO

President

Name

Title

The
Company

Salary
(A)(Note 2)

3.2.6 Remuneration of the President and Vice Presidents in 2018

5.54%

The
Company

5.52%

All companies included in the
consolidated statements
(Note 5)

The sum of A, B, C, and D as a percentage of
after-tax net profit
(％)(Note 8)

None

Remuneration
from invested
businesses other
than the
subsidiaries
(Note 9)

Unit: NT$ thousand

3.2.5 The Company sets Audit Committee since May 20th, 2015 and there is no information about remuneration of supervisor.

c. Remuneration refers to any returns, compensation (including remuneration to Employees, Directors and Supervisors), professional fees etc. which The Company's Directors have received for serving as
directors, supervisors, or managers in invested businesses other than subsidiaries.
* The basis of remuneration disclosed above is different to the basis required by the income tax law; hence the above table has been prepared solely for information disclosure, and not for tax purposes.
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-

NT$15,000,000 ~ NT$30,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$30,000,000 ~ NT$50,000,000 (exclusive)

NT$50,000,000 ~ NT$100,000,000
(exclusive)

> NT$100,000,000

11 persons

-

-

-

-

Note 1: The names of the President and Vice Presidents should be presented separately; the amount of benefits and allowances can be presented in aggregate sums. Any Directors who co-headed the President or Vice
President positions must be disclosed in this table as well as the previous.
Note 2: Refers to salaries, work subsidies, pension, and severance pay made to the President and Vice Presidents in the latest year.
Note 3: Refers to other compensations such as bonuses, incentives, travel allowances, special allowances, various subsidies, accommodation, corporate vehicle or other items made to the President and Vice Presidents.
If houses, cars or other vehicles, or personal allowances were granted, please describe the nature and cost of assets, their rental rates calculated based on actual or fair value, and details on petrol and other subsidies. If
personal drivers were allocated, please make a footnote disclosure of the salaries made to these driver, but do not count them as part of the beneficiaries' remuneration. Besides, according to IFRS2 share-based Payment
requires an entity to recognize share-bases payment transactions, including granted shares, share options or share appreciation rights.
Note 4: Please fill in the remuneration amount to the President and Vice President resolved in the board meeting in the most recent year (including stock and cash). If the remuneration amount cannot be estimated, the
amount to be distributed this year is to be estimated proportionally to the actual amount distributed last year; also, Attachment 1.3 should be filled out. Corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation. If IFRS
has already been adopted, corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation of individual entities or individual financial statements.
Note 5: The disclosure should cover all companies included in the consolidated financial statements (including The Company); present the total amount of remuneration paid by all companies above to The Company's
President/Vice Presidents.
Note 6: The total remunerations to each President and Vice President of all companies in the consolidated financial statements (including the Company), and disclose the names of these Presidents and Vice Presidents in
relevant brackets along the scale of remunerations.
Note 7: The disclosure should cover all companies included in the consolidated financial statements (including the Company); present the total amount of remuneration paid by all companies above to The Company's
President/Vice Presidents.
Note 8: Corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation. If IFRS has already been adopted, corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation of individual entities or individual financial statements.
Note 9: a. this field must state any form of remuneration the President and Vice President have received from The Company's invested businesses other than subsidiaries.
b. For President/Vice Presidents who receive remuneration from invested businesses other than subsidiaries, the amount of remuneration from these invested businesses should be added to column E of the
Remuneration brackets table. Change the name of column E to "All invested businesses"
c. Remuneration refers to any returns, compensation (including remuneration to Employees, Directors and Supervisors), professional fees etc. which The Company's President/Vice Presidents have received for
serving as directors, supervisors, or managers in invested businesses other than subsidiaries.
* The basis of remuneration disclosed above is different to the basis required by the income tax law; hence the above table has been prepared solely for information disclosure, and not for tax purposes.

11 persons

-

NT$10,000,000 ~ NT$15,000,000 (exclusive)

Total

Lee, Wen-Chu, Chen, Wen-Tsay,
Mao, Jen-Hua, Xia, Huan-Ting, Yang, Rui-Ling, Yang, Yau-Yu

NT$5,000,000 ~ NT$10,000,000 (exclusive)
-

Hsu, Jhen-Zong, Tseng ,Wen-Jun

Lee, Wen-Chu, Chen, Wen-Tsay,
Mao, Jen-Hua, Xia, Huan-Ting, Yang, Rui-Ling, Yang, Yau-Yu

Sun, Tien-Shan , Chia, Chung-Tao, Chian, Yi-Cheng

All companies shown in the financial report (Note 7)

Hsu, Jhen-Zong, Tseng ,Wen-Jun

Sun, Tien-Shan , Chia, Chung-Tao, Chian, Yi-Cheng

The Company (Note 6)

Names of the Presidents and the Vice Presidents

NT$2,000,000 ~ NT$5,000,000 (exclusive)

<NT$2,000,000

Remunerations to all Presidents and Vice
Presidents of the Company

The brackets of remunerations to all Presidents and Vice Presidents of the Company

3.2.7 Name of the managers received remuneration and the distribution of
remuneration in 2018
Title
（Note 1）

Managers

Chief Strategy
Officer
President
Senior Executive
Vice President
Senior Executive
Vice President
Senior Executive
Vice President
Senior Executive
Vice President
Senior Executive
Vice President
Executive Vice
president
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Executive
Officer
Senior Executive
Officer
Senior Executive
Officer
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Senior Vice
President
Vice president

Name
（Note 1）

Stock amount Cash amount

Total

Unit: NT$ thousand
As a percentage of
net profit after tax
(%)

Sun, Tien-Shan
Lee, Wen-Chu
Chen, Wen-Tsay
Mao, Jen-Hua
Lin, Chi-Cheng
Xia, Huan-Ting,
Ho, Yu-Wen
Yang, Rui-Ling
Lin, Li-Juan
Kuo, Shu-Zhen
Huang, Wei-Ben
Hsu, Jhen-Zong
Yang, Yau-Yu

0

Tseng, Wen-Jun
Jhuo, Zheng-Gang
Peng, Jian-Cheng
Hsu, Ji-Ching
Chang, Lin-Chung
Chen, Wei-Ting
Lin, Xiao-Chian
Chen, Chi-Hau
Fan, Jhen-Hong,
Li, Zong-Wei
Chung, Cheng-Huang

Vice president

Ho, Zhuo-Yi

Vice president

Chen, Tzung-Yu
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6,646

6,646

0.80%

Vice president

Huang, Pei-Luen

Vice president

Ju, Shiu

Vice president

Lin, Ching-Ming

Vice president
Assistant Vice
President
Assistant Vice
President
Senior Specialist

Yang, Shih-Chuang
Lian, Jing-Lian
Huang, Guo-Rong
Chang, Li-Jiao

Senior Specialist Lin, Shiou-Ju
Senior Specialist Tsao,Shu-Hui
Senior Specialist Liu ,Bao-Hua
Senior Specialist Chang, Mu-Min
Note 1: The name and job title of each individual should be disclosed; however, the distribution of earnings can be disclosed aggregately.
Note 2: Please fill in the remuneration amount to the managers resolved in the board meeting in the most recent year (including stock and
cash).
If the remuneration amount cannot be estimated, the amount to be distributed this year is to be estimated proportionally to the actual
amount distributed last year. Corporate earnings shall be the net income after taxation. If IFRS has already been adopted, corporate
earnings shall be the net income after taxation of individual entities or individual financial statements.
Note 3: According to Notice Tai-Tsai-Cheng-3-0920001301 dated 27 March 2003, the following managerial roles are subject to reporting:
(1) President and the equals (2) Vice President and the equals (3) Junior V.P. and the equals (4) Director of the Finance Department
(5) Director of the Accounting Department (6) Others who are responsible for business management and authorized to sign document
on behalf of the Company.
Note 4: If the Directors, President, and Vice President have received remuneration (including stock and cash), in addition to filling out
Attachment 1.2, this form must be filled out too.

3.2.8 Comparison of Remuneration for Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice
Presidents in the Most Recent Two Fiscal Years and Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice Presidents
A. The ratio of total remuneration paid by the Company and by all companies included in the
consolidated financial statements for the two most recent fiscal years to directors,
supervisors, President and vice presidents of the Company, to the after-tax net income.
Unit: NT$ thousand; percentage

2018
Item
Total remuneration
amount
The remuneration as a
(Including the
percentage of net
independent directors)
income (%)
Total remuneration
amount
Total remuneration
paid to President and The remuneration as a
vice president
percentage of net
income (%)

Total remuneration
paid to directors

2017

The
Company

Companies in
the
consolidated
financial
statements

The
Company

Companies in
the
consolidated
financial
statements

34,030

38,667

27,694

27,694

4.07%

4.61%

3.79%

3.78%

46,253

46,253

41,974

41,974

5.54%

5.52%

5.74%

5.72%
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B. The policies, standards, and portfolios for the payment of remuneration, the procedures for
determining remuneration, and the correlation with risks and business performance.
1. The Directors' remuneration policy was created in accordance with the Articles of
Association. The Board of Directors are authorized to determine remuneration levels
for each Director based on their involvements and contributions to the Company's
operations, in reference to peer standards. Travel subsidies can also be made
depending on their actual attendances to the Board of Directors meetings.
2. Remuneration to the President and Vice Presidents are determined based on their job
responsibilities, the normal level of salary, and annual performance which are subject
to the Board of Directors' approval.
3. Operating performance and potential risk in the future: The procedure of determine the
remuneration based on the general operating performance of the Company, and
consider the participation and contribution of the department revenue to the whole
company, and also sets reasonable salary levels that are closely related to peer
standards which are subject to the Chairman' approval.
In order to control potential risk in the future, the internal control system which
reviewed by Remuneration Committee is necessary. Also, the remuneration amount would
be disclosure in the annual report according to the rules and regulations for preventing
mistakes, therefore, potential risk should be limited. In summary, policy and procedure for
determining the remuneration of directors, President and vice president has the positive
correlation with the operating performance of the company.
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3.3 Corporate Governance
3.3.1 Functionality of the Board of Directors
9 Board of Directors meetings were held in the latest year (2018); Directors' and
Independent Directors ' attendance are listed below:
Title

Chairman
Director
Director
Director
Vice
Chairman
Independent
director
Independent
director
Independent
director
Independent
director

Actual
attendance
(Ｂ)

Proxy
Attendance

Percentage of
actual
attendance (%)
(Ｂ/Ａ)(Note 2)

9

0

100%

9

0

100%

9

0

100%

2

0

100%

7

0

100%

Shea, Jia-Dong

9

0

100%

Chuang, Chih-Chen

9

0

100%

Chen, Kuo-Tay

3

0

100%

Chang, Yao-Tasy

6

0

100%

Name (Note 1)

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan
Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Wang, Jiunn-Chih
Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Liu, Ching–Tsun
Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd
Representative: Lee, Yi-Hui
Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd
Representative: Chia, Chung-Tao

Remark

Designated on
2018.10.16
Resigned on
2018.10.16

Elected on
2018.05.24
Resigned on
2018.05.24

Note 1: If Directors and Supervisors are corporate entities, then the names of corporate shareholders and their representatives must be
provided.
Note 2: (1) The date of resignation must be specified for Directors or Supervisors who had resigned prior to the close of the financial year.
The percentage of actual attendance (%) should be calculated based on the number of Board of Directors meeting held during active
duty and the number of actual attendance.
(2) If a re-election of Directors or Supervisors had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, Directors/Supervisors of both
the previous and the current term must be listed; the remarks column must address the re-election date and whether the
Director/Supervisor was elected in the previous term, the new term, or both. The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated
based on the number of board of directors meetings held during active duty and the actual attendance.

Other remarks:
I. For the operation of the Board of Directors in any of the following circumstances, please
specify the date, term, the contents of the proposals, the opinions of all independent
directors, and the process of the opinions proposed by the independent directors:
(a) The matters stated in Article 14-3 of the Securities Exchange Act: It was resolved to
have the Audit Committee setup in the board meeting.
(b) Except for the aforementioned matters, the resolutions reached by the Board of
Directors with the objections or reservations of the independent directors documented or
declared in writing: Please refer to page 74 of this Annual report.
II. With respect to the avoidance of conflicting interest agendas, describe the names of
directors, details of the relevant agendas, reasons for avoiding conflicting interest, and
the voting decisions:
Board of
Directors
Meeting
The 23th

Agenda content/Reason of avoidance due to conflict interest/Voting decision
Agenda：It is regarding the proposal of distribution for the 2017 year-end
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meeting of the remuneration which would calculate as 2-month salary to the basis.
7th board
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan and Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao are
related parties in this case.
(2018.01.30)
 After they were excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
Agenda：It is regarding the review of the 2017 year-end performance for employees
of manager grade and above.
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan and Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao are
related parties in this case.
 After they were excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
Agenda：It is regarding the distribution of the 2017 year-end remuneration for
employees of manager grade and above.
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan and Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao are
related parties in this case.
 After they were excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
Agenda：It is regarding the proposal of the Company’s subsidy, CSC Futures (HK)
Ltd. would pay the monthly traffic allowance to Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan.
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan is the related party in the case.
 After Mr. Sun was excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
The 24th
Agenda：It is regarding the candidate review of the directors and independent
meeting of the directors for 2018 general shareholder meeting.
7th board
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan, Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao, Director
(2018.03.26)
Wang, Jiunn-Chih, Director Liu, Ching–Tsun, Independent Director Shea,
Jia-Dong and Independent Director Chuang, Chih-Chen are the related parties in
the case. Above directors and independent directors were excused from the
meeting one by one. Director Wang, Jiunn-Chih acts Chairman temporarily for
Mr. Sun when he left.
 Other directors present in the meeting passed without objection.
Agenda：It is regarding the lifting restrictions issue on non-competition of directors
and representatives of the company.
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan, Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao, Director
Wang, Jiunn-Chih, Director Liu, Ching–Tsun, Independent Director Shea,
Jia-Dong and Independent Director Chuang, Chih-Chen are the related parties in
the case. Above directors and independent directors were excused from the
meeting one by one. Director Wang, Jiunn-Chih acts Chairman temporarily for
Mr. Sun when he left.
 Other directors present in the meeting passed without objection.
Agenda：It is regarding the distribution of the 2017 festival remuneration for
employees of manager grade and above.
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan and Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao are
related parties in this case.
 After they were excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
The 25th
Agenda：It is regarding the distribution of the directors’ remuneration in 2017.
meeting of the
 Every director and independent director was excused from the meeting one by
7th board
one.
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(2018.05.11)

 Other directors present in the meeting passed without objection.
Agenda：It is regarding the distribution of the employees’ compensation (cash) in
2017.
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan and Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao are the
related parties in this case.
 After they were excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.

The 2nd
Agenda：It is regarding the engagement of the members for the 4th Remuneration
meeting of the Committee.
8th board
 Independent director Shea, Jia-Dong and Chuang, Chih-Chen are the related
(2018.07.10)
parties in the case.
 After they were excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
The 3rd
Agenda：It is regarding the distribution of the remuneration in the first-half year of
meeting of the 2018.
8th board
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan and Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao are
(2018.08.27)
related parties in this case.
 After they were excused from the discussion, other directors present in the
meeting passed without objection.
Agenda：It is regarding the traffic allowance and attendance fees of the Board and
other functional committees.
 After independent directors were excused from the discussion one by one, all
other directors present in the meeting agree without objection.
 After non-independent directors were excused from the discussion, all other
directors present in the meeting agree without objection.
The 6th
Agenda：It is regarding the proposal of distribution for the 2018 year-end
meeting of the remuneration which would calculate as 2-month salary to the basis.
8th board
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan is the related party in the case.
(2018.12.24)
 After Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan was excused from the discussion, other directors
present in the meeting passed without objection.

III. Enhancements to the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current and the most
recent year (e.g. the establishment of an Audit Committee, improving information
transparency etc.), and the progress of such enhancements:
(a) The Company formulated the “Rules for the Conduct of Directors Meetings” in
accordance with the Competent Authority’s regulation, which shall follow the rules. The
Company also formulated relevant measures of the corporate governance and disclosed
them on the Company’s website and the Market Observation Post System (MOPS).
(b) The Company shall establish the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee to
assist the Board of the Company to execute its responsibility, the detail description has
reported in the annual report, including the composition, duties, and operation.
(c) For enhancing the related corporate governance ability, the Company would suggest
constantly the suitable courses for directors and supervisors as reference.
(d) The Company shall approve the promotion list which provided by each department
according to the annual evaluation and position of employees who with potential and
talent. The promotion list for employees of manager grade and above shall be approved
by the Board of Directors.
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(e) The Company has appointed designated personnel to disclose relevant information and
materiality as required by the competent authority in MOPS for announcement. In
addition, the Company has also disclosed the continuing education of the directors and
independent directors, their attendance to Board meetings, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, and remunerations in MOPS.

3.3.2 The operation of the Audit Committee:
The Audit committee is consist of 3 independent directors which qualified by authorities
for their composition, duties and operation.
The operation of the Audit committee shall be mainly for the following purposes:
1. Supervision for Financial Statements of the Company.
2. Supervision for the election of Certified Public Accountants and whose independence
and performance
3. The effective implementation of the Company's internal control system.
4. The relevant laws and regulations for compliance of the Company.
5. The supervision for the management and control of the Company's existing or potential
risks.
And the authority of Audit committee shall be covered as following items:
1. Set or modify the internal control system and its effectiveness evaluation.
2. Set or modify “Procedures for the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets” of the
Company.
3. Matters which involved in Directors’ self-interest.
4. Matter which involved in major asset or derivatives transaction, significant loan,
endorsement or providing guarantee,
5. Publish/issue/private placement equity securities.
6. Authority for engagement, dismissal and remuneration of Certified Public
Accountants.
7. Authority for engagement and dismissal of financial and accounting managers and
internal auditing manager and approve annual financial report and semi-annual
financial report.
The Audit Committee has convened for 4 times (A) in the most recent year (2018).
The attendance of the independent directors is listed below:
Title
Independent
director
Independent
director
Independent
director
Independent
director

Name

Actual
attendance
(Ｂ)

Proxy
Attendance

Actual attendance
(%)(Ｂ/Ａ)(Note)

Remark

Shea, Jia-Dong

4

0

100%

Convener

Chuang,
Chih-Chen

4

0

100%

Chen, Kuo-Tay

3

0

100%

Chang,
Yao-Tasy

0

1

0%

Elected on
2018.05.24
Resigned on
2018.05.24

Note: (1) The date of resignation must be specified for Independent Directors who had resigned prior to the close of the financial year.
The percentage of actual attendance (%) should be calculated based on the number of Board of Directors meeting held during
active duty and the number of actual attendance.
(2) If a re-election of Independent Directors had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, the previous and the current
term must be listed; the remarks column must address the re-election date and whether the Independent Director was elected
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in the previous term, the new term, or both. The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated based on the number of
board of directors meetings held during active duty and the actual attendance.

Other remarks：
I. For the operation of the Audit Committee in any of the following circumstances, please
specify the date, term, the contents of the proposals, the resolution of the Audit Committee,
and the process of the opinions proposed by the Audit Committee:
(a) On issues stated in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

The Company’s handling
of the opinions of the
Audit Committee
The 2017 business report and financial report.
It presented to the Board
The proposal of 2016 earning distribution.
of Directors for
The proposal of arranging capital surplus
resolution and approved
Approved with by the consent of all the
The 24th meeting of transferred to common stock.
the consent of
 The effective implement declaration of 2017
attending directors.
the 7th Audit
the committee
Internal control system of the Company:
Committee
members on
Anti-Money Laundering and Combating the
(2018.3.26)
2018.03.14.
Financing of Terrorism.
 Amendment to the “Internal control system”
of the Company.
 The first-half of 2018 (Jan. 1st to June 30th)
It presented to the Board
Consolidated and Individual Financial
of Directors for
Approved with resolution and approved
Statement.
rd
The 3 meeting of the
the consent of
 The independence evaluation for the
by the consent of all the
the committee
8th Audit Committee
accountant of the Company in the 2018 fiscal
members on attending directors.
(2018.8.27)
year.
2018.08.14.
 Amendment to the “Internal control system”
of the Company.
Resolution of Board:
 The auditing expense for accountants in the
Strength the profession
2019 fiscal year of the Company.
of Internal auditors of the
The internal auditing plan in 2019 fiscal year Approved with
The 5th meeting of the
the consent of Company to prevent risk.
of the Company.
the committee  It presented to the
8th Audit Committee
The Company donate NT$ 5 million to
members on Board of Directors for
(2018.11.12)
Securities and Futures Institute, which was the 2018.10.31.
resolution and approved
additional business promotion fees returned by
by the consent of all the
Chinese National Futures Association.
attending directors.
Audit Committee
Meeting

Details of the relevant agendas and the
subsequent

Audit
Committee
resolution

(b) Except for the aforementioned matters, the other matters that are not resolved by the
Audit Committee must be resolved with the consent of more than two thirds of the board
directors: None
II. With respect to the avoidance of conflicting interest agendas, describe the names of
independent directors, details of the relevant agendas, reasons for avoiding conflicting
interest, and the voting decisions: None
III. The communications among the independent directors and the chief internal auditor and
the Certified Public Accounts (should include the significant matters, methods and
outcomes of communications, etc. for the Company’s financial, business operation affairs):
(a) Procedure for the Communications between Independent Directors and chief internal
auditor:
1. After reviewing internal audit report by managers, the copy of internal auditing report
will deliver to independent director for the second review.
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2. Chief internal auditor would present the current situation of audit affair, violations, and
solutions in Audit Committee and Board of Directors meeting quarterly. In addition, chief
internal auditor also communicate with independent directors for resolutions and the
implement status of audit report.
3. Independent directors could communicate directly with internal auditors via phone calls,
if they have any questions and suggestions to audit report. Also, they could discuss or
exchange opinions from each other in Audit Committee and Board of Directors meeting
quarterly.
(b) Procedure for the Communications between Independent Directors and Certified Public
Accountant (CPA):
1. The Company held regular Audit Committee meeting, Board of Directors meeting, the
review of half and annual financial report every half year, CFO and auditor would attend
the Audit Committee meeting for presenting the audit process of Financial Statements and
updating the related rules, and fully discuss with independent directors. The CPA also
attend the Board of Director meeting, discuss and describe the process with directors. In
2018, the CPA total attended 4 meetings of the Company, including 2 Audit Committee
meetings (Mar.14, 2018 and Aug.14, 2018) and 2 Board meetings (Mar.27, 2018 and
Aug.27, 2018), and audit according to the auditing standards for providing auditor’s
review report.
2. The independent directors could communicate directly with CFO via phone calls, if have
any questions or suggestions to financial reports or any corporate finance questions, they
also have the chance to communicate in the meeting or change opinions in Audit
Committee meeting and Board of Directors meetings.

3.3.3 Composition, Responsibilities and Operations of the Remuneration
Committee
The Remuneration Committee has been established, the composition, responsibilities and
operations is stated as below:
A. The Company's Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members who are all meet the
authorized qualifications, is responsible for the Board of Directors and provide
suggestions for Board’s discussion.
B. The duties of Remuneration Committee: The Remuneration Committee assists the
Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to form and review regularly the
Company’s compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs, and the evaluation
of the directors’ and executives’ compensation.
C. When Remuneration Committee perform duties shall follow below principles:
1. The performance evaluation and remuneration of directors and managers shall refer the
standard remuneration of competitors and also concern about the related rationality of
personal performance, company operating performance and future risk.
2. Directors and managers of the Company should not be guided to engage in behaviors
beyond the risk tolerance for the sake of remuneration.
3. The timing payment shall be determined by the characteristics of industries and the
business nature of the Company, especially for the proportion bonuses of short-term
performance and partial variable remuneration which paid to directors and senior
managers.
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(a) The information of Remuneration Committee members
Meets One of the Following Professional

Independence Criteria

Qualification Requirements, Together with at Least

（Note 2）

Five Years’ Work Experience

Criteria An instructor or

A judge, public
Has work
higher position in a prosecutor, attorney, experience in
department of
Certified Public
the areas of
commerce, law,
Accountant, or other commerce, law,
finance, accounting, professional or
finance, or
or other academic technical specialist
accounting, or
department related who has passed a
otherwise
to the business
national examination necessary for
needs of the
and been awarded a the business of
Company in a
certificate in a
the Company
public or private
profession necessary
junior college,
for the business of the
college or
Company
university

Title
（Note 1）

Name

Independent

Shea,

Director

Jia-Dong



Independent

Chuang,

Director

Chih-Chen



Number of
Other Public Remarks
Companies in
(Note 3)
Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an
8 Remuneration
Committee
Member

1

2

3

4

5

6

7



















0



















1

Convener

Committee

Li,


       
1
member
Shen-Yi
Note 1: Identity is known as director, independent director or others.
Note 2: place a "" in the box below if the member met the following conditions during the time of active duty and two years prior to the
elected date.
(1) Not employed by the Company or any of its affiliated companies.
(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or its affiliates Except for the independent directors that are appointed by the Company
or the parent company and subsidiaries in accordance with this Law or the local law.
(3) Does not hold more than 1% of the Company’s outstanding shares in his/her own name or under the name of spouse, underage
children, or any other person; nor is any party listed herein one of the ten largest natural person shareholders of the Company.
(4) Not a spouse, relative of second degree, or direct kin of third degree or closer to persons described in criteria 1~3.
(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of the Company's corporate shareholder holding more than 5% of the company's outstanding
capital; nor a director, supervisor, or employee to any of the top 5 corporate shareholders.
(6) Not a director, supervisor, manager, or shareholder with more than 5% ownership interest in any company or institution that has
financial or business relationship with the Company.
(7) Not a professional, business owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager of any sole-proprietorship, partnership, company, or
institution providing commercial, legal, financial, or accounting services or consultations to the Company or any of its affiliated
companies; nor a spouse to anyone listed herein.
(8) Does not meet any descriptions stated in Article 30 of The Company Act.

(b) Functionality of the Remuneration Committee
(1) The Company's Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members.
(2) Duration of service: from July 10th, 2018 to May 23th, 2021.
The Remuneration Committee held 7 meetings (A) in the last year (2018).
Details of members' eligibility and attendance are as follows:
Title

Name

Independent
Director

Shea,

Independent
Director
Committee
member

Jia-Dong
Chuang,
Chih-Chen
Li,
Shen-Yi

Actual
attendance
(B)

Proxy
Attendance

Actual attendance
(%) (B/A) (Note)

7

0

100%

7

0

100%

7

0

100%

Remarks
Convener

Note:
(1)The date of resignation is specified for members of the Remuneration Committee who had resigned prior to the close of the financial year.
The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated based on the number of Remuneration Committee meetings held and the number of
meetings actually attended during active duty.
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(2)If a re-election of Remuneration Committee members had taken place prior to the close of the financial year, members of both the
previous and the current remuneration Committee are listed; in which case, the remarks column would specify whether the committee
member was elected in the previous board, the new board, or both. The percentage of actual attendance (%) is calculated based on the
number of Remuneration Committee meetings held and the number of meetings actually attended during active duty.

For the operation of the Remuneration Committee in the recent year, specify the date, term,
the contents of the proposals, the resolution, and the process of the opinions proposed by the
Remuneration Committee is as following table:
Remuneration
Committee Meeting

The 22th meeting of
the 3rd
Remuneration
Committee
(2018.01.18)

The 23th meeting of
the 3rd Remuneration
Committee
(2018.02.05)

The 24th meeting of
the 3rd Remuneration
Committee
(2018.03.14)

Remuneration
Details of the relevant content/ resolution/ and the subsequent
committee member
in attendance
Shea, Jia-Dong
1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the review of the 2017 year-end
performance for employees of manager grade and above.
Chuang, Chih-Chen
 After the related managers were excused from the discussion, all other Li, Shen-Yi
members present in the meeting agree without objection.
2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the proposal of distribution for the
2017 year-end remuneration which would calculate as 2-month salary to
the basis.
Approved with the consent of the committee members.
3. Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of the 2017 year-end
remuneration for employees of manager grade and above.
 After the related managers were excused from the discussion, all other
members present in the meeting agree without objection.
4. Cause of Action: The proposal of the Company’s subsidy, CSC Futures
(HK) Ltd., would pay the monthly traffic allowance to Mr. Sun,
Tien-Shan.
 After the Board meeting of CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. approved, it will
implement on Jan. 2018.
Shea, Jia-Dong
1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of the 2017 festival
remuneration for employees of manager grade and above.
Chuang, Chih-Chen
 After the related managers were excused from the discussion, all other Li, Shen-Yi
members present in the meeting agree as below:
A. The payment amount for the case did not meet the “Guidelines for
the distribution of festival bonus”.
B. For the case, it still disburse as the payment amount as proposed.
C. The difference will be discussed on the Board meeting and try to
compensate.
2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the 2017 bonus distribution for the
Executive officer Yang, Yau-Yu.
 To consult with all committee members and approve by adjusting
attachment.
1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the sales bonus distribution for Taipei Shea, Jia-Dong
and Taichung sales departments.
Chuang, Chih-Chen
To consult with all committee members and approve by modifying
Li, Shen-Yi
description 2.
2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the promotion list for employees of
manager grade and above in 2018.
 To consult with all committee members and approve by modifying the
description.
3. Cause of Action: It is regarding the employees’ and directors’
remuneration distribution in 2017.
 To consult with all committee members and approve by modifying
description 1.
4. Cause of Action: It is regarding the appointment of the manager for
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risk management department.
 To consult with all committee members and approve by modifying the
case.
5. Cause of Action: It is regarding the appointment of the manager for
proprietary department.
 To consult with all committee members and approve by modifying the
case.
Shea, Jia-Dong
1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the suggestion of remuneration
adjustment for employees of manager grade and above in 2018.
Chuang, Chih-Chen
Approved with the consent of the committee members.
Li, Shen-Yi
2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of directors’
remuneration in 2017.
After Independent Director Chuang, Chih-Chen and Shea, Jia-Dong
were excused from the discussion one by one, all other members present
in the meeting agree without objection.
The case will be submitted and reported on 2018 shareholder’s meeting.
The 25th meeting of
3. Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of employees’
the 3rd Remuneration
remuneration (cash) in 2017.
Committee
 After related managers were excused from the discussion, the case will
(2018.04.27)
be submitted to the Board of directors meeting.
4. Cause of Action: It is regarding the appointment of the manager for
Advisory department.
Approved with the consent of the committee members. The case will be
submitted to the Board of directors meeting.
5. Cause of Action: It is regarding the suggestion of remuneration
adjustment for Yang, Yau-Yu.
 Approved with the consent of the committee members. The case will be
submitted to the Board of directors meeting.
1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the traffic allowance and attendance Shea, Jia-Dong
fees for the Board meeting and other functional committees.
Chuang, Chih-Chen
Regarding the traffic allowance and attendance fees for Independent
Li, Shen-Yi
Director, after Independent Director Chuang, Chih-Chen and Shea,
Jia-Dong were excused from the discussion one by one, all other
members present in the meeting agree without objection. The case will be
The 1st meeting of the
submitted to Board of Directors meeting.
4th Remuneration
Regarding the traffic allowance and attendance fees for non-director
Committee
committee member, Director Li, Shen-Yi was executed from the
(2018.08.14)
discussion, and all other members present in the meeting agree without
objection. The case will be submitted to Board of Directors meeting.
2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of the remuneration in
the first-half year of 2018.
 Approved with the consent of the committee members. The case will be
submitted to the Board of directors meeting.
1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the change of the manager of Taichung Shea, Jia-Dong
Branch.
Chuang, Chih-Chen
The 2nd meeting of the
Approved with the consent of the committee members.
Li, Shen-Yi
4th Remuneration
2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the amendment of “Guidelines of
Committee
bonus distribution for advisory department” of the Company.
(2018.09.27)
 Approved with the consent of the committee members. The case will be
submitted to the Board of directors meeting.
Shea, Jia-Dong
The 3rd meeting of the 1. Cause of Action: It is regarding the proposal of distribution for the
4th Remuneration 2018 year-end remuneration which would calculate as 2-month salary to Chuang, Chih-Chen
Committee
the basis.
Li, Shen-Yi
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(2018.12.14)

 Approved with the consent of the committee members. The case will be
submitted to the Board of directors meeting.
2. Cause of Action: It is regarding the stipulation of “Guidelines of bonus
distribution for derivatives department”.
 Approved with the consent of the committee members. The case will be
submitted to the Board of Directors meeting.
3. Cause of Action: It is regarding the appointment for the manager, vice
manager and other supervisors of Derivatives department.
 Approved with the consent of the committee members. The case will be
submitted to the Board of directors meeting.

Other mentionable items:
I. In the event where the Remuneration Committee's proposal is rejected or amended in a
Board of Directors meeting, please describe the date and session of the meeting, details of
the agenda, the board's resolution, and how the Company had handled the Remuneration
Committee's proposals (describe the differences and reasons, if any, should the Board of
Directors approve a solution that was more favorable than the one proposed by the
Remuneration Committee.
II. Should any member object or express qualified opinions to the resolution made by the
Remuneration Committee, whether on-record or in writing, please describe the date and
session of the meeting, details of the agenda, the entire members' opinions, and how their
opinions were addressed.
Remuneration Committee Meeting
Board of Directors
Details of the relevant content/
Details of the relevant content/
resolution and the subsequent
resolution and the subsequent
The 23th meeting of the 3rd Remuneration Committee The 24th meeting of the 7th board (2018.03.26)
(2018.02.05)
Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of the
Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of the 2017 festival remuneration for employees of manager
2017 festival remuneration for employees of manager grade and above.
grade and above.
Resolution:
Independent Director Shea, Jia-Dong:
Resolution:
1. The distribution amount of this case does not meet 1. This case should be for discussion instead of
confirmation. I hereby restates the Remuneration
the “Guidelines for festival bonus distribution”.
Committee did not approve this case.
2. Because the Lunar New Year is coming, we
temporarily decide to distribute as it is currently 2. The purpose of amending the “Guidelines for
festival bonus distribution” last time was mainly for
planned to distribute.
determining precisely that the range of bonus
3. The difference shall be discussed in the Board
contribution ratio shall be set between 8 and 12%.
Meeting which may discuss about compensation.
Therefore, according to Article 3-3 of “Guidelines
for festival bonus distribution” about the calculation
method of bonus, the amount of bonus should be
amount payable but not amount contributable.
3. This case does not comply with the Guidelines, and
compliance department should provide
explanations.
4. Remuneration committee considered that the
festival bonus distribution amount of 2017 was
inconsistent with the Guidelines, so it resolved to
compensate the difference. Although the Board of
Directors has authority to overrule or modify the
resolution of Remuneration committee, but I still
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request such modify should be pursuant to the
related rules. I also hereby remind the Company and
Board of directors of the risks from employees’
complaint.
5. The Guidelines only set flexibility to upwards adjust
contribution ratio, but lack of flexibility to make
downward adjustment. Thus, it is not
comprehensive and the Remuneration Committee
has reached the resolution of modification.
6. Before modifying the Guidelines, I assert the
Company shall compensate the amount of
difference according to the current Guidelines.
 Chairman Sun, Tien-Shan: Employees’ 2017
Festival remuneration has increased 20~30%
compared to the previous year, which is consistent
with the percentage of the Company’s profit
growth, and most of employees are satisfied with
their remuneration.
 Independent Director Chuang, Chih-Chen: In the
meeting of Remuneration Committee, I found
festival remuneration of 2017 was obviously more
than 2016 and 2015. It could be agreed that
festival remuneration of 2017 can be distributed as
proposed, but I still suggest the Guidelines be
modified for more precision.
 Vice president of Administration Department
Chang, Pei-Wen: The festival bonus remuneration
originates from group remuneration which belongs
to welfare principle and it differs from the sales
bonus. The “Guidelines for festival bonus
distribution” provide the contribution ratio and its
standard, and after calculation it is not necessary to
be equal to the amount for distribution. The case
this time has no difference from being handled in
past years. Even if the contribution amount
excesses the top (12%), it should also be adjusted
back to the range provided in Guidelines.
 Chief Compliance Officer Chen, Chi-Hao: The
concepts of contribution and distribution are
different, and the current Guidelines do not
connect them together. However, from the view of
consequence, the total amount distributed
conforms to the principle of contribution ratio of
8%~12%.
 Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan, Vice Chairman Mr.
Chia, Chung-Tao, and other officers are the related
parties in this case and have been excused from its
discussion for reaching conclusion. Director Wang,
Jiunn-Chih acts as the Chairman in this case.
Resolution: Approved with the consent of the Board
members, except Independent Director Shea, Jia-Dong.
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The 24th meeting of the 3rd Remuneration
The 24th meeting of the 7th board (2018.03.26)
committee (2018.03.14)
Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of
Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of
directors’ and employees’ remuneration in 2017.
directors’ and employees’ remuneration in 2017.
Approved with the consent of directors.
Committee member Li, Shen-Yi suggested that the
weight percentage of calculating independent directors’
remuneration should equal to directors’.
Approved with the consent of the committee members.
The 3rd meeting of the 4th Remuneration
The 6th meeting of the 6th board (2018.12.24)
committee (2018.12.14)
Cause of Action: It is regarding the stipulation of
Cause of Action: It is regarding the stipulation of
“Guidelines of bonus distribution for Derivatives
“Guidelines of bonus distribution for Derivatives
department”.
department”.
Approved with the consent of directors temporarily.
This case will be will be modified recently and discussed
1. After discussion and the explanation from
next time.
Chairman, the consent of the committee members
agree that approved temporarily and submitted to the
Board of Directors meeting.
2. This case will be discussed at next Remuneration
Committee meeting and the guidelines will be
modified.
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(2) Does the Company possess the
list of its major shareholders as well
as the ultimate owners of those
shares?

2. Shareholding structure &
shareholders’ rights
(1) Does the Company establish an
internal operating procedure to deal
with shareholders’ suggestions,
doubts, disputes and litigations, and
implement based on the procedure?

1. Does the company establish and
disclose the Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles based on
“Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”?

Evaluation Item

V

V

(2) The Company executed the shareholding declaration confirmation to
authorities according to the register of shareholders monthly and updated
information of major shareholders.

(1) The Company has designated spokesperson and deputy spokesperson to
respond investors, the contact information could be found from our official
website. The Company also established the Legal Department to handle
shareholders’ suggestions, doubts, disputes and litigation.

None

None

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
Yes No
Abstract Illustration
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons
V
The Company has established the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles based
None
on “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies”. The information has been disclosed the Company’s website.
https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw/Capitalgroup/organization.asp?xy=15&xt=1

Implementation Status (Note 1)

3.3.4 Corporate Governance Implementation Status and Deviations from “the Corporate Governance Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”
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(1) Member diversification is considered by the Board members. Factors taken into
account include, but are not limited to gender, age, cultures, educational
background, race, professional experience skills (such us Law, Accounting,
Finance, Marketing, Technology), knowledge and terms of service. The Board
objectively chooses candidates to meet the goal of member diversification.
The member of BOD should possess the ability of financial analysis, operating
management, crisis management, industry knowledge, international outlook,
leadership and decision making. Except where the Competent Authority has
granted approval, the spousal relationship and a familial relationship within the
second degree of kinship may not exist among more than half of a company's
directors. The Company sets 7 Board of directors (6 male directors and 1
female director), including 3 independent directors and elected by the
shareholder’s meeting on May of 2018. Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan, Director
Wang, Jiunn-Chih, Liu, Ching–Tsun, and Lee, Yi-Hui are all with the

(4)To protect shareholders’ rights and fairly treat shareholders, the Company has
established the “Guidelines for Account Opening and Futures Trading by Insiders”
to forbid insiders trading on undisclosed information. The Company has also
strongly advocated these rules in order to prevent any violations.

V

(4) Does the Company establish
internal rules against insiders tradi
with undisclosed information?

3. Composition and Responsibilities
of the Board of Directors
(1) Does the Board develop and
implement a diversified policy for
the composition of its members?

(3) Establishing the firewall system and information system difference in order to
implement total risk control with respect to subsidiaries.

Abstract Illustration

V

Yes No

(3) Does the Company establish and
execute the risk management and
firewall system within its
conglomerate structure?

Evaluation Item

Implementation Status (Note 1)

None

None

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons
None
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(4)Does the Company regularly
evaluate the independence of CPAs?

(3) Does the Company establish a
standard to measure the performance
of the Board, and implement it
annually?

(2) Does the Company voluntarily
establish other functional
committees in addition to the
Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee?

Evaluation Item

V

(2) In order for the sound supervision and reinforcement of management, the
Company is plan to establish the Nomination and Risk Management Committee
in addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. These
functional committees shall be responsible for the Board of Directors in the
future.

profession of operating management, financial & accounting, legal professional,
international market and leadership strategy in futures and securities industry.
Independent Director Mr. Shea, Jia-Dong was vice-president of Central Bank
and finance minister. Independent Director Mr. Chen, Kuo-Tay was a professor
of accounting department in Taiwan national university, and Independent
Director Mr. Chuang, Chih-Chen is a current practicing lawyer. The detail
background information of Directors listed on Page 9~10.

Abstract Illustration

(4) The Company evaluates the independence and competency of CPAs annually
with the scale and reputation of accounting firm, the rotation of accountant, and
constant engagement service revenue. On the other hand, the violation affair, the
loss of independence and the service quality of auditing and tax review of CPAs
will also be considered. After the 2nd meeting of the 2nd Audit Committee and
the 3rd meeting of the 8th Board of Directors approved, CPAs of KPMG Taiwan

(3) The Company hasn’t formulated related rules and procedures for measuring the
Board’s performance, but evaluate with the attendance status of the Board of
V
Directors meetings and corporation governance training courses and conducts it
annually.

V

Yes No

Implementation Status (Note 1)

None

None

None

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons
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4. Does the Company set up a
corporate governance unit or appoint
personnel responsible for corporate
governance matters (including but
not limited to providing information
for directors and supervisors to
perform their functions, handling
work related to meetings of the
board of directors and the
shareholders' meetings, filing
company registration and changes to
company registration, and producing
minutes of board meetings and
shareholders’ meetings)?

Evaluation Item

V

Yes No

The Company appropriate that the chief of administration department Mr. Chen,
Wen-Tsay is responsible for handling and monitoring corporate governance related
affairs. Mr. Chen is qualified with his rich experience in securities and futures
industry and above 20 years management experience in public offering companies.
The mainly duties of administration department for monitoring corporate
governance are including convene the shareholders meeting, Board of Directors
meeting and remuneration committee meeting…etc., announce the significant
information, and provide the necessary materials for directors to execute their
business. Arranging related courses for directors, the chief who is responsible for
corporate governance affairs, or any related employees, and reporting the status.
In addition, the chief of legal compliance department is responsible for providing
the latest operating business rules to directors and assisting directors to obey the
rules. The chief of internal auditing department is mainly responsible for
supervising the stipulation and implement status of the Company’s internal audit
policy.
The key of implementation for related corporate governance affairs in 2018 was as
following:
The implementation status of the Board of Directors meetings, please refer to
page26~28.
The implementation status of Audit committee, please refer to page30.
The composition, responsibilities and operations of Remuneration committee,

“Lee, Feng-Hui” and “Chung, Tan-Tan” are qualified to be our accounts.
Please refer the below website for detail information of account.
https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw/Capitalgroup/accountant/default.asp?xy=19
&xt=1

Abstract Illustration

Implementation Status (Note 1)

None

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons
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7. Information Disclosure
(1) Does the Company have a
corporate website to disclose both
financial standings and the status of
corporate governance?

6. Does the Company appoint a
professional shareholder service
agency to deal with shareholder

5. Does the Company establish a
communication channel and build a
designated section on its website for
stakeholders (including but not
limited to shareholders, employees,
customers, and suppliers), as well as
handle all the issues they care for in
terms of corporate social
responsibilities?

Evaluation Item

V

V

V

Yes No

(1) The Company has set up a website
(https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw/Capitalgroup/default.asp?xy=1&xt=1) to disclose
information regarding the Company’s financials, business and corporate
governance status.

please refer to page33~35.
The implementation status and related actions of integrity performance, please refer
to page60~64.
The Company established the spokesperson, investment relations and customer
service center, the detailed contact information has been disclosed on company
website offering a channel for investors to provide suggestions. In addition, the
website also established a section “Stakeholder Area” to create the maximum
benefit, ensuring that various interested parties have channels to communicate with
the Company. The contact information is as below:
‧Spokesperson name: Lee, Wen-Chu (President)
TEL:(02)2700-2888 e-mail: marklee@futures.capital.com.tw
‧Deputy Spokesperson name: Chen, Wen-Tsay (Senior executive vice president)
TEL:(02)2700-2888 e-mail:dan_chan@capital.com.tw
‧Customer Service Center TEL:02-412-8878
‧share administration agent TEL:02-2703-5000
The Company designates the share administration agent of Capital Securities Corp.
to deal with shareholder affairs.

Abstract Illustration

Implementation Status (Note 1)

None

None

None

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons
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8. Is there any other important
information to facilitate a better
understanding of the company’s
corporate governance practices (e.g.,
including but not limited to
employee rights, employee wellness,
investor relations, supplier relations,
rights of stakeholders, directors’ and
supervisors’ training records, the
implementation of risk management
policies and risk evaluation
measures, the implementation of
customer relations policies, and
purchasing insurance for directors
and supervisors)?

(2) Does the Company have other
information disclosure channels (e.g.
building an English website,
appointing designated people to
handle information collection and
disclosure, creating a spokesman
system, webcasting investor
conferences)?

Evaluation Item

V

V

Yes No

(1) Employee rights: The Company has a comprehensive set of human resource
management rules in place, including "Workplace Sexual Harassment
Prevention, Compliant and Disciplinary Guidelines" and "Notes on Use of
Employee Opinion Box." Employees are encouraged to raise opinions that are
helpful of improving the Company's business activities, operating procedures,
administrative measures or policies, or highlight misconducts and violations.
(2) Employee care: In addition to offering statutory leave of absence and
applying labor insurance and national health insurance, the Company
also provides employees with a broad variety of insurance packages at
discounted premium (such as accident insurance, life insurance, medical
insurance, savings insurance etc.), as well as wedding/compassionate subsidies
and emergency aid. A series of motivational activities are being organized to
raise employees' loyalty towards the Company.
(3) Investor relations and stakeholders' interests: The Company has spokesperson,
investor relations contact, a Customer Service Center, and a "Stakeholders"
section on its website to gather opinions from stakeholders.

(2) The Company has disclosure the related information to MOPS.
a. The Company has already build an English Website.
https://www.capital.com.tw/en_V7/futures/aboutfutures.aspx
b. The designated appropriate departments are responsible for information
collecting and disclosing respectively.
c. Establishing the spokesperson, investor relations and disclosing the contact
information on company website.
d. The information and video of conference is all disclosure on company
website or MOPS.

Abstract Illustration

Implementation Status (Note 1)

None

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons
None
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Evaluation Item
Yes No

(7)

(6)

(5)

(4)

Information of the above contact windows and contact methods have already
been disclosed on the Company's website. We are dedicated to maximizing
stakeholders' interest, and maintaining open and diverse communication
channels for discovering problems and solutions.
Supplier relations: The Company assesses its suppliers for records of
environmental or social misconduct prior to establish business
relationship, and avoids dealing with suppliers that operate against the
Company's social responsibility policies. All contracts signed between the
Company and major suppliers outline the corporate social responsibilities that
the two parties are bound to comply. The Company may terminate its contract
at any time if suppliers commit any violation that causes significant impact to
the environment or society from which product or service is sourced.
Directors' ongoing education: All of the Company's directors have completed
the required number of training hours stated in "Directions for the
Implementation of Continuing Education for Directors and Supervisors of
TWSE Listed and TPEx Listed Companies." The training courses of 7
directors (including independent directors) was total 68 hours in 2018.
Risk management policies and risk assessment standards:
The Company has implemented robust "Risk Management Policy" and risk
assessment standards. Risk Management Committee meetings are held on a
quarterly basis. The Company has risk management units that make regular
reports to the management on risk-adjusted returns and capital adequacy.
Customer policy: The Company has a set of "Fair Customer Treatment
Guidelines" that cover many aspects of its business activities including fair
contract, duty of care and loyalty, proper presentation in advertising and
business solicitation, product and service suitability, duty of notification and

Abstract Illustration

Implementation Status (Note 1)

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons
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Yes No

Abstract Illustration

Deviations from
“the Corporate
Governance
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPExList
ed Companies”
and Reasons

disclosure, sale of complex high-risk products, balanced performance and
compensation, whistleblower protection, and sales employees' professionalism.
(8) The Company arrange educational training courses for senior managers to
cultivate their decision making and management ability. In terms of promotion
policy, the promotion list for employees who below manager grade will be
provided by each department according to their performance and position; as
for the promotion list for employees of manager grade and above will be
approved by the Board of Directors.
Except for President, there are three senior executive vice presidents in charge
of supervising the sales development, financial and administration, and market
making sales of the Company respectively.
(9) The Capital Group shall purchase the Directors Liability Insurance for each
director every year.
9. Please explain the improvements made, based on the latest Corporate Governance Evaluation results published by TWSE Corporate Governance
Center, and propose enhancement measures for any issues that are yet to be rectified. (Not applicable as the Company is not one of the evaluated
subjects.)
1. The Articles of Association of the Company states that the electronic voting system as one of the channels for the voting rights at
shareholder’s meeting, and change the method for director selection to the candidate nomination system.
2. Shareholder’s meeting in 2018 adopts the electronic voting rights.
3. 2018 Shareholder’s meeting: Uploading Notice of meeting in English version, more than 1/2 directors in attendance (including 2 independent
directors, convener of audit committee and remuneration committee), electronic voting right system, resolution case by case, uploading all
outcomes of resolutions to the application system on the same day.
4. More than 1/2 remuneration committee members are independent directors.

Evaluation Item

Implementation Status (Note 1)
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(2) Does the Company have the CSR
education and training arranged on a
regular basis?

1. Implementation of sound corporate
governance
(1) Does the Company have the CSR
policies or systems established and the
implementation effect reviewed?

Assessment items

(1) The Company has implemented the “Corporate social responsibility policy”
and “Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles” within the
organization according to “Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice
Principles for TWSE/GRSM Listed Companies” and “Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles for Futures Commission Merchants”; both of which
have been disclosed on the Company's website and on the Market
Observation Post System.
(2) The Company organizes the following training activities in relation to social
responsibilities:
1. The Company's "Ethical Behavior Guidelines" clearly outline the ethics and
obligations that directors, managers and employees are bound to obey. The
Ethical Behavior Guidelines specifies how employees and the Company
should interact with the public and stakeholders.
2. The Company requires all employees to sign a commitment to "Capital
Financial Group Employee Behavior Policy" and integrity principles when
carrying out business activities.
3. The Company organizes orientation training for new recruits. The
orientation not only incorporates the "Ethical Behavior Guidelines," but
includes an overview of the Company's business philosophy, vision,
management approach, policy, and ideals toward corporate social
responsibilities. June and December of every year will arrange the Corporate

V

Summary description (Note 2)

Actual governance (Note 1)

V

Yes No

3.3.5 Fulfillment of social responsibilities:

None

None

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-List
ed Companies
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2.Fostering a sustainable
environment
(1)Is the Company committed to
achieving efficient use of resources,

(4) Does the Company have a
reasonable salary and remuneration
policy set-up, have the employee
performance evaluation system been
combined with the corporate social
responsibility policies and have a clear
and effective reward and punishment
system been established?

(3) Does the Company have a specific
(or part-time) unit set up to promote
corporate social responsibility, have
the management been authorized by
the Board of Directors to handle
matters and report the processing
results to the Board of Directors?

Assessment items

V

V

V

Yes No

(1) The Company is a futures trading service provider and operates in a low
pollution industry. It does not manufacture any product, and not is it required
to recycle packaging materials for the products sold. The Company is

(4)The Company has set the “Rules Governing Performance,” “Rules Governing
Bonus Distribution,” “Regulations Governing Remuneration to
Salespersons,” “Rules Governing the Distribution of Bonus to the
Executives,” and “Guidelines for Employee Incentive and Disciplinary Act”
to have employee performance evaluation and incentive and disciplinary
action and corporate social responsibility policy integrated and implemented
effectively.
The Company also has reward and disciplinary rules in place, and convenes
personnel review meetings on a regular basis to assess employees'
performance in relation to CSR issues.

social responsibility training course to every employee on our on-line
training platform “E-learning”.
(3) President of the Company was appointed the role of CSR Officer, and
administration department was assigned the duty to assist corporate social
responsibilities. The role of the Administration department in regards to
corporate social responsibilities is to assist in practical actions. In addition to
establish/amend corporate social responsibility policies, Administration
department is also responsible for the preparation of annual CSR reports. The
CSR plans has been reported and progress during Board meetings and
shareholder meetings on March 26th, 2018 and March 27th, 2019, please refer
to page53~59.

Summary description (Note 2)

Actual governance (Note 1)

None

None

None

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-List
ed Companies

- 48 -

(3)Is the Company aware of how
climate changes affect its business
activities? Are there any actions taken
to measure and reduce greenhouse gas
emission and energy use?

(2)Has the Company developed an
appropriate environmental
management system, given its
distinctive characteristics?

and using renewable materials that
produce less impact on the
environment?

Assessment items

V

V

Yes No

(3) The Company in support of the regulations and government policies
promotes environmental protection policy of power-saving, water-saving,
and energy conservation, including turn-off lights when it is necessary, water
and paper saving, electronic billing, self-sufficient tableware, non-smoking
indoor, and regular disinfection and pest control.

(2) The Company continues to implement energy and carbon reduction policies
throughout the organization. It is our hope to minimize consumption of
Earth's resources, and create an environmental friendly corporate culture by
bringing green into our service. Furthermore, the Company is a futures
trading service provider and not a manufacturer. It produces no pollution to
the environment, and hence does not require certification for ISO 14001 or
any environmental management system of similar nature. The Administration
department is responsible for the environmental management system.

dedicated improving the efficiency of all resources used. It has been active in
the promotion of a paper-less environment by introducing new measures
such as: e-statement, e-bulletin, e-signature, and use of electronic
presentation in meetings. Employees are encouraged to make double-sided
photocopies, and a recycling tray has been placed near all photocopying
machines to reduce the use of paper. The Company purchases environmental
friendly toners, and all empty toners are recycled by the original
manufacturer to avoid pollution. Recycling bins have been placed at each
floor to sort waste and reduce wastage, and thereby ensure the sustainability
of resources.

Summary description (Note 2)

Actual governance (Note 1)

None

None

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-List
ed Companies

- 49 -

(3)Does the Company provide
employees with a safe and healthy
work environment? Are employees

(2)Does the Company have means
through which employees may raise
complaints? Are employee complaints
being handled properly?

3.Enforcement of public welfare
(1)Has the Company developed its
policies and procedures in accordance
with laws and International Bill of
Human Rights?

Assessment items

V

V

V

Yes No

(3) The Company offers employees a clean environment to work in, and
provides them with the protective equipment needed to ensure their safety

(2) The Company provides all managers with an electronic mailbox, which
employees may use to make recommendations and express opinions.
Furthermore, the Company has established an opinion mailbox that is open
to all employees, and implemented "Employee Opinion Mailbox Usage
Guidelines" to raise employees' awareness towards risk management,
improving operating procedures, and reporting misconducts.

(1) All terms of employment agreed between the Company and employees,
such as salary, leave of absence, pension, occupational hazard
compensation etc., are compliant with "Labor Standards Act." They exist to
protect employees' rights and facilitate proper personnel management as
well as harmonic labor-management relations. The Company has
established "Workplace Sexual Harassment Prevention, Grievance and
Disciplinary Policy" in compliance with "Act of Gender Equality in
Employment." The Company has specified in its "Work Rules" that all
employees are covered by Labor Insurance and National Health Insurance.
Insurance premiums for the above coverage are subsidized by the Company
according to law.
Decisions concerning workers' recruitment, interview, employment,
assignment, appraisal, promotion, training, and compensation are made
without discrimination whatsoever, whether in terms of gender, sexual
preference, age, ethnicity, or religion.

Summary description (Note 2)

Actual governance (Note 1)

None

None

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-List
ed Companies
None
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(5)Has the Company implemented an
effective training program that helps
employees develop skills over their
career?

(4)Does the Company have means to
communicate with employees on a
regular basis, and inform them of
operational changes that maybe of
significant impact?

trained regularly on safety and health
issues?

Assessment items

V

V

Yes No

(5) The Company has implemented the following programs to help employees
developing skills over their career:
Specialist training - The Company offers a comprehensive training
program that supports employees of all levels in various stages of their
career development. There is a broad variety of channels that employees
may utilize to learn in a timely manner. The talent development system
works not only in favor of employees' careers, but supports the Company's
growth as well. Orientation, specialization training, management reserve
training, management growth training, and seminars hosted by renowned
experts and scholars on the topic of finance are just some of the courses
organized by the Company. In addition, Capital Finance College was
founded in 2007 to nurture the Company's managerial staff.
The Company trains its sales force intensively using nation-wide video
conferencing and broadcast to help them develop professional qualities and
skills. Many e-learning courses have also been designed to enhance
outcome of the learning process. By utilizing digital means, employees are

(4) The Company engages employees in regular labor-management meetings
for the purpose of enhancing working relationship and cooperation.
Information concerning the Company's policies, systems, welfare and news
are published on the intranet. The intranet also has an e-bulletin for timely
announcements of material information.

and health. The work environment is being inspected regularly, whereas
employee health checkups are organized and the health consultation on a
regular basis, please refer to page103~105.

Summary description (Note 2)

Actual governance (Note 1)

None

None

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-List
ed Companies
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(8)Does the Company evaluate
suppliers' environment and social
conducts before commencing business
relationships?

(7)Has the Company complied with
laws and international standards with
regards to the marketing and labeling
of products and services?

(6)Has the Company implemented
consumer protection and grievance
policies with regards to its research,
development, procurement, production,
operating and service activities?

Assessment items

(6) The Company has "Dispute Resolution Guidelines", "Fair Customer
Treatment Guidelines “and “Operating procedures for confidential reporting
cases” in place, while business departments are guided by numerous
procedures and policies on matters such as: KYC, protection of customers'
interests, standard operations, dispute resolution etc.
For the protection of customers' interests, the Company provides effective
channels of communication that customers may use to raise complaints.
Customer service hotline: 412-8878 (add prefix 02 when dialing with
mobile)
Email: cs@capital.com.tw
Counter: Available at all business offices of the Company
(7) The Company is a futures commission merchant and has acted to protect
the interests of traders in accordance with the relevant futures commission
merchant laws and regulations and the “Guidelines for Promotional
Materials and Advertisement”.
(8) The Company conducts prudent assessments on the capacity of all new and
existing suppliers before deciding whether to begin or continue business
relationship. The supplier’s environmental and social record would be fully
considered and to be accordance.

V

V

able to learn and grow anytime, anywhere.
Employees are encouraged to obtain financial certifications, and the
Company has introduced a broad variety of incentives including
registration fee subsidies to support their efforts.

Summary description (Note 2)

V

Yes No

Actual governance (Note 1)

None

None

None

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-List
ed Companies
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Yes No

Summary description (Note 2)

Deviation and
causes of deviation
from the Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Best Practice
Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-List
ed Companies

7.Describe the criteria undertaken by any institution to certify the Company's CSR report:
The Company's CSR report is not certified by any institution.

6.Other information useful to the understanding of corporate social responsibilities:
The Company published its 2017 corporate social responsibility report in June 2018. The Company has also created a CSR section on its website to
disclose relevant and reliable information concerning the CSR report. Stakeholders are able raise queries via phone, website, or email, and the
Company will respond to such queries individually.

(9)Is the Company entitled to terminate
V
supply agreement at any time with a
(9) All suppliers that the Company chooses to sign agreements need to be
major supplier? Has the supplier been
None
reviewed for history of environmental and social impact, in order to
found to have violated its corporate
determine whether the Company should begin or continue supply
Social responsibilities and caused
relationship.
significant impacts against the
environment or the society?
V
4. Enhanced information disclosure
The Company disclosed relevant and reliable CSR information on our official
None
(1)Has the Company disclosed
website and at the Market Observation Post System, please check the below link
relevant and reliable CSR
as the reference.
https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw/Capitalgroup/activities.asp?xy=16&xt=1
information on its website and
at the Market Observation Post
System?
5. If the Company has established CSR principles in accordance with "Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies," please describe its current practices and any deviations from the Best Practice Principles:
The code of conduct has been implemented throughout the Company, there is no deviation from the Best Practice Principles.

Assessment items

Actual governance (Note 1)
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Employees

Stakeholder

4. Investment and wealth
management seminars/education-al
training.

3. Talent training through Capital
Financial University.

2. Year-end conference (dinner, song
and dance entertainment and lucky
draw)

1. Regular health checks for
employees.

2018 planned programs and
directions

4. In order to cultivate various professional talents, according to the different career stages and organizational
development needs of personnel at all levels, the Company plan a comprehensive training plan and provide
colleagues with timely and diversified learning channels, so as to achieve win-win benefits of organizational
talent development and personal career development.
A. I do, use the image to add points! How to achieve the Win-win images for personal and company.
B. I do, create Win-win performance! How to provide the good quality of service and raise the customer
satisfaction.
C. I do, dare to change! Learning the internet marketing and raising the sales revenue.
D. Social media group operation is necessary to learn. How to use cell phone to take perfect pictures.
E. Using computer to generate some innovations and design ideas.
F. Connecting life and video, and learning how to use the storyboard to tell stories.

1. The employees who haven’t take regular health checks in 2017 yet, could take between Jan. ~Feb. in 2018,
there a total of 26 people participated. To sign a contract with the Health Center to provide staff with
preferential health check programs.
2. 2018 Year-end conference (dinner, song and dance entertainment and lucky draw) The year-end conference
and dinner was held in the north, central, and south districts. The times and locations of the event are as
follows:
A. North district: Noon, January 20 (Sat) on the 1st floor of the Nangang Exhibition Hall in Taipei City;
totally 1,597 people participated.
B. Central district: Noon, February 03 (Sat) at Your Home Restaurant in Taichung City; totally 290 people
participated.
C. Southern district: Noon, January 27 (Sun) at Hangxuanmeizhuan Restaurant in Kaohsiung City; totally 298
people participated
3. Talent training through Capital Financial University. Activity period: July 3 ~ September 25; number of
students: 28.

Achievement

2018 Corporate Social Responsibility Program and Achievement
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Stakeholder

Achievement

5. Healthy-workplace series of
5. Healthy-workplace series of activities:
activities:
A. Healthy diet:
A. Healthy diet
 The healthy boxed meal information was posted on the Company's intranet.
B. Building a smoke-free office
 Holding the seminar with the issue “Health lunch for office workers”, a total of 55 people participated.
environment
B. Building a smoke-free office environment:
C. Promoting sports activities
 "Important Provisions of the Tobacco Hazard Prevention Act" was promoted in offices.
D. Regular employee health
 “Health Exercise Video for Office Workers” was set up on the Company’s intranet.
checks
C. Promoting sports activities:
E. Conducting labor safety and
 Providing subsidies to establish sports clubs. In 2018, there are three clubs apply for subsidies, the
work environment inspections on a
badminton club, billiard club and dancing club.
regular basis.
 Publishing the demonstration figure card for how to stretch on the Company’s intranet.
F. Pushing up “Ergonomic hazards
 Holding the seminar with the issue “How office workers deal with shoulder and neck acid” in Aug. 23,
and illegal infringement
a total of 65 people participated. As for the Physical fitness testing, a total of 79 people participated.
prevention” and “Abnormal
D. In addition to regular employee health checks, the Company sign contracts with health check centers
loading job trigger the diseases
to provide preferential health checks for employees.
prevation”
E. Arranging physicians to the Company every quarter to provide health consulting services for
employees. Conducting labor safety and work environment inspections regularly on April and October in
2018.
F. Setting “Ergonomic hazards and illegal infringement prevention” and “Abnormal loading job trigger the
diseases prevation”, and implement according to the plan.
Holding the “Free flu vaccination program in workplace program” with Department of Health of Taipei City
Government, and a total of 35 qualified colleagues participated.
6. Various welfare measures of the
6. Various welfare measures of the Welfare Committee:
Welfare Committee:
A. Marriage subsidy: 19 persons; total amount of subsidy: NT$57,000
A. Employee marriage related
B. Employee death subsidy: 1 person; total amount of subsidy: NT$50,000.
benefits
C. Funeral subsidy: 59 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$295,000.
B. Employee funeral subsidy.
D. Hospitalization subsidy: 33 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$310,000.
C. Family funeral subsidy.
E. Childbirth subsidy: 22 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$69,000.
D. Employee hospitalization and
F. Travel subsidy: 1,871 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$7,441,664
operation subsidy
E. Childbirth subsidy

2018 planned programs and
directions

- 55 -

Customers
and investors

Stakeholder

5. Promoting the electronic trading
system.

4. Holding various trading
competitions and marketing programs

2. Holding public welfare investment
seminar
3. Holding the Capital “Fintech
Summit Forum”

F. Travel subsidy
G. Emergency loans
H. Natural disaster relief money
1. Holding investment seminars

2018 planned programs and
directions

4. Holding various trading competitions and marketing programs:
A. 01/01~03/31 the customer feedback activities held particularly for the Multi Charts professional version
users.
B. 02/12~02/21 2018 Dog year special marketing activities.
C. 04/01~06/30 Capital trading competition
D. 08/21 Capital new product launch presentation
E. 107/10/22~108/01/15 Global trading competition
5. Promoting the electronic trading system.
A. Promoting “GOODi” to be the intelligent financial partner: GOODi is the first domestic
intelligent financial robot which build with artificial intelligence as the blueprint. In the future, the goal of
GOODi is to integrate all investment accounts of Capital Group for searching and it will provide the correct

3. Holding the “2018 Capital global trend analysis and Fintech Summit Forum” on Sep. 27th. . The main issues
are including AI, trend of A-share and Block Chain.

1. Held investment seminars:
A. 2018/01/16 Healsio economics! Welcome Abe’s renewal and the coming bull market.
B. 2018/02/26、03/30 The global inflation is coming soon?! Waiting 10 years for catching the good
opportunities.
C. 2018/04/23 Analysis of trade war between China and the U.S.
D. 2018/04/27 Foreign exchange trend analysis and Fintech seminar.
E. 2018/05/29 Winner seminar.
F. 2018/06/04 Analysis of the economic trend in Japan and the introduction of trading strategy for Japanese
futures market.
G. 2018/07/17 The global funds movement!
H. 2018/08/23 The market analysis of gold and metal products.
I. 2018/11/28 The Japanese stock market and Yen analysis seminar.
J. Other On-line courses.
2. Hosting 6 public welfare investment seminars in 2018, a total of 1,260 people participated.

Achievement
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Stakeholder

Achievement

solutions efficiently to customers through talking. Also, GOODi could learn automatically what the financial
news, financial statements, shareholder meetings are customer’s concern about, and it will be the most trusted
financial partner.
B. The Company sets the customer service center which focus on promoting the electronic trading platform
service. In 2018, there are 48,278 incoming calls, specified dialing outs 7,729 calls, and the answering rate is
84%. The service content is mainly about the electronic trading system operation introduction (43%), the
exception handling (16%), and the whole product information advisory services (31%). Compare to the past,
the customer service center could save more time and a lot manual operation via improving the procedure
design from current customer service staff.
6. Continuously promoting the
6. Environmental Protection and Love for the Earth (activity period January 1- December 31) - Paperless
“Environmental Protection, Love for
operations were promoted.
the Earth, and Happiness in Life"
A. The Company has been providing electronic account statements to customers for a full range of products,
electronic account statement activity
and continues promoting electronic account statements through marketing activities to reduce the use of paper.
The volume of printed paper and ink and other consumables are effectively reduced, as well as the
transportation cost and pollution for mailing.
B. The Company has already offered to customers online account opening methods such as account opening
through website or APP, addition of electronic accounts, addition of trust accounts, and addition of
three-in-one (credit, securities borrowing and loan) accounts, and promoted online account opening and
electronic trading through the online account opening instruction video and the Capital Group audiovisual
teaching network, so as to fully implement electronic transactions. In addition to advancing toward the goal of
paperless operations and reducing customers’ cost of transportation and time required for coming to the
counter, these measures can promote energy conservation and carbon reduction for environmental protection.
C. Supported environmental protection and paperless operations, the Company provide continuously various
APP, Web application functions and record education videos for teaching customers.
D. In 2018, there total 22,236 accounts were opened, and 4,782 accounts of it were opened online. The ratio of
electronic trading is 22%.
E. In 2018, there total 22,881 accounts traded, and 21,738 accounts of it traded online, the ratio of electronic
trading is 95%.
7. Plan to sets service-oriented APP for 7. The APP has already established and start working in 2019.
providing services to customer and
investors.

2018 planned programs and
directions
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3. Holding Capital Group “Love Shoe
Box activity”

2. Capital Group 30th anniversary
blood donation activity

1. “Capital Group Love Reading
Program”

2018 planned programs and
directions
1. “Capital Group Love Reading Program”: To promote rural education in Taiwan and close the gap between
rural and urban resources, Capital Group made an exclusive donation, adopted two rural elementary schools
and launched “Capital Group Love Reading” on April 24 for the start of a one-year reading activity. In the end
of 2018, there total increase 7 elementary schools on the donation list.
A. April to June Holding the drawing contests with the topic of “Capital and me”.
B. 04/24 & 06/26 arrange the annual city tour for DaCheng elementary school and Guishan Elementary School
to visit Taiwan Stock Exchange and Taipei 101.
C. The Company launched the “Capital Group Love Reading” activity at DaCheng Elementary School on Nov.
20 and at Guishan Elementary School on Oct. 2nd in which reading volunteers entered the schools to tell stories
to children.
D.12/22 the Company went to GienShih Elementary School in HsinChu County for giving the Christmas
wishes. In addition, the Company also went to the mid and southern area, such as sponsors Gao-Shi elementary
school in PingDong county and Shi-Ding elementary school in ChiaYi county.
2. Blood donation activities - public welfare activities. In the eleventh year of the cooperation with the Blood
Foundation, As for this year was Capital Group’s 30th anniversary, therefore, the blood donation activity
expanded for 17 stations which covering the north to south districts in Taiwan. The Capital Group led its
employees, employees’ family members and the public to donate blood and send love to those in need, and a
total of 1,403 bags of blood were collected during the summer holiday. For blood donation gifts, the Company
cooperated with Love Blind Asylum Factory to support its sustainable business philosophy.
3. The Capital Group led its employees and customers giving love to children from weak families through
collecting the stationary and putting into the shoe boxes. From this activity, there are total 253 families will be
benefited. The Capital Group connected the industry and social resources and get the performance.
1. The general shareholders’ meeting was held on May 24, 2018.

Achievement

held every year
2. The annual report and corporate social responsibility report are published on an annual basis and will be
2. The annual report and corporate
uploaded to MOPS and the Company’s website.
social responsibility report are
completely disclosed to shareholders
on the Company's website
3. Classes are opened on topics
3. The Company has 7 Directors (including 3 Independent Directors) in Board of Directors. A total of 68 hours of
including finance, risk management,
training was conducted in 2018, and the topics covered finance, risk management, business, commerce, legal
business, commerce, legal affairs,
affairs, accounting, corporate social responsibility, corporate ethics, internal control systems and financial
accounting, corporate social
reporting.

Shareholders 1. A general shareholders' meeting is

Society and
community
services

Stakeholder
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Business
Integrity

Stakeholder

responsibility, corporate ethics,
internal control systems and
financial reporting based on the
professional competence of the
Directors and employees
The Company has the "Code of
Business Integrity" and the
"Procedures for Ethical Management
and Guidelines for Conduct" for
implementation of the commitment of
the integrity policy in internal
management and business activities.

2018 planned programs and
directions

The directors and management levels implement the "Code of Business Integrity" aggressively in internal
management and business activities. Through e-learning platform to hold education trainings for integrity policy,
and also disclose the integrity policy on internet for letting the suppliers, customers, and other related people
could know clear about the integrity policy of the Company.

Achievement
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2018 planned programs and
directions

Achievement

1. Promoted energy conservation and carbon reduction policies to reduce the use of water, electricity and fuel.
A. Lighting equipment in office adopt energy-saving lamps and anti-glare louver for promoting indoor
the use of water, electricity and fuel.
lighting efficiency.
B. The light equipment control by different districts in office, it would help when turn off unnecessary lighting.
C. Regional offices are equipped with air-conditioning control and air circulation fans are installed on the
ceiling to improve the air volume to achieve room temperature needs and improve indoor air quality for
reducing energy consumption.
D. Setting up the small air conditioner engine to replace the large one when off-peak.
E. Ask the manufacturer to clean and maintain the air conditioning system regularly for improving the effect
of cold room and maintaining the service life of the machine.
F. Publishing the water-saving policies strongly and cherish water resources.
G. Setting time control in water fountain, it will close when off duty or holiday time.
H. Promoting e-operation to save paper use.
I. The company had news published online and replaced the paper signature with e-signature to minimize the
distribution of printed information.
2. Preferring green procurement and using the products of the manufacturers with environmental protection mark
2. Giving priority to products of
Green construction materials and certified energy-saving light fixtures should be used for decoration
manufacturers with the
engineering with priority.
environmental protection label.
3. Promoting resource recycling and properly handling waste Substantiated the Company’s internal resources
3. Promoting the recovery of
recycling and resource sorting; used toner cartridges were recycled by the professional manufacturers in order
resources to properly handle waste.
to avoid pollution and waste of resources.

Environmental 1. Promoting energy conservation and
carbon reduction policies to reduce
protection

Stakeholder
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Y N
E O
S

1.Establishment of integrity policies
and solutions
V
(1) Has the Company stated in its
Memorandum or external
correspondence about the policies and
practices it has to maintain business
integrity?
Are the board of directors and the
management committed in fulfilling
this commitment?
V
(2) Does the company have any
measures against dishonest conducts?
Are these measures supported by
proper procedures, behavioral
guidelines, disciplinary actions and
complaint systems?
V
(3) Has the Company taken steps to
prevent occurrences
listed in Paragraph 2, Article 7 of
"Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles
for TWSE/TPEX Listed
Companies" or business conducts that
are prone to integrity risks?

Assessment Criteria

3.3.6 Integrity performance

(2)The Company's "Business Integrity Procedures and Behavioral Guidelines" outlines
rules and procedures concerning dishonest behaviors, and associates integrity
management with employees' performance appraisal and the human resource policy.
The Company has clear and effective disciplinary and grievance systems in place to
prohibit dishonest behaviors; actions of high severity may result in employee's
dismissal according to law or human resource policy.
(3) The Company adopts an integrity insurance system, where it insures itself against
risk of employees' dishonesty depending on the nature of their duties. The
insurance covers robbery, theft, fraud, embezzlement or any illegal conduct
committed by employees that result in financial losses to the Company.
Furthermore, the Company's "Business Integrity Procedures and Behavioral
Guidelines" outlines rules and procedures specifically for business activities that
exhibit high integrity risks.

(1)The Company has "Integrity Code of Conduct" and "Business Integrity Procedures
and Behavioral Guidelines" in place; both the Board of Directors and the
management are committed to enforcing the integrity policy throughout internal
management and commercial activities. By disclosing the integrity policy on
website, the Company is able to convey its integrity philosophy and rules clearly to
suppliers, customers and any parties it has business dealings with.

Summary Description

Compliance (Note 1)

None

None

None

Deviation and
causes of
deviation from
integrity
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
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(3) Does the Company have any
V
policy that prevents conflict of
interest, and channels that facilitate the
report of conflicting interests?

(2) Does the Company have a unit that V
specializes (or is involved) in business
integrity? Does this unit report its
progress to the Board of Directors on a
regular basis?

2.Enforcing ethical management
V
(1) Does the Company evaluate the
integrity of all counterparties it has
business relationships with? Are there
any integrity clauses in the agreements
it signs with business partners?

Assessment Criteria

Y N
E O
S

(3)The Company has "Business Integrity Procedures and Behavioral Guidelines" and
"Conflicting Interest Avoidance Guidelines for Sales Representatives" in place.
Directors may express opinions and answer queries but are not allowed to participate
in the discussion and vote on any agenda that presents a conflict against their own
interests or interests of the corporate entities they represent to the extent that is likely
to compromise the Company's interests. All relevant details including the discussion,
voting process, and avoidance of conflicting interest by concern parties will be
recorded in the minutes of the current meeting. Employees are obligated to report to
the head of department and the responsible unit whenever they find themselves or
stakeholders likely to receive inappropriate gains while performing duties. Upon
learning of the situation, the head of department will offer proper guidance to the
employee.

(1)Prior to signing a contract with another party, the Company would thoroughly
investigate the integrity of the counterparty, and make sure that the contract contains
an integrity clause that entitles information safety, personal information protection
policy declaration and confidentiality agreement….etc., either party to unconditionally
terminate the contract at any time if the counterparty is found to have involved in any
dishonest conduct.
(2)The Company has supervised by President, the legal compliance department and
every department are responsible for announcing the business integrity concept and
rules, and execute the relevant training courses. The business integrity status would be
reported to the Board of Directors on a regular basis (It has been reported at Board of
Director’s meeting on March 27, 2019.)

Summary Description

Compliance (Note 1)

None

None

None

Deviation and
causes of
deviation from
integrity
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies

- 62 -

V

3. Whistleblowing system
V
(1) Does the Company provide
incentives and means for employees to
report misconducts? Does the

(5) Does the Company organize
internal or external training on a
regular basis to maintain business
integrity?

(4) Has the Company implemented
effective accounting and internal
control systems for the purpose of
maintaining business integrity? Are
these systems reviewed by internal or
external auditors on a regular basis?

Assessment Criteria

157
159
243
155

131

235

Number of
participator
193

(1)The Company's "Work Rules" and "Employee Opinion Mailbox Usage Guidelines"
have outlined the various rewards that employees may be entitled to for engaging in
procedural improvements or misconduct reporting. The Company has also assembled a

Declaration for regulations of Integrity management (1hr)
Governing Anti-Money Laundering and countering the Financing of
Terrorism (1hr)
Policy announcement of principle for Financial Service Industries to
Treat Clients Fairly (1hr)
Policy announcement for Prohibition by securities practitioners(1hr)
Guidelines of the dispute from business of the Company (1hr)
Legal compliance education training for sales (1hr)
Declaration of new amendments and major securities act (1hr)

Name of Course

The status of integrity training course in 2018 is as following:

(5)The Company organizes integrity training on a regular basis. Employees are
required to pass a post-course exam to be considered of having completed the course.

None

None

Deviation and
causes of
Y N
deviation from
E O
integrity
S
Best-Practice
Summary Description
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
V
None
(4) In order to enforce integrity management, the Company has designed an
Accounting system" and an "Internal control system" based on "Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms" and "Regulations
Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Service Enterprises in
Securities and Futures Markets." Both systems are regularly inspected by the internal
audit department.

Compliance (Note 1)
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4.Enhanced information disclosure
(1)Has the Company disclosed its
integrity principles and progress onto
its website and MOPS?

(2)Does the Company establish
standard operating procedures for
confidential reporting and
investigation of accusation cases?
(3)Has the Company provided proper
whistleblower protection?

Company assign dedicated personnel
to investigate the reported
misconducts?

Assessment Criteria

V

V

V

Y N
E O
S

(1)The Company's "Integrity Code of Conduct" and "Business Integrity Procedures
and Behavioral Guidelines" have been disclosed on the intranet, the external portal,
and on Market Observation Post System. Progress of integrity management has been
disclosed on the Company's
website.https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw/Capitalgroup/worker_opinion.asp?xy=15&
xt=6

(3)All staff and managers who handle messages delivered via the employee opinion
mailbox are bound to maintain confidentiality. The prosecutor will be protected, and
may not terminate, transfer, reduce the wages, or harm the rights and benefits in
accordance with the law, contract or norm ,or be taken any unfavorable measures.

Personnel Review Committee to review employees' commendations and discipline.
External parties may express opinions to the Company using a number of channels
such as the spokesperson, and Investor Relations contact.
‧Spokesperson name: Lee, Wen-Chu (President)
TEL:(02)2700-2888 e-mail: marklee@futures.capital.com.tw
‧Deputy Spokesperson name: Chen, Wen-Tsay (Senior executive vice president)
TEL:(02)2700-2888 e-mail:dan_chan@capital.com.tw
‧Customer Service Center TEL:02-412-8878
(2)The Company's "Employee Opinion Mailbox Usage Guidelines" have clearly
outlined the investigation procedures and confidentiality system for all reported
misconducts.

Summary Description

Compliance (Note 1)

None

None

None

Deviation and
causes of
deviation from
integrity
Best-Practice
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
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6.Other information relevant to understanding the Company's business integrity (e.g. reviews over business integrity principles)
Integrity management rules and policies are reviewed and amended on an unscheduled basis which are disclosed via the Company's portal, intranet, and
Market Observation Post System to give investors and employees an up-to-date understanding about the Company's integrity policy.

Deviation and
causes of
Y N
deviation from
E O
integrity
S
Assessment Criteria
Best-Practice
Summary Description
Principles for
TWSE/TPEX
Listed Companies
5.If the Company has established Ethical Corporate Management Principles in accordance with the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies", describe any discrepancies between the principles and their implementation:
The Company's operations, "Integrity Code of Conduct" and "Business Integrity Procedures and Behavioral Guidelines" are fully compliant with
"Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies."

Compliance (Note 1)

3.3.7 If the Company has established corporate governance principles or other
relevant guidelines, references to such principles must be disclosed:
The Company's corporate governance policies have been disclosed at:
Under Corporate Governance section of the Market Observation Post System
https://www.capitalfutures.com.tw/Capitalgroup/organization.asp?xy=15&xt=1

3.3.8 Other important information material to the understanding of corporate
governance within the Company: None.
3.3.9 Internal Control System
A. Statement of Internal Control System, please refer to Page 67.
B. If the internal control system was reviewed by an external CPA, the result of such
review must be disclosed: None.

3.3.10 Penalties imposed against the Company for regulatory violation, or
penalties against employees for violation of internal control policy in the most
recent year up till the publication date of this annual report; describe areas of
weakness and any corrective actions taken:
A. Decision letter issued by Taiwan Futures Exchange on Sep. 6, 2016 and Jan. 5, 2018
respectively: The Company's two specialists were found to violate Paragraph 21, Article 25
of Operating Rules of Taiwan Futures Exchange Corporation, since they provide the place
for outsiders to hold toll lectures, and the Company was imposed a penalty of NT$100,000
for each decision letter. Moreover, the Company was also found to have violated Paragraph
3, Article 21 of Operating Rules of Taiwan Futures Exchange Corporation and be noticed
by the decision letter on Jan. 5, 2018 and imposed a penalty of NT$20,000.
Decision letter issued by Financial Supervisory Commission R.O.C. on Mar.30, 2018:
The Company's specialist was found to violate Paragraph 21, Article 65 of Operating Rules
of Taiwan Futures Exchange Corporation “Make use of non-employees to carry out
business relating to futures trading” and imposed a penalty of NT$600,000.
Improvement: The Company reported the improvement status to Taiwan Futures Exchange
on June 12, 2018:
1. The Company will never lend the place to outsiders.
2. The evaluation for commission application should concern about the additional operating
cost, reasonable profit for the customer who has higher trading volume, and overall
contribution to the Company’s revenue.
3. Modifying the trading system.
4. Related people with dereliction of duty has already be punished

B. Decision letter issued by Chinese National Futures Association on Oct. 25, 2017: The

Company's specialist was found to provide individual futures contract for identifying and
suggesting the future transaction price via Line@ to non-particular person and violate
regulations. The Company was issued a warning while the violator was ordered a 1-month
suspension.
Improvement: The Company has since enhanced the training of its employees to ensure
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compliance with regulations, and at the same time enforced the Company's internal control
system. Also, the violator done with 1-month suspension.
C. Decision letter issued by Taiwan Futures Exchange on Sep. 19, 20 and 22, 2017: The
Company was found to violate Paragraph 3, Article 21 and Paragraph 1, Article 53 of
Operating Rules of Taiwan Futures Exchange Corporation, and imposed a penalty of
NT$40,000. Moreover, Financial Supervisory Commission R.O.C. issued a decision letter
on July 16, 2018 for noticing the regulation violations of the Company and the Company
was imposed a penalty of NT$240,000.
Improvements: The Company has since enhanced the training of its employees to ensure
compliance with regulations, and at the same time enforced the Company's internal control
system. Also, the Company will never adopt the speedy risk control system to calculate
margin, but check the margin one by one and reserve the inspection record.
D. Taiwan Futures Exchange audit on Nov.29 and 30, 2017 and point that the “Direction
for Anti-money laundering and countering terrorism financing” of the Company does not
include as following items, and also violate Paragraph 3, Article 21 of Operating Rules of
Taiwan Futures Exchange Corporation:
1. Policies and procedures for sharing information within the group as required for the
purposes of verifying customer identity, and money laundering and terrorism financing
risk management.
2. For AML/CFT purposes, when necessary, the overseas branches (or subsidiaries) must
provide customer, account, and transaction information, as required under the group-level
compliance, audit, and AML/CFT functions.
3. Safeguards on the use and confidentiality of information exchanged.
Therefore, the Company need to implement above regulations and revise the directions as
authority’s request.
Improvements: The Company has already revised the directions as authority’s request.
E. Decision letter issued by Chinese National Futures Association on Jan. 2, 2019: The
Company’s specialist was found to do futures analysis on communication media to
non-particular person, and the Company was issued a warning
Improvements: The Company has since enhanced the training of our employees to ensure
compliance with regulations, and at the same time enforced the Company's internal control
system and the violated person has already resigned on Nov. 2018.
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Capital Futures Corp.
Statement of Internal Control System
Date: March 27, 2019
The following statement has been made based on a self-assessment of the Company’s internal control
system in 2018:
1. The Company is aware that creation, implementation, and maintenance of internal control system are
the responsibilities of its Board of Directors and management, and has duly established such a system.
The purpose of internal control system is to provide reasonable assurances concerning the outcome
and efficiency of the Company’s operations (including profitability, business performance, and asset
security), the reliability, timeliness, and transparency of reported information, and compliance and
accomplishment of relevant regulations and goals.
2. There are inherent limitations to even the most well designed internal control system. As such, an
effective internal control system can only reasonably assure the achievement of the three goals
mentioned above. Furthermore, changes in the environment and circumstances may all affect the
effectiveness of the internal control system. However, the internal control system of the Company
features a self-monitoring mechanism that rectifies any deficiencies immediately upon discovery.
3. The Company evaluates the effectiveness of its internal control system design and execution based
on the criteria specified in “Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by
Service Enterprises in Securities and Futures Markets” (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”).
The criteria introduced by the “Regulations” consists of five major elements, each representing a
different stage of internal control: 1. Control environment, 2. Risk assessment, 3. Control activities, 4.
Information and communication, and 5. Monitoring activities. Each major element is further broken
down into several sub-elements. Please refer to the “Regulations” for more details.
4. The Company has adopted the abovementioned criteria to validate the effectiveness of its internal
control system design and execution.
5. Based on the assessments described above, the Company considers the design and execution of its
internal control system to be effective as at December 31, 2018 1. This system (including the
supervision and management of subsidiaries) has provided assurance concerning the Company's
business results, target accomplishments, reliability, timeliness, and transparency of reported
information, and its compliance with relevant laws.
6. This statement constitutes part of the Company’s annual report and prospectus, and shall be disclosed
to the public. Any illegal misrepresentation or non-disclosure in the public statement above are
subject to legal consequences described in Articles 115 of the Futures Trading Act and Articles 20,
32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.
7. This statement was passed during the Board of Directors meeting held on March 27, 2019 by all 6
attending directors without objection.

Capital Futures Corp.
Chairman：Sun, Tien-Shan
President：Lee, Wen-Chu

1

The statement date is the end day of fiscal year.
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Areas of Improvement and Rectification of the Internal Control System
Areas of improvement required
The Company’s employees provide the
place to outsiders holding toll lecturers and
also make use of non-employees to carry
out business related to futures trading.
The commission application to customers
did not consider about the trading risk.

While a customer used the mobile trading
system of the Company to make a closing
offer, the system did not check the
customer’s position first, but accept
customer’s offer directly.
The speedy risk control system of the
Company did not check customer’s initial
margin first, but accept customer’s offer
directly.

Improvements
The Company has already
forbidding employees lend the
place to outsiders.
The commission application has
already evaluated about
additional operating cost,
reasonable profits for higher
trading volume customers and
overall contribution to the
Company’s revenue etc.
The current system has been
improved in accordance with
“Procedures and standards of
handling transaction offers” of
the Company.
The speedy risk control system
has already improved to check
each offer one by one and not to
check regularly. Also each offer
will be reserved the inspection
record.
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Expected time
of
rectification
Improvements
have been
completed
Improvements
have been
completed

Improvements
have been
completed
Improvements
have been
completed

3.3.11 Major resolutions of the General Meeting of shareholders and the
Board in the most recent year to the date this report was printed:
Important resolutions and the implementation of the 2018 general shareholder meeting:
A. Date and Time: May 24st, 2018 (Thursday) AM10:30
B. Location: B2, No. 97, Sec. 2, Dunhua S. Road. Da'an Dist., Taipei City
C. Implement status and resolutions:
Subject

Approval of the
Company’s 2017
business report and
financial statements

Approval of
the Company's
2017 earnings
appropriation

Resolution

Implementation

This case was voted with 100,077,039 voting rights in
favor (including 99,259,639 electronic voting rights),
accounting for 96.18 % of the total voting rights of the To proceed as
presenting shareholders. There were 3,861,355 voting
resolved during the
right not in favor of the case (including 2,955,352
shareholders' meeting
electronic voting rights). There were 1,467,611
and announce
electronic voting rights forfeited and 0 voting right
accordingly.
invalid.
This case is passed according to the revolution
reached by voting in the Board meeting.
This case was voted with 99,949,085 voting rights in
favor (including 99,131,685 electronic voting rights),
accounting for96.06 % of the total voting rights of the
presenting shareholders. There were 237,881 voting
right not in favor of the case (including 237,881
electronic voting rights). There were 3,860,313 voting
rights forfeited (including 2,954,310 electronic voting
rights) and 0 voting right invalid.
This case is passed according to the revolution
reached by voting in the Board meeting.

A cash dividend of
NTD 2.87 per share
was distributed based
on the resolution
reached in the
shareholders'
meeting.
(ex-dividend date
was June 24, 2018
and cash dividend
were distributed on
July 20, 2018)

D. The execution progress and resolutions of shareholder’s meeting
Subject

Resolution

Implementation

100 shares for each
share were
This case was voted with 100,061,853 voting rights in
distributed based on
favor (including 99,244,453 electronic voting rights),
the resolution
accounting for 96.16 % of the total voting rights of the
reached in the
Case of the
presenting shareholders. There were 122,569 voting
shareholders'
Company’s capital
right not in favor of the case (including 122,569
meeting.
surplus transferred to electronic voting rights). There were 3,862,857voting
(ex-dividend date
common stock
rights forfeited (including 2,956,854 electronic voting
was August 11, 2018
rights) and 0 voting right invalid.
and new shares were
This case is passed according to the revolution reached
distributed and traded
by voting in the board meeting.
on the same day: Sep.
12, 2018)
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Election of the
Company's 8th term
of the Board

Election result:
1. Director: Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan
Elected with: 108,107,456 votes
2. Director: Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Wang, Jiunn-Chih
Elected with: 99,081,709 votes
3. Director: Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Liu, Ching–Tsun
Elected with: 97,401,261 votes
4. Director: Hung Yeh Investment Co.,Ltd
Representative: Chia, Chung-Tao
Elected with: 96,800,487 votes
5. Independent Director: Shea, Jia-Dong
Elected with: 98,801,888 votes
6. Independent Director: Chuang, Chih-Chen
Elected with: 95,301,166 votes
7. Independent Director: Chen, Kuo-Tay
Elected with: 95,309,823 votes

Letter of approval
from Ministry of
Economic Affairs
No. 10701060400 are
received on June 1st,
2018.

This case was voted with 99,159,655 voting rights in
favor (including 99,005,655 electronic voting rights),
accounting for 95.30 % of the total voting rights of the
presenting shareholders. There were 252,612 voting
Lifting the ban on
right not in favor of the case (including 252,612
To publish as
conflict of interest of electronic voting rights). There were 4,635,012voting
resolved.
the Directors
rights forfeited (including 3,065,609 electronic voting
rights) and 0 voting right invalid.
This case is passed according to the revolution reached
by voting in the Board meeting.

Major resolutions of the General Meeting of shareholders and the Board in the most recent
year to the date this report was printed:
Attendance
Status of
Item
The summary of important items
Independent
Director
Director:
●Confirmation of the date, place and agenda for 2018 general
Sun, Tien-Shan,
shareholder meeting.
th
Wang,
●Election of the Company's 8 term of the Board.
●Confirmation of proposal period for the shareholders who holding Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Ching–Tsun,
more than 1% of the outstanding shares and the nomination of
Chia, Chung-Tao
director candidates.
th
Independent
The 23
●Approval of the Company's 2018 business report and Financial
Director:
meeting of the
Statements.
th
Shea, Jia-Dong
7 board
●Amendments
to
the
Company’s
“Directions
Governing
Chang, Yao-Tsay
(2018.1.30)
Chuang,
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of
Terrorism for Futures Managed Business” and related items which Chih-Chen
be effective on Dec. 20th, 2017.
●Amendments to the Company’s “Operational procedures for
applications for halt and resumption of trading”.
●Amendments to the Company’s external title chart with increasing
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Item

The summary of important items

Attendance
Status of
Independent
Director

an external title “Global derivatives commodity advisor”.
●Discussion of HK subsidy applying the Type 3 license for
leveraged foreign exchange trading business from SFC (Securities
and Futures Commission).
●Suggestion of the Company’s 2017 Year-End bonus would
calculate as 2-month salary to the basis.
●Discussion of 2017 performance review results for the Company’s
employees of manager grade and above.
●Discussion of 2017 bonus distribution for the Company’s
employees of manager grade and above.
●Discussion of traveling allowance which CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.
will pay to Director Sun, Tien-Shan.
Approval of 2017 remuneration distribution for the Company’s
employees’ and directors’
●Approval of the Company’s 2017 annual business report and
consolidated and individual financial statements.
●Approval of the Company’s 2017 earnings distribution.
●Approval for the project of issuing new shares by Capital Surplus
Transferred to Capital.
●Effective statement for the design and execution status of the
Company’s 2017 internal control system
●Effective statement of the Company’s internal control system for
2017 Governing Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the
Financing of Terrorism.
●Amendments of the Company’s internal control system, and it will
be effective on Oct. 11th, 2017.
The 24th
●Approval of the Company’s “Corporate Social Responsibility”
meeting of the
report.
th
7 board
(2018.3.26) ●Review of the director and independent director candidates for
2018 general shareholder meeting.
●Proposal of removing the Non-compete Clause of the Company’s
directors and their representatives.
●The 2018 promote suggestions for the Company’s employees of
manager grade and above.
●Appointment of a manager for the Company’s risk management
department.
●Appointment of a manager for the Company’s proprietary
department.
●Approval for Huan-Ting Xia, proprietary department head, would
adjunct no.1 trading office of the Company’s proprietary
department.
●Proposal of bonus distribution for Taipei sales department and
Taichung branch.
●Bonus distribution for Senior Executive Officer Yau-Yu Yang.
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Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Ching–Tsun,
Chia, Chung-Tao
Independent
Director:
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chang, Yao-Tsay
Chuang,
Chih-Chen

Item

The summary of important items

Attendance
Status of
Independent
Director

●2017 festival bonus distribution for the Company’s employees of
manager grade and above.
●Amendments to the Company’s “Codes of ethical conduct”.
●Amendments to the Company’s “The Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles”.
●2018 salary adjustment suggestions for the Company’s employees
of manager grade and above.
The 25th
●Salary
adjustment for Senior Executive Officer Yau-Yu Yang.
meeting of the
th
7 board
●Appointment of a director for the Company’s futures advisory
(2018.5.11)
department.
●Change for the Company’s employees of manager grade and
above.
●2017 Remuneration distribution of the Company’s directors.
●2017 Remuneration distribution (cash) of the Company’s
employee.

The 1st
meeting of the
8th board
(2018.5.24)

The 2nd
meeting of the
8th board
(2018.7.10)

The 3rd
meeting of the
8th board
(2018.8.27)

Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Ching–Tsun,
Chia, Chung-Tao
Independent
Director:
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chang, Yao-Tsay
Chuang,
Chih-Chen

Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Ching–Tsun,
Chia, Chung-Tao
Election of the Company’s Chairman and Vice Chairman.
Independent
Director:
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen,Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,Chih-Ch
en
Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
●Set the base day of dividend and related affairs for issuing new
Wang,
shares by Capital Surplus Transferred to Capital.
th
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
●Appointments for the 4 Remuneration Committee members.
Ching–Tsun,
●Engaging cooperation agreement of Fintech innovation experiment
Chia, Chung-Tao
with Taiwan Follow-me Ltd.
Independent
●Amendments of the Company’s “Risk Management System”.
Director:
●Amendments of the Company’s “Sales approval authority table”. Shea, Jia-Dong
●Change of the manager in Securities Introducing Brokers business Chen,Kuo-Tay,
of Taichung branch.
Chuang,Chih-Ch
en
Director:
●The individual and consolidated Financial Statement of the
Sun, Tien-Shan,
Company for the first half year of 2018 (1/1~6/30).
Wang,
●The 2018 independence assessment of the Company’s accountant.
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
●Amendments of the Company’s internal control system.
Ching–Tsun,
●Engaging MOU with the management committee of China Pingtan Chia, Chung-Tao
Comprehensive Pilot Zone.
Independent
●Amendments to the Company’s “Guidelines of festive bonus
Director:
distribution”.
Shea, Jia-Dong
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Item

The 4th
meeting of the
8th board
(2018.10.07)

The 5th
meeting of the
8th board
(2018.11.12)

The 6th
meeting of the
8th board
(2018.12.24)

Attendance
Status of
The summary of important items
Independent
Director
●The Company’s festival bonus distribution in the first half year of Chen,Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,Chih-Ch
2018.
●Discussion of traveling expenses and attendance remuneration for en
the Board of Directors meeting and other functional committees.
Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
● Report for the change of Taichung Branch’s manager.
Ching–Tsun,
 Amendment to the Company’s “Guidelines of the course bonus
Chia, Chung-Tao
distribution for Advisory Business department”.
Independent
 Report for the reassigning of the institutional representative of
Director:
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen,Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,Chih-Ch
en
 The auditing expense for the accountant in the 2019 fiscal year of Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
the Company.
 The internal auditing plan in the 2019 fiscal year of the Company. Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
 The Company donate NT$ 5 million which was the additional
Ching–Tsun,
business promotion fees returned by Chinese National Futures
Lee, Yi-Hui
Association to Securities and Futures Institute.
Independent
 Stipulation of the Company’s “Operating procedures for
Director:
confidential reporting cases”.
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen,Kuo-Tay,
 Reporting of the changes of director for subsidies of the
Chuang,Chih-Ch
Company: Capital International Technology Corp., Capital
Futures Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and Capital True Partner en
Technology (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.
 Reporting of the change of president for Capital International
Technology Corp.
 New establish the “Derivatives department” in organization of the Director:
Sun, Tien-Shan,
Company.
Wang,
 To modify the rules and chart of organization of the Company.
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
 Appointment of the manager, vice manager and other supervisors
Ching–Tsun,
of Derivatives department.
Lee, Yi-Hui
 The stipulation of “Guidelines of bonus distribution for
Independent
Derivatives department”.
Director:
 The HK subsidy of the Company apply the Type No.4 and 5
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen,
Kuo-Tay,
license from Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong.
Chuang,
 Amendment to the “Operating procedures for confidential
Chih-Chen
reporting cases” of the Company.
 The stipulation of the “Guidelines for Futures merchant and
introducing broker to prevent Money Laundering and Combat
Threats from Terrorism”.
 Amendments to the “Fair Customer Treatment Guidelines” of the
Company.
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Item

The summary of important items

Attendance
Status of
Independent
Director

 Reporting

of the transfer for Senior Executive Officer Yau-Yu,
Yang to President’s office.
 Suggestion of the 2018 year-end remuneration which would
calculate as 2-month salary to the basis.
Director:
of the date, place and agenda for 2018 general
Sun, Tien-Shan,
shareholder meeting.
 Amendments of the Company’s “Sales approval authority table”. Wang,
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
 Reporting of the transfer for Senior Executive Officer Wen-Jun
Ching–Tsun,
Tseng to Futures Managed department.
Lee, Yi-Hui
 Appointment of the head of Proprietary department.
Independent
 Discussion of 2017 performance review results for the Company’s Director:
employees of manager grade and above.
Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen, Kuo-Tay,
 Discussion of 2017 bonus distribution for the Company’s
Chuang,
employees of manager grade and above.
 Discussion of 2017 festival bonus distribution for the Company’s Chih-Chen
employees of manager grade and above.
Director:
 2018 Statement on the overall implementation status of
Sun, Tien-Shan,
information security of the Company.
Wang,
 2018 statement on the effective implementation of Anti-Money
Jiunn-Chih, Liu,
Laundering/Countering Financing Terrorism internal control of
Ching–Tsun,
the Company.
Independent
 2018 statement on the effective of design and implementation for Director:
internal control system of the Company.
Shea, Jia-Dong
 The proposal of 2018 earning distribution of the Company.
Chen, Kuo-Tay,
Chuang,
 Amendment to internal control system of the Company.
Chih-Chen
 Amendment to partial regulations of “Procedures for the
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets” of the Company.
Director Lee,
 Amendment to “Procedures for the Leverage contract transaction
Yi-Hui appointed
business and KYC rules” of the Company.
Director Sun,
 Amendment to “Rules for bonus distribution for institutional
Tien-Shan to
clients department”.
attend meeting.
 Report to “Corporate Social Responsibility Plan” of the Company.
 Amendment to “Corporate governance best practice” of the
Company.
 Report for the promotion of managers of futures advisory futures
department and proprietary department.
 Suggestion for the 2019 promotion list for employees of manager
grade and above.
 Confirmation

The 7th
meeting of the
8th board
(2019.01.28)

The 8th
meeting of the
8th board
(2019.03.27)

3.3.12 Documented opinions or declarations made by Directors or
Supervisors against Board of Directors resolutions in the most recent
year, up until the publishing date of this annual report:
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Item
The 24th
meeting of
the 7th
board
(2018.3.26)

Resolution
The 24th meeting of the 7th board (2018.03.26)
Cause of Action: It is regarding the distribution of the 2017 festival remuneration for
employees of manager grade and above.
Resolution:
Independent Director Shea, Jia-Dong:
1. This case should be for discussion instead of confirmation. I hereby restates the
Remuneration Committee did not approve this case.
2. The purpose of amending the “Guidelines for festival bonus distribution” last
time was mainly for determining precisely that the range of bonus contribution
ratio shall be set between 8 and 12%. Therefore, according to Article 3-3 of
“Guidelines for festival bonus distribution” about the calculation method of
bonus, the amount of bonus should be amount payable but not amount
contributable.
3. This case does not comply with the Guidelines, and compliance department
should provide explanations.
4. Remuneration committee considered that the festival bonus distribution amount
of 2017 was inconsistent with the Guidelines, so it resolved to compensate the
difference. Although Board of Directors has authority to overrule or modify the
resolution of Remuneration committee, but I still request such modify should be
pursuant to the related rules. I also hereby remind the Company and Board of
directors of the risks from employees’ complaint.
5. The Guidelines only set flexibility to upwards adjust contribution ratio, but lack
of flexibility to make downward adjustment. Thus, it is not comprehensive and
the Remuneration Committee has reached the resolution of modification.
6. Before modifying the Guidelines, I assert the Company shall compensate the
amount of difference according to the current Guidelines.
 Chairman Sun, Tien-Shan: Employees’ 2017 Festival remuneration has
increased 20~30% compared to the previous year, which is consistent with the
percentage of the Company’s profit growth, and most of employees are
satisfied with their remuneration.
 Independent Director Chuang, Chih-Chen: In the meeting of Remuneration
Committee, I found festival remuneration of 2017 was obviously more than
2016 and 2015. It could be agreed that festival remuneration of 2017 can be
distributed as proposed, but I still suggest the Guidelines be modified for more
precision.
 Vice president of Administration Department Chang, Pei-Wen: The original
festival bonus remuneration originates from group remuneration which belongs
to welfare principle and it differs from the sales bonus. The “Guidelines for
festival bonus distribution” provide the contribution ratio and its standard, and
after calculation it is not necessary to be equal to the amount for distribution.
The case this time has no difference from being handled in past years. Even if
the contribution amount excesses the top (12%), it should also be adjusted back
to the range provided in Guidelines.
 Chief Compliance Officer Chen, Chi-Hao: The concepts of contribution and
distribution are different, and the current Guidelines do not connect them
together. However, from the view of consequence, the total amount distributed
conforms to the principle of contribution ratio of 8%~12%.
Chairman Mr. Sun, Tien-Shan, Vice Chairman Mr. Chia, Chung-Tao, and other
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officers are the related parties in the case and have been excused from its
discussion for reaching conclusion. Director Wang, Jiunn-Chih acts as the
Chairman in this case.
Resolution: Approved with the consent of the board members, except Independent
Director Shea, Jia-Dong.

The 6th Cause of Action: The stipulation of “Guidelines of bonus distribution for Derivatives
meeting of department”.
the 8th
Resolution: Approved with the consent of the committee members temporarily. This
board
case will be modified recently and discussed next time.
(2018.12.24)

3.3.13 Resignation or discharge of persons related to financial reporting
(including the Chairman, President, Chief Accounting Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, and Chief F&D Officer) in the
most recent year to the date this report was printed: None.
3.3.14 The status of managers and directors participated corporate governance
training courses in recent years:
Title
Name

Organizer

Course Name

Course
Date

Dharma Drum Mountain
From Ethics to Getting Rich -The Insights of Insider
Chairman Humanities and Social
107/08/27
Trading
Improvement Foundation
Sun,
Tien-Shan Taiwan Stock Exchange
The Corporate Governance Roadmap Summit
107/05/08
Corporation
Dharma Drum Mountain
Humanities and Social
Vice
Improvement Foundation
Chairman
Chinese National Futures
Chia,
Chung-Tao Association
Taiwan Securities
Association
Dharma Drum Mountain
Humanities and Social
Improvement Foundation
Director Taiwan Listed
Wang,
Corporation Association
Jiunn-Chih Taiwan Depository &
Clearing Corporation
Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation
Dharma Drum Mountain
Humanities and Social
Director Improvement Foundation
Liu,
Taiwan Securities
Ching–Tsun Association
Taiwan Securities
Association

Hour
3
3

From Ethics to Getting Rich -The Insights of Insider
107/08/27
Trading

3

Anti-money laundering Seminar

107/05/25

3

Legal responsibilities and case studies of financial
statement fraud and insider trading

107/05/09

3

From Ethics to Getting Rich -The Insights of Insider
107/08/27
Trading

3

Role and function of Corporate Governance in
capital market
100% E-Voting in 2018 and Enhancement of
Corporate Value
2018 Securities Anti-money laundering operating
seminar

107/04/16

3

107/03/05

6

107/02/22

3

From Ethics to Getting Rich -The Insights of Insider
107/08/27
Trading

3

How high asset group face the FATCA and CRS

107/08/15

3

Corporate governance and Enterprise financial
information transparency

107/07/18

3
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Title
Name

Organizer

Dharma Drum Mountain
Humanities and Social
Improvement Foundation
Independent
Director Securities & Futures
Institute
Shea,
Jia-Dong Taiwan Securities
Association
Corporate Operation
Association
Independent
Dharma Drum Mountain
Director
Humanities and Social
Chen,
Improvement Foundation
Kuo-Tay
Independent
Director
Chuang,
Chih-Chen

Taiwan Securities
Association
Taiwan Securities
Association

Title/Name

Organizer

Executive Vice
president
Mao, Jen-Hua
Senior Executive
Officer
Tseng, Wen-Jun

Securities &
Futures
Institute
Securities &
Futures
Institute
Securities &
Futures
Institute
Accounting
Research and
Development
Foundation
Taiwan
Securities
Association
Securities &
Futures
Institute
Securities &
Futures
Institute
Securities &
Futures
Institute
Taiwan
Securities
Association
Chinese
National

Senior Vice President
Lee, Chung-Wei
Senior Vice President
Lin, Li-Juan
Senior Vice President
Chen, Chi-Hau
Executive Vice
President
Jhuo, Zheng-Gang
Senior Vice President
Peng, Jian-Cheng
Senior Vice President
Huang, Wei-Ben
Senior Assistant Vice
President
Lian, Jing-Lian
Assistant Vice
President

Course Name

Course
Date

Hour

From Ethics to Getting Rich -The Insights of Insider
107/08/27
Trading

3

Insider trading legal compliance seminar

107/07/24

3

107/07/18

3

107/07/13

3

From Ethics to Getting Rich -The Insights of Insider
107/08/27
Trading

3

Corporate governance and Enterprise financial
information transparency
How to decide the structure of M&A and case
studies

Legal responsibilities and case studies of financial
statement fraud and insider trading
How enterprises applying big data analysis to
enhance the operating performance

Course Name
On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
countering financing terrorism for specialized
supervisors.
On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
countering financing terrorism for specialized
supervisors.
On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
countering financing terrorism for specialized
supervisors.
In-service training course for accounting manager
On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
countering financing terrorism for specialized
supervisors.
On-job-training for obtaining the qualification of
chief anti-money laundering/countering financing
terrorism officer and personnel
On-job-training for obtaining the qualification of
chief anti-money laundering/countering financing
terrorism officer and personnel
On-job-training for obtaining the qualification of
chief anti-money laundering/countering financing
terrorism officer and personnel
On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
countering terrorism financing for specialized
supervisors.
On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
countering terrorism financing for specialized
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107/05/09

3

107/04/18

3

Course
Date

Hour

107/04/23
107/04/24

12

107/07/21
107/07/22

12

107/07/07
107/07/08

12

107/11/08
107/11/09

12

107/05/05
107/05/27

12

107/12/24
107/12/25

12

107/05/31
107/06/01

12

107/12/24
107/12/25

12

107/06/03
107/07/08

12

107/04/17

2

Huang, Guo-Rong

Vice President
Ho, Zhuo-Yi

Futures
Association
Taiwan
Securities
Association
UCOM
Training
Center

supervisors.
On-job-training of anti-money laundering and
countering terrorism financing for specialized
supervisors.
To ensure the security of personal data and business
secrets by combining security technology and
management skills

107/06/03
107/07/29

12

107/11/29
107/11/30

14

3.4 Disclosure of CPAs’ remuneration
Unit: NT$ thousand
Name of
CPA

Auditor's
firm
KPMG

Lee, Feng-Hui

Taiwan

Chung, Tan-Tan

Non-audit remuneration
Audit
remuneration Policy
License
Human
Others
design registration resource (Note2)
1,500

-

-

-

167

Subtotal

CPA auditing
period

Remarks

2018.01.01~

167

2018.12.31

Note 1: If there is any CPA or CPA Firm being replaced in current year, the auditing period should be indicated separately and the
reason for such replacement should be detailed in the remark column; also, the information regarding the audit and non-audit fee paid
should be disclosed.
Note 2: non-audit remuneration should be listed separately by service category. If the "Other" category amounts to 25% of total
non-audit remuneration, then services must be detailed in the remarks column.

A. Remuneration of non-audit services to CPAs, CPAs’ firm and its affiliated companies
that exceed one quarter of audit remuneration: None.
B. If a change in accounting firm resulted in a lower audit remuneration for that year
compared to the previous year, the amount, percentage, and reason of the reduction must
be disclosed: None.
C. If the audit remuneration was reduced by more than 15% from the previous year, the
amount, percentage, and reasons for the reduction must be disclosed: none.

3.5 Change of CPA: If the Company has replaced its Certified Public
Accountant within the last 2 fiscal years or any subsequent interim period:
None.

3.6 Disclosure of any of the Company’s Chairman, President, or managers
involved in financial or accounting affairs being employed by the auditor’s
firm or any of its affiliated company: None.
3.7 Shareholding transfers and share collateralization within the latest year, up
till the publication date of this annual report, initiated by directors,
managers and shareholders with more than 10% ownership interest
3.7.1 Shareholding transfers and changes in shares collateralized

Title (Note 1)
Director and major
shareholder

Name

Capital Securities Corp.

Unit: shares
2018
2019 (Up till 3/31)
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
shares
shares
shares held
shares held
collateralized
collateralized

8,960,622
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0

0

0

2018

Title (Note 1)

Name

Chairman, Director,
representative and CSO

Sun, Tien-Shan

Director representative

Liu, Ching–Tsun

Director representative

Wang, Jiunn-Chih

2019 (Up till 3/31)
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
shares
shares
shares held
shares held
collateralized
collateralized

42,560

0

-1,000

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

160

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-21,799

0

-

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-

-

Lee, Wen-Chu

-2,038

0

-756

0

Chen, Wen-Tsay,

10,109

0

0

0

Mao, Jen-Hua

1,308

0

0

0

-

-

0

0

Hsu, Jhen-Zong

0

0

0

0

Senior executive officer

Yang, Yau-Yu

0

0

0

0

Senior executive officer

Tseng, Wen-Jun

-8,890

0

0

0

Xia, Huan-Ting

3,000

0

-

0

-

-

0

0

5,974

0

0

0

0

0

-

-

0
0

0
0

0
0

Corporate Director
Director representative
Director representative
& CIO
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
President
Senior executive vice
president
Senior executive vice
president
Senior executive vice
president
Senior executive officer

Senior vice president
Senior vice president
Executive vice president
vice president

Hung Yeh Investment
Co., Ltd
Lee, Yi-Hui
(Reassigned on 2018.10.16 )

Chia, Chung-Tao
(Resigned on 2018.10.16 )

Shea, Jia-Dong
Chen, Kuo-Tay
(Elected on 2018.05.24)

Chuang, Chih-Chen
Chang, Yao-Tsay
(Resigned on 2018. 05.24 )

Lin, Chi-Cheng
(Appointed on 2019.01.02)

(Resigned on 2019. 03.11 )

Ho, Yu-Wen

(Appointed on 2019.01.02)

Yang, Rui-Ling
Chian, Yi-Cheng
(Resigned on 2018. 05.01 )

Senior vice president

Hsu, Ji-Ching

Senior vice president

Lin, Li-Juan

-27,470
-23,535

Senior vice president

Li, Zong-Wei

2,000

0

0

0

Senior vice president

Kuo, Shu-Zhen

5,000

0

0

0

Senior vice president

Lin, Xiao-Chian

1,024

0

0

0

Senior vice president

Peng, Jian-Cheng

1,300

0

-2,000

0

Senior vice president

Chen, Chi-Hau

-50,000

0

0

0
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2018

Title (Note 1)

Name

2019 (Up till 3/31)
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
(decrease) in
shares
shares
shares held
shares held
collateralized
collateralized

Senior vice president

Chen, Wei-Ting

7,528

0

0

0

Senior vice president

Huang, Wei-Ben

-4,974

0

0

0

0

0

-

-

0

0

-

0

Senior vice president
Senior vice president

Chang, Yong-Hua
(Resigned on 2018. 11.01 )

Chang, Lin-Chung

(Resigned on 2019. 03.01 )

Senior vice president

Fan, Jhen-Hong

0

0

0

0

Senior vice president

Jhuo, Zheng-Gang

0

0

0

0

1,500

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-

-

-

-

0

0

-

-

0

0

-

-

0

0

-

-

0

0

-4,064

0

0

0

0

0

-

-

824

0

0

0

-5,000

0

-

-

0

0

-

-

-4,000
3,400
-13,000
6,706

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

436

0

0

0

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Senior Manager
Senior Manager
Manager
Manager
Specialist

Ho, Zhuo-Yi
Chen, Tsung-Yu
(Appointed on 2018.04.01)

Chung, Cheng-Huang
(Appointed on 2018.04.02)

Gai, Ying-Hao

(Resigned on 2018. 05.01 )

Chu, Hsu

(Appointed on 2019.01.02)

Yang, Shih-Chuang

(Appointed on 2019.01.02)

Lin, Ching-Ming

(Appointed on 2019.01.02)

Huang, Pei-Lun

(Appointed on 2019.02.11)

Lian, Jing-Lian
Yueh, Cheng-Wu
(Resigned on 2018. 03.01 )

Huang, Guo-Rong
Lin, Chang-Hsing
(Resigned on 2018. 03.24 )

Huang, Chi-Jung

(Resigned on 2018. 07.31 )

Senior Specialist

Lin, Shiou-Ju

Senior Specialist

Liu, Bao-Hua

Senior Specialist

Chang, Li-Jiao

Senior Specialist

Tsao, Shu-Hui
Chang, Mu-Min

Senior Specialist

(Appointed on 2018.04.01)
Note 1: Shareholders holding >10% of the Company's outstanding shares should be specifically marked as major shareholders.
Note 2: If the counterparty for equity transfer or equity pledge is a related party, please fill out the form referred to below: None.

3.7.2 If the counterparty for equity transfer or equity pledge is a related party:
None.
3.8 Relationships among the Company’s top 10 shareholders including spouses,
second degree relatives or closer.
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Date of information: April 1st, 2019; Unit: Share

SELF SHAREHOLDING
NAME (NOTE 1)

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Wang, Jiunn-Chih
Hontai life insurance Co., Ltd.
Representative: Lu,Huan-I
Gains Investment Corp.
Representative: Huang,Pai-Chien

Shares
held

Shareholding
percentage

99,182,845

56.21%

SHARES HELD BY
SPOUSE AND UNDERAGE
CHILDREN

Shares
held

Shareholding
percentage

-

-

SHARES HELD IN THE
NAMES OF OTHERS

Shares Shareholding
held
percentage
-

-

2,934,106

1.66%

-

-

-

-

1,388,000

0.79%

-

-

-

-

Chang, Chia-Chin

891,577

0.51%

-

-

-

-

Chang, Ching-Tien

727,108

0.41%

-

-

-

-

Huang, Chin-Ming

725,000

0.41%

-

-

-

-

Sun, Tien-Shan

656,162

0.37%

0.35%

-

-

615,550

RELATIONSHIP
CHARACTERIZED
AS
SPOUSE OR
RELATIVE
OF SECOND
DEGREE OR
CLOSER AMONG
THE TOP-10
SHAREHOLDERS.
(NOTE 3)

Name

Relations
hip

None

None

None

None

None

None

Chang,
Ching-T
ien
Chang,
Chia-Ch
in

REMARKS

-

Father

-

Son

-

None

None

-

None

None

-

Feng Yang Investment Co., Ltd
None
None
651,781
0.37%
Representative: Wang, Hui-Chin
Tseng Mao Investment Co., Ltd
None
None
650,020
0.37%
Representative: Tung, Ta-Nien
Ying Chun Investment Co., Ltd
None
None
649,314
0.37%
Representative: Chang, Yen-Chih
Note 1: All top-10 shareholders have been listed. For corporate shareholders, the name of the corporate entity and the name of the
representative are shown separately.
Note 2: The percentages of shares held under own name, spouse's name, underage children's names, or in the names of others are
calculated separately.
Note 3: Relations among the abovementioned shareholders (including corporate and natural-person shareholders) have been disclosed in
accordance with the relationships defined in Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

3.9 Investments jointly held by the Company, the Company's directors,
managers, and enterprises directly or indirectly controlled by the Company.
Calculate shareholding in aggregate of the above parties:
Date: March 31st, 2019; Unit: thousand shares

Invested Business
(Note 1)

Held by Directors,
Supervisors, managers,
Held by the Company
and directly or indirectly
controlled enterprises
Shareholding
Shareholding
Shares
Shares held
percentage
percentage
held

Aggregate ownership
interest
Shares
held

Shareholding
percentage

214,000

97.27%

-

-

214,000

97.27%

5,000

100%

-

-

5,000

100%

True Partner Capital Advisor
H.K. Ltd.

245

49%

-

-

245

49%

Capital True Partner Technology
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

510

51%

-

-

510

51%

4,000

100%

-

-

4,000

100%

CSC Futures (H.K.) Ltd.
Capital International Technology
Corp.

Capital
Futures
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Technology

Note 1: Invested business which is recognized as long-term investments under equity method.
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IV. Funding Status
4.1 Capital and outstanding shares
4.1.1 Source of capital and share category:
A. share category
March 31, 2019；Unit：Shares

Share category
Registered
ordinary shares

Outstanding
shares

Authorizes capital
Unissued
shares

176,437,584

73,562,416

Remarks

Total
250,000,000

Listed
securities

B. Share capital composition
Unit: NT dollars
Year/
Month

Issue
Price
Per
Share

Authorized capital

Paid-up capital

Remarks
Paid in

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

Source of capital

properties
other than

Others

cash
Share capital

1997.02

10

20,000,000

200,000,000

20,000,000

200,000,000

1997.11

10

120,000,000

1,200,000,000

45,000,000

450,000,000

2003.11

10

120,000,000

1,200,000,000

61,500,000

615,000,000 totaling NTD

2009.03

27.5

120,000,000

2009.07

10

120,000,000

1,200,000,000

75,226,800

752,268,000

2010.06

10

120,000,000

1,200,000,000

84,630,150

846,301,500

2011.07

10

120,000,000

1,200,000,000

92,246,863

922,468,630

2013.08

10

120,000,000

1,200,000,000

100,087,847 1,000,878,470

2014.06

23.3

120,000,000

1,200,000,000

119,997,847 1,199,978,470

2015.07

10

250,000,000

2,500,000,000

122,397,804 1,223,978,040

2017.02

31.38

250,000,000

2,500,000,000

160,397,804 1,603,978,040

2018.08

10

250,000,000

2,500,000,000

176,437,584 1,764,375,840 transferred to capital

initiation
Cash issue totaling NTD
250,000,000
Private placement

None

-

None

Note1

None

165,000,000
IPO capital

1,200,000,000

67,650,000

676,500,000 increasing NTD
61,500,000
Increasing capital by
NTD75, 768,000 out
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
NTD94, 033,500 out
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
NTD76, 167,130 out
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
NTD78, 409,840 out
of earnings.
Increasing capital by
NTD199, 100,000
out of earnings.
Increasing capital by
NTD23,999,570
out of earnings
Cash issue totaling
NTD 380,000,000

None

Note： 1. Approved under Notice(86) Tai-Tsai-Cheng-84102 dated 1997.11.27.
2. Approved under Notice Tai-Tsai-Cheng-(7)- 0920154585 dated 2003.11.27.
3. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-(7) - 0980012451 dated 98.03.31.
4. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-0980032927 dated 2009.07.02 .
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Note3

None

Note4

None

Note5

None

Note6

None

Note7

None

Note8

None

Note9

None

Note10

None

Note11

Capital surplus
NTD 160,397,800

Note2

5. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-0990032848 dated 2010.06.25.
6. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1000033210 dated 2011.07.18.
7. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1020028556 dated 2013.07.22.
8. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1030014783 dated 2014.05.07.
9. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1040025089 dated 2015.07.03.
10. Approved under Notice Jin-Guan-Cheng-Chi-1050044467 dated 2016.11.15.
11. Approved at 2018.07.04.

4.1.2 Shareholder Structure:
Shareholder
Structure Government Financial
Agencies Institutions
Quantity
Number of
0
2
shareholders

Other
Institutional
Investors

As of the base date: April 1st, 2019
Foreign
Institutions
Individuals
Total
&
Individuals

74

8,482

61

8,619

Shares held

0

3,075,106

107,126,607

61,367,783

4,868,088

176,437,584

Percentage

0%

1.74%

60.72%

34.78%

2.76%

100.00%

Note: Primary exchange (or OTC) listed companies and emerging stock companies are required to disclose the shareholding ratio of
mainland Chinese investors. According to the Article 3 of Measures Governing Investment Permit to the People of Mainland Area,
mainland Chinese investors include the individuals, juristic persons, organizations, other institutions from Mainland and the
companies they invest into in a third area.

4.1.3 Shareholding Distribution Status:
A. Ordinary shares: Face value at ten dollars per share.
Shareholding range
1 to 999
1,000 to 5,000
5,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 15,000
15,001 to 20,000
20,001 to 30,000
30,001 to 40,000
40,001 to 50,000
50,001 to 100,000
100,001 to 200,000
200,001 to 400,000
400,001 to 600,000
600,001 to 800,000
800,001 to 1,000,000
1,000,001and above
Total

Number of
shareholders
2,043
4,362
936
425
192
227
123
72
120
76
24
4
11
1
3
8,619

B. Preference shares: None.
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As of the base date: April 1st, 2019

Number of shares
held (shares)
483,915
9,178,666
6,770,546
5,180,578
3,435,087
5,552,167
4,281,492
3,200,129
7,857,467
10,531,930
6,384,209
2,045,642
7,139,228
891,577
103,504,951
176,437,584

Shareholding
percentage (%)
0.27%
5.2%
3.84%
2.94%
1.95%
3.15%
2.43%
1.81%
4.45%
5.97%
3.62%
1.16%
4.05%
0.50%
58.66%
100.00%

4.1.4 List of major shareholders
Base date: April 1st, 2019

Name of major shareholder

Shareholding

Capital Securities Corp.
Hontai life insurance Co., Ltd.
Gains Investment Corp.
Chang,Chia-Chin
Chang,Ching-Tien
Huang,Chin-Ming
Sun, Tien-Shan
Feng Yang Investment Co., Ltd
Tseng Mao Investment Co., Ltd
Ying Chun Investment Co., Ltd

Number of shares
held (shares)
99,182,845
2,934,106
1,388,000
891,577
727,108
725,000
656,162
651,781
650,020
649,314

Shareholding
percentage
(%)
56.21%
1.66%
0.79%
0.51%
0.41%
0.41%
0.37%
0.37%
0.37%
0.37%

4.1.5 Market price, net worth, earnings, and dividends per share, and other
relevant information for the last two years
Year
Item
Market price Highest
per share Lowest
(Note 1)
Average
Net Worth Before dividend distribution
per share
(Note 2) After dividend distribution
Weighted average outstanding
shares
Earnings per Earnings per share
(Before adjustment)(Note 3)
share
Earnings per share
(After adjustment) (Note 3)
Cash dividend
From earnings
Dividends Stock
per share dividend From Capital Surplus
Cumulative undistributed
dividends (Note 4)
P/E ratio(Note 5)
ROI analysis Price to dividend ratio (Note 6)
Cash dividend yield (Note 7)

Unit: NT$; shares
Year-to–date
March 31, 2019
(Note 8)

2017

2018

48.50

68.8

48.45

34.5
39.83
26.28

39.4
55.87
28.52

44.70
46.57
-

22.98

(Not distribute yet)

-

171,856,762

176,437,584

-

4.68

4.73

-

4.25

(Not distribute yet)

-

2.87
0.00
1.00

3.40
0.00
0.00

-

0.00

0.00

-

8.51
13.88
7.21%

11.81
16.43
6.09%

-

*Where stock dividends were paid from earnings or capital surplus, market price and cash dividends per share are adjusted retrospectively
for the number of new shares issued.
Note 1: The table shows the highest and lowest market price of common shares in each year; average market price is calculated by
weighing transacted prices against transacted volumes in the respective years.
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Note 2: Calculated based on the number of outstanding shares at year-end; amount of distribution resolved in next year's shareholders
meeting is presented in the table.
Note 3: Where stock dividends were issued, EPS are disclosed in amounts before and after retrospective adjustments.
Note 4: If equity securities are issued with terms that allow dividends to be accrued and accumulated until the year the Company
makes profit, the amount of cumulative undistributed dividends up till the current year is disclosed separately.
Note 5: P/E ratio = average closing price per share for the year / earnings per share.
Note 6: Price to dividend ratio = average closing price per share for the year / cash dividends per share.
Note 7: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividend per share / average closing price per share for the current year.
Note 8: Net worth per share and earnings per share are based on audited (auditor-reviewed) data as at the latest quarter before the
publication date of this annual report. For all other fields, calculations are based on data as at the end of their respective years.

4.1.6 The Company’s dividend policy and execution
A. Dividend policy stated in the Company's Articles of Association:
The dividend policies stated in the Company’s Articles of Association is to ensure
long-term financial stability and business development while satisfying the needs for
future growth, and thereby maximizing shareholders' interests. According to the
Company's articles of Association, any profits concluded from year-end closure are first
subject to taxation and reimbursement of previous losses, followed by a 10% provision
for legal reserve, a 20% provision for special reserve, and other provisions required by
law.
Distribution of annual earnings, including accumulated retained earnings are
distributed for the purpose of reserving capital required for operation; other dividends
can be distributed in cash, and cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the total
distributed dividend. According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, after-tax
earnings should first offset accumulated deficit, and then 10% of the remainder should
be appropriated as legal reserve.
B. Dividends distribution proposed in the general shareholders' meeting:
The net profit after-tax of the Company in 2018 is NT$835,205,487 plus (1)
Accumulated undistributed earnings NT$ 482,614, and (2) Returned Special reserve
appropriated due to other reduction of shareholders’ equity occurred NT$19,869,129,
then subtracts (3)Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan included in Retained Earnings of
this year NT$ 372,874, to calculate the distributable net profit in 2018 is
NT$855,184,356 which according to the Article of Association of the Company can be
distributed as following:
1. The amount of legal reserve is NT$83,520,549.
2. The amount of special reserve is NT$171,217,124.
3. Cash dividend will amount to NT$599,887,786 at NT$3.4/share on the basis of
176,437,584 outstanding shares round to the nearest NTD. The fraction falling below
this amount shall be recognized as other incomes of the Company, as for the
unappropriated retained earnings in the end of term is NT$ 558,897. The Chairman
shall set the dividend day and related issues upon the finalization of the General
Meeting of shareholders.
4. If the Company is affected the number of outstanding shares as a result of changes in
share capital, so that the shareholders of the interest rate changes, intends to
authorize the Chairman to adjust.

4.1.7 Impacts of proposed stock dividends on the Company's business
performance and earnings per share: Not applicable.
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4.1.8 Employee compensation and remuneration to directors
A. Proportion or range of employees’ compensation and Directors' remuneration
specified in the Articles of Incorporation:
According to the article 27 stated on Articles of Association, the Company should
distribute 0.6% to 2% of the profit of the current year distributable as employees’
compensation, and 3% or less of its profit of the current year distributable as
Directors’ remuneration. However, the Company's accumulated losses shall have been
covered first. The Company’s profit of the current year distributable mentioned above
is the earnings before tax deducting employees’ compensation and Directors’
remuneration.
B. The Company’s profit in 2018 is NT$ 974,421,424 (It hasn’t less before-tax income
that is subject to the estimation of employee’ and directors’ remuneration yet).
According to Articles of Association, the Board of Directors concluded to distribute
2018 employee remuneration totaling NT$ 12,082,826 which percentage to profit of
current fiscal year is 1.24% and directors' remuneration totaling NT$ 12,082,826 in
cash. And it is the same amount as Board meeting’s resolution.
C. The estimated amounts of remuneration to employee and director and supervisors
distributed by the Company for 2017 were both NT$ 10,777,000. There was no
difference between resolution which approved by Board meeting and actual
distribution.
D. The Directors' remuneration policy and standard was created in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The Board of Directors is authorized to determine
remuneration levels for each Director based on their involvements and contributions to
the Company's operations, in reference to peer standards. Travel subsidies can also be
made depending on their actual attendances to the Board of Directors meetings.
Remuneration to the Chairman and Vice Chairman are determined based on their job
responsibilities, the normal level of salary, and annual performance, and are subject to
the Board of Directors' approval.
In order to ensure congruency between employees' goals and shareholders' interests
while being able to retain quality talents, the Company has established the “Principles
of Employee Performance”, “Guidelines of Employee year-end awards”….etc.

4.1.9 Shares repurchased by the Company in the most recent years: None
4.2 Disclosure relating to corporate bonds, preference shares, depository
receipts, employee stock warrants: None
4.3 Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and
Acquisitions: None.
4.4 Financing plan and Implementation:
A. Plan: Not applicable.
B. Progress: Not applicable.
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V. Operating Highlights
5.1 Content of Business
5.1.1 Business Scope
The mainly business of the Company is including futures clearing and
settlement, and clearing and settlement service, futures brokerage, proprietary
futures and securities trading, futures consulting business, leverage trading business,
derivative financial products development….etc. Except for Taiwan’s Futures
clearing and settlement market, the Company also focus on global futures market,
including the exchanges of the U.S., Singapore, Hong Kong, Europe and Japan, and
develop an online trading system providing clients to place orders with Direct
Market Access to those exchanges. In general speaking, the Company is the second
largest futures dealer for overseas futures and option products in Taiwan.
The Company’s subsidiary CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. has acquired
memberships as Clearing Members or Trading Members in twelve international
futures exchanges, and it is also the first FCM in Taiwan which acquired brokerage
and proprietary trading dual memberships of Singapore Derivatives Exchange, as
well as the first company approved for exchange memberships of the CME Group
such as CME, CBOT, NYMEX, and COMEX. Also, the Company is a trading
member of EURONEXT, ICE Futures Europe, ICE Futures U.S., and a TPH of
CBOE Futures Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange and Clearing House.
The Company always actively explores and cultivates every opportunity of further
developments in the finance industry. Clients of the Company may learn its ambition
by contacting salespersons, trading on the well-designed IT system, and
experiencing the professional risk management system.
A. Principle Business Activities:
(Business approved by Financial Supervisory Commission R.O.C.)。
1. Futures brokerage.
2. Futures consultation services.
3. Futures managed business.
4. Proprietary futures trading.
5. Securities introducing agency.
6. Securities investment consulting business.
7. Proprietary securities trading.
8. Leverage transaction merchant.
B. Business weightage
Year

Item
Brokerage commission
Securities commission
Net gains in the derivative
financial instruments
Consultancy fee income
Others
Total

Revenue
1,510,521
769,392

2017

Unit: NT$ thousand; %

2018
Ratio (%)
65
16

Ratio (%)
56
29

Revenue
1,858,391
453,195

217,646

8

538,128

19

17,834
160,978
2,676,371

1
6
100

29,057
(29,279)
2,849,492

1
(1)
100

Source from: consolidated audited financial statements
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C. Current products and services
1. Futures brokerage
 Consigned trading of futures contracts over Taiwan Futures Exchange.
 Consigned of options contracts trading over Taiwan Futures Exchange.
 Consigned of futures and options contracts trading over the U.S., Singapore, Japan,
Hong Kong and Europe.
 Futures clearing and settlement, and clearing and settlement service.
2. Proprietary futures trading
 Proprietary trading of domestic and overseas futures and options products.
 Market-making for futures and options to create market liquidity.
3. Futures consultation
 Engaged for providing analyses, opinions, or recommendations on futures trading.
 Published books which relate to futures products.
 Organized futures related seminars and campaigns.
4. Securities introducing broker
 Commissioned by securities firms to solicit investors into securities trading.
 Accepted investors' account opening applications on behalf of securities firms.
 Accepted securities trade orders from investors and forwards them to securities
firms for execution.
 Informed investors of settlement matters on behalf of securities firms.
5. Futures managed business
 Accepted particular investor’s appointment of fully authorized futures trading
business.
 Other business that approved by authorities.。
6. Proprietary securities trading
 Proprietary trading of securities listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange.
 Proprietary trading of securities within business premise.
7. Leverage Transaction Merchants.
 Leverage transaction margin business
D. The new products/services
1. To invest high-speed connecting IT system
(a) With the progress of globalization, investors are encouraged to arrange their
investments globally with various strategies. As a pioneer in the futures industry,
Capital Futures had launched a global research platform targeting both domestic
products and international main products. This research platform offers multiple
trade information including index futures, foreign exchange futures, commodity and
raw material futures to fulfill different needs of clients. Through connecting theories
and practices to provide the complete data charts and high quality information
service to traders. In addition, the Company has been the first Taiwanese FCM
providing electronic trading of CME options and directly obtaining the DMA quotes.
Therefore, the Company not only launched “Capital Leopard App” which could
provide real-time global information in 2015, but launched “The king of winner
strategy” which obtain the DMA quotes of options products such as EUR, gold, mini
S&P index…etc. and accelerate substantially the trading process.
(b)Hong Kong is continuously as the trading center for developing the global futures
and securities platform.
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The subsidiary, CSC Futures (H.K.) Ltd., is the global business center of the
Company, has acquired 11 exchange memberships worldwide, also successfully
made its name known in Hong Kong’s among the world’s leading FCMs by
leveraging its headquarters’ direct market access (DMA) arrangement in most
major futures exchange globally. CSC Futures (H.K.) Ltd. is servicing mainland
China and global clients by its stable financial status, outstanding IT support, and
fruitful product line in Hong Kong.
(c) Development of subscription economy and membership management
The Company’s innovated live program “Capital View” is mainly provide exclusive
financial points and investment analysis would satisfy the hedging needs from
high-asset customers. To combine with social medium to develop platform
subscription economy and also providing global financial information and
professional research suggestions for operating membership community program
and transaction.
2. Industry Overview
(a) Current industry conditions
(1) Existing market participants
As of the end of 2018, the Taiwan futures industry included 14 enterprises engaged
in the futures brokerage business, which operated a total of 32 locations; 15
concurrently operated futures commission merchants at 103 locations; 47
introducing brokers at 766 locations. In the area of proprietary trade, there are 12
futures firms and 21 financial institutions running proprietary futures trade. In the
area of clearing and settlement, there are 21 general clearing members, 7 individual
clearing members, and 9 clearing banks. The official statistics of the Taiwan
Futures Exchange revealed in late 2018, there were 1, 802,391 natural person
(individual) accounts accumulated and 10,311 juristic person accounts.
Among the above classifications, The Company is a specialized futures commission
merchant, a specialized proprietary trader, an ordinary clearing member, a
composite futures consultation firm, a composite futures management firm,
securities introducing broker, a composite securities proprietary trader and leverage
transaction merchants.
(2) Customer structure
The structure chart for trading volume of domestic futures market is as below:

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange
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Highlights of market participants:
Year

Total number of trading accounts

Individuals

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Unit: account

1,461,075
1,500,489
1,551,700
1,613,705
1,673,599
1,739,050
1,802,391

Percentage of trading volume
in market

Institutional
investors
Institutional
Percentage
Percentage Individuals
investors
Foreign
Total
Investors

99.39%
99.39%
99.39%
99.40%
99.41%
99.41%
99.43%

8,952
9,165
9,460
9,694
9,867
10,282
10,311

0.61%
0.61%
0.61%
0.60%
0.59%
0.59%
0.57%

47.17%
51.54%
50.03%
47.19%
50.00%
54.41%
48.30%

11.59%
10.85%
9.49%
12.02%
16.13%
15.56%
20.26%

52.83%
48.46%
49.97%
52.81%
50.00%
45.59%
51.69%

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Since the liquidity and turnover of stock market became more mature, hedging
demand and speculation channels from traders was increased gradually. Therefore,
the number of accounts which opened for trading futures was increased by years.
As of the end of 2018, there were a cumulative 1,812,702 trading accounts,
1,802,937 (99.43%) of which were individual investors and 10,311 (0.57%) were
institutional investors. Obviously, the main traders in futures market are individual
investors in Taiwan. The below table revealed the information of trading statistics
and structure which classified by market participant:
Item

Proprietary
Trading
Securities Firms

Futures
Proprietary traders
Securities
Investment
Trust Companies
Foreign &
Mainland Area
Institutional
Investors
Managed Futures
Enterprises and
Futures Trust
Funds
Other Institutional
Investors
Individual
Investors

Unit: thousand lots

Buy

2014
519

2015
524

2016
782

2017
1,086

2018
1,006

Sell

460

515

749

1,173

1,096

Buy

78,780

103,934

78,227

84,767

91,531

Sell

80,996

105,935

79,610

85,204

94,113

Buy

49

173

641

667

623

Sell

47

177

673

658

609

Buy

20,060

32,699

39,943

39,599

63,149

Sell

18,349

30,894

38,042

36,967

61,680

Buy

138

241

184

116

135

Sell

135

236

181

111

118

Buy
Sell
Buy
Sell

1,192
1,578
101,674
100,846

1,928
2,092
124,998
124,646

1,340
1,318
120,563
121,105

1,513
1,493
137,958
140,098

2,236
2,230
149,402
148,234

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange
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In terms of traders’ structure, individual investors and futures proprietary traders
are still the main market participants, the proportion of market transactions in 2018
was 48.30% and 30.13% respectively, but compared to 2017, it was less 4% and
1.9% respectively. In other words, the proportion of market transactions of foreign
investors was 20.26% in 2018 which increased 41% from the previous year to
become the largest growth of trading volume among other investors.
Since the global stock markets have been suffering serious turmoil, the hedging
demand from foreign investors increased at the same time, and it also increases the
trading opportunities. On the other hand, individual investors would reduce the
trading frequency under the same circumstance.
Furthermore, in the area of expanding institutional participation, Taiwan Futures
Exchange (Abbreviation: TAIFEX) organized its fourth annual “Diamond Awards”
to encourage managed futures firms, futures trust enterprises…..etc. TAIFEX also
visited institutional investors, actively promoted the work of the “Institutional
Investor and Futures Services Business Task Force”, and arranged training courses
for futures-industry workers. As a result of these efforts, 211 new institutional
investors participated in the Taiwan futures market in recent two years, and the
growth of trading volume in exchange and foreign stock index related products was
32% and 179% respectively in 2018.

5.1.2 Industry development
A. Market participants’ trends
With regard to the development status of domestic futures market participants, it
has been almost completed. However, futures proprietary traders still have room for
growth with their advantages in technology and cost in the future. In terms of futures
managed business, it will gradually transform with the opening of futures trust
business which makes the market grow upward. Moreover, the professional futures
brokers will gradually follow the market trend of “the bigger ones always get bigger”.
B. Trend in customer structure
Institutional traders still accounted a low percentage in current customer structure.
For this reason, TAIFEX has always sought to expand institutional participation in the
futures market, and took a number of actions to achieve that objective in 2018. Also,
TAIFEX was an active participant in international organizations and events for
attracting institutional and foreign investors.
As for individual investors, due to the continuing development of new products in the
futures market, promoting new systems, lifting relevant trading qualifications laws, as
well as the industry’s striving to propose a positive and effective marketing program,
the number of new accounts has been growing stably in recent two years.
C. Association between upstream, midstream, and downstream industry participants
The primary function of a futures commission merchant is to supply derivative
instruments into the market, whether the underlying assets are shares, foreign
currencies, interest rates, agricultural commodities, precious metal, or energy. These
instruments allow commodity suppliers or buyers to lock in their prices during volatile
times, so that can transfer price risks within the futures market and run their businesses
with more certainty. Therefore, the futures market is where hedgers, speculators, and
arbitragers transact for their own causes, and is necessary to achieving free market
economy. In futures market does not have upstream, mid-stream, or downstream
connections as does manufacturing.

- 91 -

D. The development trends for each product
Instruments traded over the market consisted mainly of domestic futures,
domestic options, and U.S., Japanese, Singaporean, Hong Kong, and European
instruments. Domestic futures mainly consisted of index futures, while trading for
domestic options was mainly concentrated in options on index futures. U.S.
instruments consisted mainly of foreign currency futures, stock index futures, interest
rate futures, gold futures, agricultural commodity futures, and energy futures.
European instruments consisted mainly of stock index futures and commodity futures.
The stock index futures, gasoline futures, rubber futures and agricultural futures are
the main commodities traded at Japanese Futures Exchange. Singaporean instruments
consisted mainly of MSCI Taiwan index futures, A50 and Nikkei 225 futures. Hong
Kong instruments consisted mainly of Heng Seng and H Stock Index futures. The
figures below represent the trading volume statistics for major products in exchanges
at home and abroad over the past seven (7) years:
Unit: Lot
Item

Taiwan
Futures products
(unilateral)

Year

Taiwan
Options products
(unilateral)

Total

2012

47,769,142

108,962,770

156,731,912

2013

43,389,650

109,835,588

153,225,238

2014

50,057,345

152,353,748

202,411,093

2015

72,052,902

192,442,758

264,495,660

2016

73,102,459

168,576,097

241,678,556

2017

78,408,549

187,297,120

265,705,669

2018

112,731,243

195,352,333

308,083,576

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Unit: Lot

Item
Year
2012

5,140,874

3,760,770

267,354

74,249

203,934

9,447,181

2013

6,641,148

5,320,795

443,054

172,358

279,220

12,856,575

2014

6,431,440

6,084,166

495,635

332,244

722,566

14,066,051

2015

8,968,438

16,038,782

680,263

590,129

1,272,488

27,550,100

2016

11,219,762

18,696,637

982,455

75,522

1,614,864

33,289,240

2017

12,709,462

17,702,462

1,075,054

520,921

874,618

32,882,517

2018

15,355,474

24,912,780

1,388,343

756,310

525,202

42,938,109

U.S.

Singapore

Hong Kong

Japan

Others

Total

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

The Taiwan futures market recorded total trading volume of 308,083,576 lots and
average daily trading volume of 1,247,302 lots in 2018. These figures represented
growth of 15.95% and 15.48% respectively, from 2017’s levels. This growth is mainly
due to two reasons: First, the introduction of an after-hour session injected new energy
into the market, boosting trading volume to a record high and enabling it to remain
above 200-million contracts threshold for a fifth consecutive year. This after-hour
session extends the daily trading to 19 hours, offering investors an outstanding trading
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and hedging channel through which they can trade around clock. This session has
continued to grow on 2018’s increasing volatility in international financial markets,
and its average daily volume was equivalent to 13.15% of the regular session’s volume
in the same products in Jan. 18th 2018. In February, that figure rose to 22.6%.And the
other reason is regarding to the trading volume of futures products grew up 43.77%,
especially for MTX, TX and stock futures (include ETF futures) which all meet the
record high and grew up 72.92%, 38.02% and 21.74% from the previous year
respectively. Among above three futures products, the growth of MTX is the largest.
In the area of trading rules, TAIFEX drew on major foreign exchanges’
experience with dynamic price stabilization measures to introduce our dynamic price
banding mechanism on 22 January 2018. In addition, TAIFEX launched GBP/USD
FX Futures, AUD/USD FX Futures and Brent Crude Futures on 2018 to provide
investors with more diverse FX trading and hedging channels, fill out the FX product
line, and create a clustering effect. TAIFEX will also actively expand the market for
TAIFEX’s products through measures that include RMB futures index; studying the
feasibility of dividend futures and related products; and launching such products at an
appropriate time. To remain committed serving the real economy, TAIFEX and
futures commodity merchants move forward with these efforts to innovate and
diversify market’s products.
E. Competition
The Company is a futures commission merchant. The profitability of the major
competitors in 2018 was as following table:
Rank

Name of futures
merchant

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Optiver
KGI
Capital
Yuanta
Sinopac
President
Waterland
Masterlink
Hua Nan
Cathay

Number of shares
Cumulative
(thousand share) pre-tax profit/loss
60,000
86,080
176,438
232,276
93,830
66,000
25,000
70,000
53,500
66,700

970,490
675,555
950,256
1,245,581
391,540
254,138
51,443
137,358
68,767
68,112

Cumulative pre-tax
profit/loss EPS
(dollar)(note)
16.17
7.85
5.39
5.36
4.17
3.85
2.06
1.96
1.29
1.02

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

5.1.3 Technological research and development

The Company set up the research development which configure several financial
professionals, its main responsibility is for developing the new products and
providing information. Over the years, it successfully cooperate with
domestic/foreign institutional investors and contribute to promote institutional
sales business. In terms of product development, it was the first futures merchant
to develop the product which combine with stock and futures for balancing the
risk and return of futures and changing the stereotype successfully.
Besides, in terms of individual customers, the research development also develop
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the trading module program successfully and introduce it into the cloud platform
in 2010. Moreover, through the consulting department introducing high quality
customers, the research department provide the complete customer service via
signing the consulting contract with diversification and international strategic
investment targets. Recently, the unique options analysis model has been
developed successfully, which could analyze the volatility, the Open Interest, the
international market fluctuation….etc. precisely.
The main business of research development and technology is as below:
1. Developing the capital guarantee products which combine with futures and options
for institutional clients.
2. Developing the balanced products which combine α and β with futures and options.
3. Developing global portfolio futures products and event trading module.
4. Constructing the research platform for providing one-stop service.
5. Establishing Capital Leopard App to provide mobile platform services.
6. Constructing big data analysis to provide customize, differentiation and personal
services.
The technology and product was developed by Capital Futures:
1. Balanced products which link Securities and Futures products：These product are
mainly rely on Futures products supplemented by Securities products with low risk
and stable return which meeting institutional investors’ preference.
2. Option Greeks Evaluation Model: Evaluating options implied volatility with the
distribution of open interest in market and the reasonableness of other Greeks.
3. The program trading portfolio model of Foreign/Domestic Futures products:
Developing computer program trading portfolio model through connecting cloud
platform for providing more effective investment solutions, which has higher risk
and 20% above annual volatility. This product is mainly meet certain investors’
preference, who held more money than general investors.
4. Hedge model with the strategy of Options products copying Securities products:
This product is mainly rely on Futures products supplemented by Securities
products which combining different assets portfolio and obtaining profit from
different markets. The characters of this product are low risk and stable return
which could extend to other overseas markets with the same concept.
5. Spread model in different products/ markets: Constructing the spread model which
balancing convergence and divergence, with market characters such as strong/weak
structure, periodic cycles, fundamental changes, price induction….etc. factors.
6. Securities/Futures arbitrage and tax avoidance model: Successfully developing
non-risk or low-risk arbitrage and tax avoidance model, including Securities to
futures, futures to futures, futures to options…etc.
The research plan in the future and budget:
The current configuration of develop department is around 10~20 research
professionals, and it expected to expand in the future. In the next years, the Company
will take 1%~2% of consolidated sales to continuously recruit related professionals.
The predicted research expense is around NT$20~40 million dollars.
The company actively develop the domestic/foreign financial products that would
relate to futures and options with high-gross profit, high-adding value and overall
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solutions ability. The future research plan is including overseas futures market analysis,
trading strategy development, and the risk management for derivative products, for
constructing the research integrated platform and cloud strategy platform.
Academic/ career backgrounds of the R&D personnel are as below:
Year

Item

Postgraduate
study and above
University
Total
Average research
experience

2017

2018

Unit: Person
Up till March 2019

Head
count

Percentage

Head
count

Percentage

Head
count

Percentage

9

60%

7

35%

7

30.4%

6
15

40%
100%

13
20

65%
100%

16
23

69.6%
100%

2.60

3.31

The research and development expense for last 3 years:

2.53
Unit: NT$ thousand

Item

2016

2017

2018

Research and
Development
expense

21,840

30,834

35,702

5.1.4 Long-term and Short-term Development
A. Plan of Short-term Development
1. To richly cultivate and duplicate the overseas market business: The Company will
develop the greater China market with the DMA advantages of overseas futures
products, such as CME Group、HK、SGX、Euronext、EUREX、ICE…etc.
2. To enhance the professional services of IB (introducing brokerage) business in
domestic and foreign futures and ETF hedging business which protect customers’ asset
and increase sales profit.
3. The Company expands the leveraged trading and derivative business to provide the
hedge solutions for listing companies, small and medium enterprises for creating new
source of income.
4. To enhance the trading performance of our futures and securities proprietary team
continuously and also recruit outstanding traders who are with the profession of spread
strategy, high-frequency trading, market making and operating ability for raising the
profit and diversifying the market risk.
5. To develop the advantages of our real-time system and popularize the hedge module for
expanding domestic/ foreign institutional customers aggressively and focus on raising
the trading volume and customer margin.
6. To keep the leading advantages in innovation, the Company upgraded new functions
for our global trading platform (includes mobile platform) to provide speedy and safe
investment environment.
7. Continue to develop our Hong Kong subsidy as a global trading center for providing
the turnkey trading system in the global market, combines the information advantage
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for supporting the trading platform of B2B and B2C which is highly relied on trading
companies and Chinese Private Equity Fund.
8. To recruit professional consultants who are focused on futures and securities area, and
combine with promoting Hong Kong Type 4 and 5 business licenses.
9. The Company plans to establish a Futures Company in China (joint venture or
solely-invested) which combined with the comprehensive effect of Shanghai and
Chengdu subsidiaries.
10. The innovated live program of “Capital View” mainly provides exclusive financial
overview points and investment analysis would let customer wins at the starting point.
11. To establish a futures investment trust company and also combine Hong Kong Type 9
business license for developing the asset management business.
12. To evaluate participating “Regulatory Sandbox” and try out various financial
innovation business.
13. To connect with social medium and develop platform subscription economy for
providing global financial information and professional research suggestions which
towards to member management and community business.
14. Big data center will be established for precision marketing with information integration
and customer classification management to enhance customer satisfaction.
15. To strength the corporate governance implement, the Company would hold training
courses regarding to internal control, information system safety and money
laundering….etc. Also, above training courses will be considered with risk
management control.
B. Plan of Long-term Development
1. Getting the largest market share of overseas brokerage business, the third largest
market share of domestic brokerage business, the largest profit of domestic proprietary
business and the largest profit of leverage transaction.
2. Actively develop the leverage transaction business, and implement the real economy.
3. To invest high-speed connecting IT system and be the leading FCM in speed and
differentiation.
4. Treat Hong Kong as the global futures and securities platform and develop Hong Kong
financial business with applying Hong Kong Type 4 and 5 business license.
5. The Company plans to establish a Futures Company in China (joint venture
/solely-invested) which be the first Taiwanese FCM in China.
6. The exclusive live program “Capital View” of the Company could satisfy the
investment hedging demand of high-assets customers.
7. To develop assets management business and establish futures trust company for issuing
domestic/foreign private equity.
8. To evaluate participating “Regulatory Sandbox” and try out various financial
innovation business.
9. To develop social media and platform subscription economy for customer member
management and create new business opportunities.
10. Strengthen corporate governance and become the leading brand in the market.
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5.2 Market and Sales Overview
5.2.1 Macro-economy environment analysis for Futures market
1. Locations where products (services) are primarily sold (provided), and market share
information

As a clearing-trading dual member of Taiwan Futures Exchange, the Company roots
in Taiwan and activity connects to the world. Including our subsidy in HK, the
Company has acquired memberships as clearing members or trading members in
twelve international futures exchanges. The Company has developed on online trading
system providing clients to place orders with Direct Market Access (DMA) to those
exchanges. With the advantages of speedy, stable, and low latency services, the
Company overwhelmed the trading environment and usages in the futures industry;
thus, the Company became the most famous FCM in Taiwan. To date, the Company
goes on retaining its striking reputation and pioneer status.
The Company’s market share of overseas futures product business was 22.5% in 2018
which was the second largest FCM in Taiwan. Besides, we also construct Hong Kong
subsidy as the global trading center for providing the turnkey trading system. The
Company’s market share of futures brokerage business, futures products and options
products was 9.97%, 8.34% and 6.18% in 2018 respectively which all ranked the third
largest in Taiwan. The detail information regarding to the market share is as below
table:
Table 3: The Market share information of Top 10 FCMs in brokerage futures business for
consecutive 3 years—Total products:
2016
Trading
Name of volume of
Rank
FCM
brokerage
business
1
Yuanta
83,623
2
KGI
50,665
3
Capital
29,560
4
Sinopac
29,547
5
Concords
21,271
6
President
19,626
7
Jih-Sun
12,589
8
Fubon
11,905
9 Masterlink
11,344
10 Dah-Chang 10,356

2017
Trading
Market
Name of volume of
Share
brokerage
FCM
(%)
business
17.30
Yuanta
88,787
10.48
KGI
53,022
Sinopac
35,511
6.12
6.11
Capital
33,489
4.40
Concords
26,028
4.06
President
21,470
2.60
Jih-Sun
14,869
2.46
Fubon
14,071
2.35 Masterlink
13,472
2.14
Hua Nan
9,864

Unit: thousand lots
2018
Trading
Market
Market
Name of volume of
Share
Share
brokerage
FCM
(%)
(%)
business
119,575
19.40
16.71
Yuanta
67,470
10.95
9.98
KGI
42,930
6.97
6.68
Capital
37,490
6.08
Sinopac
6.30
23,323
3.79
4.89
President
20,838
3.38
4.04
Concords
16,522
2.68
2.79
Fubon
2.51
2.65
Jih-Sun
15,438
2.29
2.54
Hua Nan
14,133
14,003
2.27
1.86 Masterlink

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Table 4: The Market share information of Top 10 FCMs in brokerage futures business for
consecutive 3 years—Futures products:
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Unit: thousand lots

2016
Trading
Name of volume of
Rank
FCM
brokerage
business
31,327
1
Yuanta
27,733
2
KGI
11,720
3
Capital
8,970
4
Sinopac
Concords
4,892
5
4,751
6
President
Jih-Sun
4,237
7
Fubon
4,154
8
4,104
9 Masterlink
2,721
10 Dah-Chang

2017
Market
Share
(%)

Rank

Name of
FCM

21.42
18.97
8.02
6.14
2.80
3.35
3.25
2.89
2.84
1.86

Yuanta
KGI
Sinopac
Capital
Concords
President
Jih-Sun
Fubon
Masterlink
Hua Nan

34,050
26,246
10,243
11,925
5,807
5,912
5,071
4,912
4,409
2,701

2018

Trading
Market
volume of
Share
brokerage
(%)
business
21.71
Yuanta
16.74
KGI
6.53
Capital
7.60
Sinopac
3.70
President
3.77
Concords
3.23
Fubon
3.13
Jih-Sun
2.81
Hua Nan
1.72 Masterlink

Rank

Name of
FCM

54,071
42,537
18,793
13,845
8,690
8,420
7,464
6,552
4,559
5,494

23.98
18.87
8.34
6.14
3.85
3.73
3.31
2.91
2.02
2.43

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Table 5: The Market share information of Top 10 FCMs in brokerage futures business for
consecutive 3 years—Options products:

Unit: thousand lots

2016
Trading
Name of volume of
Rank
FCM
brokerage
business
1
52,296
Yuanta
2
22,932
KGI
Sinopac
3
20,577
Capital
4
17,840
5
Concords
17,168
6
President
14,735
7
Jih-Sun
7,840
8
Fubon
7,668
9 Dah-Chang
7,635
10 Masterlink
7,190

2017
Market
Share
(%)

Rank

Name of
FCM

15.51
6.80
6.10
5.29
5.09
4.37
2.33
2.27
2.26
2.13

Yuanta
KGI
Sinopac
Capital
Concords
President
Jih-Sun
Fubon
Masterlink
Hua Nan

54,736
26,776
25,267
21,563
20,220
15,558
9,798
9,159
9,062
7,162

2018

Trading
Market
volume of
Share
brokerage
(%)
business
14.61
Yuanta
7.14
KGI
6.75
Capital
5.76
Sinopac
5.40
President
4.15
Concords
2.62
Fubon
2.45
Jih-Sun
2.42
Hua Nan
1.91 Masterlink

Rank

Name of
FCM

65,503
24,932
24,136
23,645
14,633
12,417
9,058
8,886
9,573
8,509

16.77
6.38
6.18
6.05
3.75
3.18
2.32
2.27
2.45
2.18

Source from: Website of Taiwan Futures Exchange

Table 6: The trading volume information of Top 10 FCMs in overseas futures business in 2018:
Unit: thousand lots

Rank

By product

CME G

SGX

HKEx

EUREX

Japan
ICE
(OSE,TC Others
M.TGE)
141,760 102,439 22,581

1

FCM
Yuanta

3,365,619

7,614,442

283,218

97,937

2

Capital

3,700,274

5,333,706

193,325

135,445

161,553

3

KGI

4

Sinopac

1,757,113

136,977

Market
Share
(%)
11,627,996
27.1
Total

5,210

9,666,490

22.5

122,087 54,933

3,484,615

175,405

51,502

76,844

5,722,499

13.3

1,026,766

2,696,002

423,671

20,505

54,614

73,431

1,579

4,296,568

10.0

5

Fubon

808,452

2,050,091

37,025

14,985

61,092

51,585

1,733

3,024,963

7.0

6

Concords

1,482,675

569,819

123,631

21,249

88

81,478

1,706

2,280,646

5.3

7

President

718,004

1,117,808

90,626

14,150

60,737

45,695

1,311

2,048,331

4.8

8

Jih-Sun

618,037

444,993

11,598

7,926

36,234

37,054

288

1,156,130

2.7

9

Masterlink

329,537

192,512

18,638

4,603

1,916

19,461

27

566,694

1.3

225,716

293,446

6,261

6,265

17,306

21,200

435

570,629

1.3

14,646,828 24,135,115

1,388,277

377,478

747,271

10

Cathay
Total

756,310 90,766

Source from: The Company summarized the information from TAIFEX and Chinese National Futures Association.

- 98 -

42,142,045 100.00

2. Futures market supply/demand and growth potentials
Total trading volume on Taiwan’s futures market amounted to 308,083,576 lots in
2018 increased by 15.95% from the previous year which met the record high and
revealed the strong growth in futures market. This is mainly due to the after-hour
session boosted market growth and extend its product roster including gold, crude oil
products and Electronic Sector Index Futures. Since the trading volume of electronic
stocks in Taiwan's stock market accounts for more than 50% of the market, and the
current ADRs issued by Taiwanese stocks in the US are all electronic stocks. In addition,
the total market value of issued ADR stocks accounts for more than 40% of listed
electronic stocks in Taiwan which has upstream and downstream supply chain relations
with technology industry in the US. Therefore, when the stock price of the US
technology industry fluctuates, the stock price of Taiwan's electronic stocks may also
fluctuate accordingly. Furthermore, after adding the electronic futures into after-hour
session product roster, it can meet some specific investors who have the hedging needs
to electronic futures in after-hour session. Due to some international factors in last year
cause high volatility of the market and after-hour session could cover European and
American trading hours which led to an increase in the overall trading volume of the
futures market.
In terms of global financial markets, the United States launched a tariff on steel and
aluminum products to the world in early March 2018, and then launched the trade world
with China. In 2018, except the United States, the economic performance of major
countries such as China, Europe, and Japan all showed slowdown. In addition, the
global financial market has been fluctuated this year since a lot of risky affairs from
Europe, such as the unsuccessful negotiations regarding to Britain falls out of the
European Union, and the high deficit budget proposed by the European government
which doubted by Italy government. Due to the unstable political and economic
situation, emerging market currencies also suffered from strong selling pressure, and
also global stock markets have been affected by US stocks. Therefore, the development
of the trade war between China and the US is the key to affect Taiwan stock market.
Looking ahead to 2019, although the external competition environment and the
related regulatory framework remains severe, such as the anti-money laundering
provisions become more rigorous, however, the overall operating environment of the
futures industry will grow up continuously due to the enhancement in price fluctuations
of the financial market.
3. Favorable and unfavorable factors in the Long Term and the strategies:
(a) Favorable factors:
 TAIFEX will continue to launch new products and systems to make the product
line of the domestic futures market complete and provide the traders a greater
variety of choices for hedging.
 The e-commerce and on-line trading would benefit to the Company’s diversified
business development.
 The Company who showed the strong operating ability, not only has a user
friendly E-trading platform and strong innovation in futures and options products,
but acquired memberships in twelve international futures exchanges.
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(b) Unfavorable factors:
The competition in futures market for price cuts is still flourishing and affects the
Company's profitability; as the Securities Companies merged and tend to become
enlargement, the competition between futures introducing broker business of
Securities Companies will become more intensely.
(c) Strategies:
 To promote overseas futures product actively which the Company has relative
market advantages, and stabilize the revenue.
 To enhance the service quality to customers, including IT trading platform,
customize service, market analysis suggestions….would let customers could
feel the difference between other competitors for resisting the price cut
competition.
 Marketing strategies: Through holding marketing activities of trading platforms
consecutively for raising the brand recognition and expanding market scale.

5.2.2 Production Procedures of Main Products: Not applicable.
5.2.3 Supply Status of Main Materials: Not applicable.
5.2.4 Major Suppliers and Clients in the last 2 years: Not applicable.
5.2.5 Production in the last 2 Years: Not applicable.
5.2.6 Shipments and Sales in the Last 2 Years: Not applicable.
5.3 Employee information
The number of employees, average years of service, average age, and academic
background in the last 2 years up till the publication date of this annual report:
Year

Academic
qualification

Number of employees
Average age
Average years of service
Doctoral Degree
Master’s Degree
Bachelor’s Degree
High school

2017

2018

240
36.7
5.6
0.8%
23.8%
69.6%
5.8%

248
36.7
5.83
1.2%
21.4%
71.4%
6.0%

2019
(Up till March 31st)

243
37.4
5.98
1.2%
23.0%
70.5%
5.3%

Note: This table is not included part-time employees.

5.4 Contribution to Environmental Protection: The Company is a financial service
provider and is not prone to pollution risk.
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5.5 Employer and employee relationships:
The centripetal force of employees to an enterprise is the foundation of
competitiveness, the Company has been hold in the spirit that employees are the most
important assets. Therefore, the Company insist that executes the fair human resources
policy, optimize welfare system, taking care to the staff properly, and through various
pipelines for recruiting more talents to join, would let employees creating value in
company, and also get the balance between life and workplace.
Furthermore, the Company sets the formulation of rules and regulations is based
on relevant laws and regulations, and implements the protection of the legitimate rights
and interests of all employees. The salary payment policy would not lower than the
statutory minimum basic wage, and not differentiated by gender, sexual orientation, age,
race, religion. For any personnel operations such as appointment, dismissal, transfer,
and salary adjustment, the Company would subject to the provisions of Article 5 of the
Employment Service Law, and would not discriminate employees by race, class,
language, thought, religion, partisanship, place of origin, place of birth, gender, sexual
orientation, age, marriage, appearance, facial features, and physical and mental
disabilities. The Company also has a reasonable reward system and holds
Remuneration Committee meeting regularly to evaluate the fairness of employee
rewards. The evaluation combines the annual operating status, price index, peer level
and other indicators with the individual performance of employees each year and as the
basis for annual salary adjustment and festival bonus.
Besides, labor-management meetings are held regularly according to law. The
scope of the meeting includes employee dynamics, operational plans and business
overview, coordination of labor relations, promotion of labor-management cooperation,
labor conditions, and planning of labor welfare, improvement of work efficiency and
labor proposals. In addition, the Company sets up "Employee Suggestion Box" in order
to encourage all colleagues to provide opinions actively, strengthen the work rights of
all colleagues, improve the operation process, and make profits and benefits.

5.5.1 Details regarding availability and execution of employee welfare,
education, training and retirement policies, agreements made between
employers and employees, and protection of employees' rights are
explained below:
A. The Company has formulated various bonus policies to appropriately reflect on the
employee's salary and compensation policy which based on the Company's business
performance for ensuring the recruitment, retention and encouragement of human
resources. To enhance the remuneration package of grassroots employees, promote a
win-win situation for labor and capital and implement corporate social responsibility,
the Company would achieve the goal of sustainable management.
B. Employee welfare: the Company registered the establishment of Employee Welfare
Committee with the authority in order to provide benefits such as wedding/funeral
subsidies, club activity subsidies, and group trips. Overall, the Employee Welfare
Committee operates with adequate budget and has been able to carry out its plans.
Various welfare measures of the Welfare Committee:
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1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Marriage subsidy: 19 persons; total amount of subsidy: NT$57,000
Employee death subsidy: 1 person; total amount of subsidy: NT$50,000.
Funeral subsidy: 59 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$295,000
Hospitalization subsidy: 33 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$310,000
Childbirth subsidy: 22 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$69,000.
Travel subsidy: 1,871 people; total amount of subsidy: NT$7,441,664

C. Employee education and training:
In an attempt to build a strong talent base and improve management performance, the
Company has been organizing a broad variety of training including: orientation,
specialization training, management reserve training, management growth training,
and seminars hosted by renowned experts and scholars on the topic of finance. Many
e-learning courses have also been designed to enhance outcome of the learning process,
which held during 2018/07/03~2018/09/25, a total 28 people participated. By utilizing
digital means, employees are able to learn and grow anytime, anywhere.
In order to cultivate various professional talents, the Company accords to the different
career stages and organizational development needs of personnel at all levels, and also
plan a comprehensive training plan and provide colleagues with timely and diversified
learning channels, so as to achieve win-win benefits of organizational talent
development and personal career development.
In 2018, the Company invited external professional lecturers to hold training courses
as follow items:
1.
I do, use the self-image to add points! How to achieve the Win-win images for
personal and company. (2018.4.18)
2.
I do, create Win-win performance! How to provide the good quality of service and
raise the customer satisfaction. (2018.5.9)
3.
I do, dare to change! Learning the internet marketing and raising the sales revenue.
(2018.6.13)
4.
Social media group operation is necessary to learn. How to use cell phone to take
perfect pictures. (2018.8.22)
5.
Using computer to generate some innovations and design ideas. (2018.10.3)
6.
Connecting life and video, and learning how to use the storyboard to tell stories.
(2018.11.21)
D. Pension System:
The Company established its Employee Pension Fund Supervisory Committee whose
responsibilities are to implement pension guidelines for the security of employees'
lifestyle after retirement, and thereby maintain a sustainable and harmonic relationship
between employees and the employer. The pension fund has been contributed
maximum 2% from employees’’ salaries for retirement preparation monthly; and
funded pension according to related regulations of financial accounting standards
No.18.and Financial Supervisory Commission. Since the enactment of Labor
Standards Act in April 1998, the Company has been making pension fund
contributions into a dedicated account held with Bank of Taiwan under the
committee's name. All employees who meet the criteria specified in the pension policy
are eligible to participate. Following the enactment of Labor Pension Act in July 2005,
employees are given the choice to opt for the new pension system or stay with the old
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plan. For those who opted for the new system, the Company has been contributing an
amount equal to 6% of employees' monthly salaries into their personal pension fund
accounts.
E. Employee insurance:
Apart from mandatory insurance coverage such as Labor Insurance and National
Health Insurance, the Company also provides employees with a broad variety of group
insurance coverage from life, accidental injury, accidental medical treatment, to
occupational hazard. Employees are invited to include their family members into
group insurance at discounted premium. Term life, accidental injury, medical
treatment, and cancer insurance policies have been offered to care for employees and
their family members.
F. The company has been maintaining harmonic interactions with its employees. Apart
from complying with labor regulations, the Company strives to resolve
labor-management affairs to the benefit of both parties.
G. Protection of employees' rights:
In addition to protect employees' legal rights, any affair that concerns employees'
interests is openly announced on the intranet, while matters that pertain to the interests
of individual employees are advised through active means.

5.5.2 The losses resulted from labor disputes in the last two years and up to
the annual report published date; disclosure of the current and noncurrent
estimated losses and the responsive measures; if such loss amount cannot
be reasonably estimated, please state the reason why: None.
5.5.3 The Company’s workplace environment and employee safety measures:
The Company pays close attention to employee’s safety and well-beings. The Company
is devoted to offering a nice workplace environment, and the implementations of related
protections and benefits are as follows:
Item
Insurance and 1.
benefit
2.

3.
4.

5.

Content
Labor Insurance and National Health Insurance.
Established the website for employee exclusive section, providing
the discussion area and training announcement.
Established the "Regulations for Establishing Measures of
Prevention, Correction, Complaint and Punishment of Sexual
Harassment at Workplace". The Company sign contracts with
health check center to provide preferential health checks for
employees.
Perform employee health screening on a regular basis.
Hire doctors on-site to perform a variety of consultation tasks,
such as hosting employee health education seminars, promoting
health awareness and promoting hygiene inspection, at
headquarters on a regular basis.
Employees are entitled to the coverage of group insurances, such
as group life insurance, group accident insurance, group
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Item

Content
accidental medical insurance, group occupational hazards
insurance, etc.
6. Formulating the "Entertainment & charity club establishment and
subsidy management regulations" to encourage the Company's
employees fostering the habit of participating sports activities and
charity events.
7. Holding the "Healthy mountain hiking" activity; the Company’s
employees may enjoy hiking on the mountains with their families
after working busily; in addition, employees may inhale
phytoncide in the forest to strengthen their bodies and minds.
8. Publishing the demonstration figure card for how to stretch on the
Company’s intranet. Holding the seminar with the issue “How
office workers deal with shoulder and neck acid” in Aug. 23, a
total of 65 people participated. As for the Physical fitness testing,
a total of 79 people participated.
9. Holding the seminar with the issue “Health lunch for office
workers”, a total of 55 people participated.
10.
Holding the “Free flu vaccination program in workplace
program” with Department of Health of Taipei City Government,
and a total of 35 qualified colleagues participated.
Environmental 1. Established “Tobacco Hazards Prevention Measure”.
health
2. Published "Tobacco Hazards Prevention Act" and "Ways to quit
smoking".
3. Held healthy seminar, CPR training, and cleaning and disinfecting
office environment regularly.
Safety
British Standards Institution (BSI) granted the ISO 22301 verification
to the Company as a certification of business continuity management.
certification
The purposes of BSI are as follows:
(a) the Company is capable of minimizing the damage when facing
accidental events;
(b) employee safety; law-compliance; clients' benefits; the Company's
business reputation; security of the Company's assets;
(c) The Company's important businesses are capable of resuming
businesses gradually within the targeted time to sustain operations.
Personal
Ahead of its peers, the Company is the first financial company in
information
Taiwan that obtained international personal information verifications of
securities, futures and insurance brokerage/agency. The Company's
verification
internal Personal Information Management System (PIMS) ensures
safety and protection of personal information. The Company follows
personal information laws relevant requirements and actively protected
rights of the involved parties. The Company lowers the impacts derived
from any infringement of personal information. Moreover, the
Company continues to operate and improve the personal information
management system.
Labor safety
1. Adopting access control system.
2. Setting up the office security management monitoring system.
3. Connecting with police station for keeping workplace safety.
4. The office environment is regularly cleaned and disinfected and
checked on April and October every year.

- 104 -

Item

Fire Safety

Insurance
safety

Content
5. The office environmental testing report has been submitted on
April 7th and October 6th in 2017.
6. Set up a specialize manager and emergency care person according
to the occupational safety and health Act. and arrange related
training courses.
7. Maintainese and inspection of electronic equipment, elevators, air
conditioners, vehicles, firefighting instruments regularly.
1. Conduct fire drills on a regular basis.
2. Regulated by National Fire Agency, Ministry of the Interior’s
regulations for fire prevent manager and professional institution
setup, a fire prevent manager shall receive an updated training at
least once every three years.
The Company's places of business and subsidiaries are entitled to the
insurance coverage of:
1. Commercial fire insurance.
2. Electronic equipment insurance.
3. Public liability insurance.

5.5.4 Employee’s behaviors and moral principles:
The Company requires all employees to sign a commitment to "Capital Financial
Group Employee Behavior Policy" and integrity principles when carrying out business
activities. Below are the key points of this policy:
A. We offer high value-adding products and services. We establish and maintain
long-term relationships with customers and help them achieve their goals.
B. We uphold the highest moral and safety standards in all our interactions and dealings
with customers. We provide rigorous protection for customers' information, and
make sure that information is used only to the extent permitted by law. All customers
explored during our employment are owned by the Company, and shall not be
referred to another company during or after employment.
C. We never put ourselves in situations where personal interests may work in conflict to
those of the Company or the customers.
D. We do not reveal to others any news or information gained in relation to our job role.
We shall refrain from holding or trading securities using own name or name of proxy.
E. Whether during or after our employment with the Company, we shall never: (1)
reveal any business secret gained during employment (including but not limited to
technologies, system programs, customers' information, trade strategies, business
information, personnel or organization records, accounting records, strategic plans
and any other information) for own use or use by others, or make illegal use of
non-public information (also referred to as "inside information"); and (2) exploit our
vested authorities for illicit gains for self or any other party.
F. We shall incorporate risk management and compliance practices into our business
procedures, and follow accordingly.
G. We report performance information and facts in a timely and accurate manner, and
strive to maximize the Company's interests.
H. We are aware of the fact that we are working with shareholders' assets. We shall
handle the Company's properties carefully as we do our own.
I. We do not use the Company's network and email systems for non-business related
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J.

K.
L.

M.
N.

O.

purpose such as: browsing, distribution and storage of disturbing literature, pictures
or offensive articles. Neither shall the Company's network system be used for
political discussions or propaganda, personal entertainment or any non-business
related purpose.
We shall comply strictly with regulations and refrain from using email, e-bulletin or
the Internet system (including but not limited to personal blog or online forums) to
conduct inappropriate sales activities, improper competition (without commission),
or make forecasts and recommendations regarding future transaction price of specific
contracts or trade strategies.
We shall maintain the accuracy and completeness of all information, reports, records
and data owned, used and managed by Capital Financial Group. We shall also refrain
from removing or transmitting them in any inappropriate manner.
To comply with the "Personal Information Protection Act," we shall refrain from
inquiring internal information and data that we do not have access to. All documents
of the Company are to be used solely for internal management, and cannot be
reproduced or used outside the scope mentioned above. We shall be solely
responsible for any civil and criminal liabilities that arise as a result of our violation.
We shall refrain from communicating with the public on our own. Only the
spokesperson may address the media on behalf of the Company.
We shall never accept or permit relatives or family members to accept any gift,
service, loan or special treatment offered by any party (including customers,
suppliers or any other party) for the purpose of gaining immediate or future
relationship with the Company.
We shall notify the line manager, the human resource department, the internal audit
department or any appropriate personnel whenever we discover a possible violation
against laws or the Company's work rules.
impleme

5.6 Major Contracts
Agreement

Counterparty

Agreement to
assume
President Futures Corp.
obligations
Retainer
agreement of
Capital Securities Corp.
Futures
Land bank of Taiwan
Introducing
Primasia Securities
Broker
business
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.
Hua Nan Commercial Bank
EnTie Commercial Bank
Custodian
EnTie Commercial Bank
Contract
Taishin International Bank
Standard Chartered Bank
Far Eastern International Bank

Period

1998.06.23~till now

2003.10.08~till now
2007.10.12~ till now
2018.09.03~ till now

Major Content
Restrictions
Commissioned the
Company to its
substitute when it
None
can’t carry out
related transaction
Obligations.
Appointed those
companies to be
substitutes of the
None
Company for futures
introducing broker
business.

1999.10.22~ till now
2012.05.28~ till now
1998.07.14~ till now
2003.05.28~ till now Customer Margin
2004.10.06~ till now Deposit
2004.03.05~ till now
2004.05.03~ till now
2004.05.21~ till now
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None

Agreement

Counterparty
Chang Hwa Commercial Bank
Jih Sun International Bank, Ltd.
Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
Taiwan Business Bank
Tachong Bank
ANZ Bank-Taipei Branch
Yuanta Commercial Bank
First Commercial Bank
First Commercial Bank
Taichung Commercial Bank
Sunny Bank Ltd.
Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
O-Bank
Taishin International Bank
CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.
The Shanghai Commercial &
Saving Bank
Cathay United Bank Co., Ltd.
O-Bank

Period
2004.07.29~ till now
2004.09.24~ till now
2006.02.21~ till now
2004.10.08~ till now
1999.10.22~ till now
2011.09.27~ till now
2011.04.08~ till now
2011.10.20~ till now
2011.12.27~ till now
2012.02.24~ till now
2013.11.21~ till now
2016.08.08~ till now
2016.09.19~ till now
2017.05.09~ till now
2017.06.27~ till now
2017.11.01~ till now
2017.11.17~ till now
2018.06.21~ till now
2018.11.21~ till now

Outsourcing contract
2013.01.02~ till now for computer
information system
Reuters information
Thomson Reuters Corporation
2009.07.15~ till now
quotation system
Authorized Eurex to
Eurex Exchange contract for
use TRICE system
2014.10.01~ till now
transaction declaration
for declaring
transactions.
Eurex authorized
Eurex Exchange contract for
2014.01.01~ till now information
quotation
quotation
Eurex Exchange contract for
Electronic trading
2012.02.07~ till now
electronic trading connection
contract
Electronic trading
ICE Europe contract for
2014.03.24~ till now
electronic trading
contract
Electronic trading
ICEUS contract for electronic
2013.01.07~ till now
trading
contract
Electronic trading
SGX Co - location contract 2.4
2016.03.01~ till now
version
contract
For SGX
information source
SGX quotation contract
2010.01.01~ till now
Quotation
authorization
CME contract for electronic
Electronic trading
2010.07.06~ till now
trading
contract
For CME
information source
CME quotation contract
2012.02.23~ till now
Quotation
authorization
Capital Securities Corp.

Information
Contract

Major Content
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Restrictions

None

None
None

None

None
None
None
None

None

None

None

Agreement

Counterparty
CFE exchange contract for
quotation
MT5 system contract

1. ADM Investor Services Inc.
2. UOB Futures Managed
Corporation
Re-consigned 3. CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.
contract
4. Nissan Securities
5. Societe Generale
International Ltd.
6. NH Futures Ltd
Settlement
1. Societe Generale
Contract for
International Ltd.
2. Phillip Future Corporation
Foreign
3. Societe Generale
Futures
Products
International Ltd.
Securities
Introducing
Capital Securities Corp.
Broker
commissioned
contract
Cinda International Futures
Limited

Period

Major Content
Restrictions
For CFE information
source
2016.10.19~ till now
None
Quotation
authorization
For MT5 system
2016.09.01~ till now
None
authorization
1997.04.16~ till now
1997.04.01~ till now
Re-consigned
2004.06.15~ till now
brokerage business
2011.05.04~ till now
2014.01.22~ till now
2016.12.21~till now
2011.01.20~ till now
2013.12.06~ till now
2018.01.16~
till now

Settlement service
for foreign
futures products and
leveraged transaction

Commissioned the
Company for
2010.04.30~ till now Securities
Introducing
Broker service
Futures advisory
2012.06.01~ till now
service
Providing related
information
Consultancy
technology advisory
contract
True Partner Education Limited
services of trading
2015.07.01~ till now
T8 Software Consulting Limited
analysis, market
research and
derivative financial
products.
1. Taiwan Stock Exchange
2015.02.03~ till now
Corporation Contract for
Computer Connection.
2. Criteria Governing Handling 2015.07.22~ till now
of Stock Affairs by Public
Companies
2015.07.28~ till now
3. Participant Agreement of
Contract with
Domestic transaction
Taiwan Depository &
related business
Authority
Clearing Corporation
2015.02.02~ till now
4. Gre-Tai securities market
trading contract for
Computer
Connection.(Proprietary
business)
2015.08.03~ till now
5. Gre-Tai securities market
trading contract for
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None

None

None

None

None

None

Agreement
6.

7.

8.

9.

Counterparty
Computer Connection.
Taipei Exchange
Administrative Contract for
the Financial Derivative
Trade Database.
Taiwan Futures Exchange
Corporation Trading
Information Use Contract
Taiwan Futures Exchange
Corporation Contract for
Computer Connection to the
Centralized Futures
Exchange Market
Taiwan Futures Exchange
Corporation Futures Market
Usage Contract

Period
2016.11.21~ till now

2003.12.30~ till now

2003.12.30~ till now

2003.12.26~ till now
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Major Content

Restrictions

VI. Financial Summary
6.1 Summary of balance sheet and comprehensive income statement for the
last 5 years
6.1.1 Summary of balance sheet (consolidated)- Based on IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year
Item
Current assets

Consolidated financial information for the latest 5 years（Note1, 2）
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

14,958,003

19,965,045

26,383,263

32,815,403

39,895,947

Property and equipment

31,735

29,888

43,168

48,172

48,452

Intangible assets

52,896

76,455

79,629

83,939

78,032

Other assets

391,734

407,195

434,212

374,667

363,587

Total assets

15,434,368

20,478,583

26,940,272

33,322,181

40,386,018

12,730,741

17,484,613

23,731,512

28,642,738

35,307,278

12,910,738

17,786,935

24,085,991

29,103,080 （Note 2）

11,195

14,982

15,966

16,216

17,468

12,741,936

17,499,595

23,747,478

28,658,954

35,324,746

Before
distribution
Current
liabilities After
distribution
Non-current liabilities
Before
distribution
Total
liabilities After
distribution
Equity attributable
to parent company
shareholders
Capital stocks
Capital surplus
Before
distribution
Retained
earnings
After
distribution
Other equity interest
Treasury stocks
Non-controlling
interests
Before
distribution
Total
equity
After
distribution

12,921,933

17,801,917

24,101,957

29,119,296

（Note 2）

2,692,432

2,951,929

3,167,389

4,637,732

5,032,092

1,199,979

1,223,979

1,223,979

1,603,979

1,764,376

377,709

380,185

381,180

1,207,735

1,047,338

1,062,107

1,289,998

1,496,995

1,872,755

2,247,246

882,110

987,676

1,142,516

1,412,413

（Note 2）

52,637

57,767

65,235

(46,737)

(26,868)

-

-

-

-

-

-

27,059

25,405

25,495

29,180

2,692,432

2,978,988

3,192,794

4,663,227

5,061,272

2,512,435

2,676,666

2,838,315

4,202,885

（Note 2）

Note 1: All financial information in the last 5 years has been audited.
Note 2: Appropriation of 2018 earnings had yet to be resolved in a shareholders' meeting.
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6.1.2 Summary of balance sheet (standalone)- Based on IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year
Item
Current assets

Financial information for the latest 5 years（Note1, 2）
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

13,727,540

18,986,411

24,406,882

30,719,057

38,113,857

Property and equipment

26,089

25,269

37,908

43,566

44,122

Intangible assets

50,871

49,711

51,330

56,292

52,405

Other assets

890,643

897,830

1,387,126

1,320,860

1,406,680

Total assets

14,695,143

19,959,221

25,883,246

32,139,775

39,617,064

11,991,516

16,992,310

22,699,891

27,485,827

34,567,504

12,171,513

17,294,632

23,054,370

27,946,169 （Note 2）

11,195

14,982

15,966

12,002,711

17,007,292

22,715,857

27,502,043

12,182,708

17,309,614

23,070,336

27,962,385 （Note 2）

2,692,432

2,951,929

3,167,389

4,637,732

5,032,092

1,199,979

1,223,979

1,223,979

1,603,979

1,764,376

377,709

380,185

381,180

1,207,735

1,047,338

1,062,107

1,289,998

1,496,995

1,872,755

2,247,246

882,110

987,676

1,142,516

1,412,413

（Note 2）

52,637

57,767

65,235

(46,737)

(26,868)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,692,432

2,951,929

3,167,389

4,637,732

5,032,092

2,512,435

2,649,607

2,812,910

4,177,390

（Note 2）

Before
distribution
Current
liabilities After
distribution
Non-current liabilities
Before
distribution
Total
liabilities After
distribution
Equity attributable
to parent company
shareholders
Capital stocks
Capital surplus
Before
distribution
Retained
earnings
After
distribution
Other equity interest
Treasury stocks
Non-controlling
interests
Before
distribution
Total
equity
After
distribution

-

Note 1: All financial information in the last 5 years has been audited.
Note 2: Appropriation of 2018 earnings had yet to be resolved in a shareholders' meeting.
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16,216

17,468
34,584,972

6.1.3 Summary statement of comprehensive income (consolidated)- Based
on IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year

Financial information for the latest 5 years（Note 1,2,3）

Item

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Operating revenues

1,120,838

1,551,837

2,251,362

2,676,371

2,849,492

559,759

847,805

1,187,415

1,358,708

1,642,337

55,301

172,286

420,487

512,085

527,531

283,504

330,138

183,220

317,442

427,445

338,805

502,424

603,707

829,527

954,976

292,767

434,501

511,759

733,431

838,110

-

-

-

-

-

292,767

434,501

511,759

733,431

838,110

28,869

5,642

4,369

(115,074)

19,382

321,636

440,143

516,128

618,357

857,492

293,944

432,927

511,809

731,015

835,205

(1,177)

1,574

(50)

2,416

2,905

322,813

437,018

516,787

618,267

853,807

(1,177)

3,125

(659)

90

3,685

2.36

3.22

3.8

4.25

4.73

Gross profit
Operating profit
Non-operating revenues
and expenses
Income before tax
Net income from
continuing operations
Loss from discontinued
operations
Net income (Loss)
Other comprehensive
income/loss for the
current period (net,
after-tax)
Total comprehensive
income
Net income attributable
to parent company
shareholders
Net income attributable
to non-controlling
interest
Comprehensive income
attributable to parent
company shareholders
Comprehensive income
attributable to
non-controlling interest
Earnings per share
(NTD)

Note 1: The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below condensed separate balance sheets within five
years are provided otherwise.
Note 2：All financial information for the last 5 years has been audited.
Note 3：Earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Retrospective calculations
are made for any shares issued against capitalized earnings and reserves.
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6.1.4 Summary statement of comprehensive income (standalone)- Based on
IFRS
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year

Financial information for the latest 5 years（Note 1,2,3）

Item

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Operating revenues

1,132,507

1,561,286

1,673,875

1,904,683

2,373,305

Gross profit

630,106

897,716

935,438

1,130,735

1,439,465

Operating profit
Non-operating revenues
and expenses
Income before tax

182,202

329,550

330,247

454,307

512,276

157,780

171,276

273,535

372,582

437,980

339,982

500,826

603,782

826,889

950,256

293,944

432,927

511,809

731,015

835,205

-

-

-

-

-

293,944

432,927

511,809

731,015

835,205

28,869

4,091

4,978

(112,748)

18,602

322,813

437,018

516,787

618,267

853,807

2.36

3.22

3.8

4.25

4.73

Net income from
continuing operations
Loss from discontinued
operations
Net income (Loss)
Other comprehensive
income/loss for the
current period (net,
after-tax)
Total comprehensive
income
Net income attributable
to parent company
shareholders

Note 1: The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below condensed separate balance sheets within five
years are provided otherwise.
Note 2：All financial information for the last 5 years has been audited.
Note 3：Earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Retrospective calculations
are made for any shares issued against capitalized earnings and reserves.

6.1.5 Names of financial statement auditors in the last 5 years, and their
audit opinions
Year

CPA firm

Name of CPA

Audit opinion

2018

KPMG Taiwan

Feng-Hui Lee , Tan-Tan Chung

Unqualified opinion

2017

KPMG Taiwan

Feng-Hui Lee , Tan-Tan Chung

Unqualified opinion

2016

KPMG Taiwan

Feng-Hui Lee , Tan-Tan Chung

Unqualified opinion

2015

KPMG Taiwan

Feng-Hui Lee, Fu-Wei Chen

Unqualified opinion

2014

KPMG Taiwan

Feng-Hui Lee, Fu-Wei Chen

Unqualified opinion
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6.2 Financial analysis for the previous 5 years
6.2.1 Financial analysis
A. Financial analysis (consolidated)--Based on IFRS
Year (Note 1）
Analysis（Note 3）
Financial
structure (%)

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

82.56

85.45

88.15

86.01

87.47

8,484.11

9,967.17

7,433.19

9,714.03

10,482.00

117.50

114.19

111.17

114.57

113.00

117.44

114.14

111.10

114.54

112.95

2.20

2.42

2.16

2.43

2.27

Return on equity (%)
Percentage of net profit
before tax to the
paid-in capital (%)
(Note 7)

12.27

15.32

16.58

18.67

17.24

28.23

41.05

49.32

51.72

54.13

Net profit margin (%)

26.12

28.00

22.73

27.40

29.41

Earnings per share
（dollar）

2.41

3.22

3.80

4.25

4.73

Cash flow ratio (%)

2.07

1.71

2.54

2.23

2.68

Debt to assets ratio
Long-term capital to
property and
equipment

Solvency (%) Current ratio
Quick ratio
Return on assets (%)

Profitability
(%)

Financial analysis for the latest 5 years

Cash flow adequacy
127.24
101.00
75.67
105.77
131.70
ratio (%)
Cash reinvestment
3.08
3.91
9.24
6.03
9.45
ratio (%)
Shareholders' equity to
adjusted total liabilities
989
911
1161
764
1034
ratio (%)
Shareholders' equity to
Special
minimum paid-up
376.56
264.75
284.07
415.94
451.31
Purpose
capital ratio (%)
Ratio
Adjusted net capital to
(%)
required margins on
futures traders'
83.48
88.31
51.95
57.62
57.92
outstanding position
(％)
Please describe the reasons for the changes in the financial ratios over the last two years (If the increase or
decrease is less than 20%, an analysis is exempted)
Cash flow
(%)

＊The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below financial ratios analysis is provided
otherwise.
＊The financial information adopting International Financial Reporting Standards has already over 5 years; therefore, the
financial information adopting Taiwan financial reporting standards won’t be prepared.
Note 1: All financial information for the last 5 years has been audited.

Note 2: Earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Where there is any
capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share should be adjusted retroactively to the additional
capitalization.
Note 3: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:
(1) Use weighted average outstanding ordinary shares instead of year-end outstanding shares.
(2) The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of time
shares were in circulation.
(3) Where there is any capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually should
be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period of the
capitalization.
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Note 4: The formula of the various analyses are defined below:
1. Financial structure
(1) The ratio of total liabilities to total assets ＝total liabilities/total assets
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment＝(Total equities＋noncurrent liabilities) /property, plant and equipment.
2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio＝(current assets－inventories－prepaid expense) /current liabilities
(3) Interest coverage ratio = net profit before interest and tax / interest expenses for the current period.
3. Operating ability
(1) Account receivable turnover (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulted from business operation) = net sales/average
balance of account receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulted from business operation)
(2) Days sales in account receivable=365/account receivable turnover
(3) Inventory turnover=cost of goods sold/average inventory
(4) Account payable turnover (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted from business operation) = operating costs/average
balance of account payable (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted from business operation)
(5) Average days in sales=365/inventory turnover
(6) Fixed property and equipment turnover=net sales/net fixed assets
(7) Total assets turnover=net sales/average total assets
4. Profitability
(1) Ratio or return on total assets＝[post-tax profit or loss+(1-Tax)]/average total assets
(2) Return on shareholders' equity = after tax net profit/ total average equity.
(3) Profit ratio＝net income/net sales
(4) Earnings per share＝(profits or loss attributable to owners of the parent company－preferred stock dividend) /weighted average stock
shares issued
5. Cash flow
(1)Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2)Cash flow adequacy ratio＝net cash flow from operating activities within five years/(capital expenditure＋inventory increase ＋cash
dividend) within five years
(3) Cash re-investment ratio＝(net cash flow from operating activity－cash dividend) /(gross property , plant, and equipment＋long-term
investment＋other noncurrent assets＋working capital) (Note 5)
6.Balance：
(1) Operation balance = (net operating income-operating variable cost and expense)/operating income (Note 6)
(2) Financial balance= operating income/ (operating income-interest expense)
Note 5: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:
1. Use weighted average outstanding ordinary shares instead of year-end outstanding shares.
2. The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of time shares
were in circulation.
3. Where there is any capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually should
be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period of the
capitalization.
4. If the preferred stock is unconvertible cumulative, the current dividend (no matter distribute or not) should be deducted from after-tax
earnings or increase the after-tax loss. Besides, if the preferred stock is non-cumulative, and after-tax earnings is positive, the dividend
should be deducted from after-tax earnings; otherwise, if it is loss, there is no necessary to adjust.
Note 6: The cash flow analysis must take into account the following:
1. Net cash flow from operating activities is taken from the net cash flow from operating activities presented in the cash flow statement.
2. Capital expenditure refers to the amount of annual cash outflow for capital investments.
3. The increasing number of inventory shall be calculated if the ending balance is larger than beginning balance, otherwise, calculated in 0.
4. The cash dividend is including ordinary and preference shares.
5. The gross amount of property, plant, and equipment is the total amount of property, plant, and equipment before deducting accumulated
depreciation.
Note 7：The issuer should identify the operating cost and expense into fixable and variable, if the identification is subjective, the evaluation
judgement should be maintain consistency.
Note 8：The par value of share is 0 or not NTD 10, regarding to paid-up capital calculation will use the ratio attributable to parent company
shareholders into balance sheet.
1. Ratio of owner's equity to adjusted total debt = owner's equity / (total liabilities - futures trader's equity - transaction loss provision default loss provision.
2. Ratio of owner's equity to minimum paid-up capital= owner's equity / minimum paid-up capital.
3. Ratio of adjusted net capital to the total amount of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest= adjusted net capital/ total amount
of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest.
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B. Financial analysis (standalone)--Based on IFRS
Year (Note 1）

Financial analysis for the latest 5 years
2014

Item（Note 3）
Financial
Debt to assets ratio
structure (%) Long-term capital to
property and equipment
Solvency (%) Current ratio

2015

2016

2017

2018

81.68

85.21

87.76

85.57

87.30

10,363.09

11,741.31

8,397.58

10,682.52

11,444.54

114.48

111.74

107.52

111.76

110.26

114.44

111.70

107.46

111.74

110.23

Return on assets (%)

2.30

2.50

2.23

2.52

2.33

Return on equity (%)

12.32

15.34

16.73

18.73

17.27

28.33

40.92

49.33

51.55

53.86

25.96

27.73

30.58

38.38

35.19

2.36

3.22

3.80

4.25

4.73

4.41

0.94

2.40

2.18

2.50

Quick ratio

Percentage of net profit
Profitability before tax to the paid-in
(%)
capital (%) (Note 7)
Net profit margin (%)
Earnings
per
（dollar）
Cash flow ratio (%)

share

Cash flow adequacy
111.51
87.53
69.27
90.99
112.41
ratio (%)
Cash reinvestment ratio
12.70
0.00
7.53
5.21
7.88
(%)
Shareholders' equity to
adjusted total liabilities
989
911
1161
764
1034
ratio (%)
Shareholders' equity to
Special
minimum
paid-up
376.56
264.75
284.07
415.94
451.31
Purpose
capital
ratio
(%)
Ratio
(%)
Adjusted net capital to
required margins on
83.48
88.31
51.95
57.62
57.92
futures
traders'
outstanding position (％)
Please describe the reasons for the changes in the financial ratios over the last two years (If the increase or
decrease is less than 20%, an analysis is exempted)
Cash flow
(%)

＊The Company has prepared individual financial statement; therefore, the below financial ratios analysis is provided
otherwise.
＊The financial information adopting International Financial Reporting Standards has already over 5 years; therefore, the
financial information adopting Taiwan financial reporting standards won’t be prepared.

Note 1: All financial information for the last 5 years has been audited.

Note 2: Earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. Where there is any
capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share should be adjusted retroactively to the additional
capitalization.
Note 3: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:
(1) Use weighted average outstanding ordinary shares instead of year-end outstanding shares.
(2) The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of time
shares were in circulation.
(3) Where there is any capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually should
be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period of the
capitalization.
Note 4: The formula of the various analyses are defined below:
1. Financial structure
(1) The ratio of total liabilities to total assets ＝total liabilities/total assets
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(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment＝(Total equities＋noncurrent liabilities) /property, plant and equipment.
2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio＝(current assets－inventories－prepaid expense) /current liabilities
(3) Interest coverage ratio = net profit before interest and tax / interest expenses for the current period.
3. Operating ability
(1) Account receivable turnover (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulted from business operation) = net sales/average
balance of account receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable resulted from business operation)
(2) Days sales in account receivable=365/account receivable turnover
(3) Inventory turnover=cost of goods sold/average inventory
(4) Account payable turnover (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted from business operation) = operating costs/average
balance of account payable (including accounts payable and notes payable resulted from business operation)
(5) Average days in sales=365/inventory turnover
(6) Fixed property and equipment turnover=net sales/net fixed assets
(7) Total assets turnover=net sales/average total assets
4. Profitability
(1) Ratio or return on total assets＝[post-tax profit or loss+(1-Tax)]/average total assets
(2) Return on shareholders' equity = after tax net profit/ total average equity.
(3) Profit ratio＝net income/net sales
(4) Earnings per share＝(profits or loss attributable to owners of the parent company－preferred stock dividend) /weighted average stock
shares issued
5. Cash flow
(1)Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2)Cash flow adequacy ratio＝net cash flow from operating activities within five years/(capital expenditure＋inventory increase ＋cash
dividend) within five years
(3) Cash re-investment ratio＝(net cash flow from operating activity－cash dividend) /(gross property , plant, and equipment＋long-term
investment＋other noncurrent assets＋working capital) (Note 5)
6.Balance：
(1) Operation balance = (net operating income-operating variable cost and expense)/operating income (Note 6)
(2) Financial balance= operating income/ (operating income-interest expense)
Note 5: Calculations for earnings per share must take into account the following:
1. Use weighted average outstanding ordinary shares instead of year-end outstanding shares.
2. The weighted average outstanding shares must take into account all cash issues or treasury stock transactions, and the length of time shares
were in circulation.
3. Where there is any capitalization from earnings or paid-in capital, the calculation of earnings per share annually or semi-annually should
be adjusted retroactively and proportionally to the additional capitalization, but with no need to consider the issuing period of the
capitalization.
4. If the preferred stock is unconvertible cumulative, the current dividend (no matter distribute or not) should be deducted from after-tax
earnings or increase the after-tax loss. Besides, if the preferred stock is non-cumulative, and after-tax earnings is positive, the dividend
should be deducted from after-tax earnings; otherwise, if it is loss, there is no necessary to adjust.
Note 6: The cash flow analysis must take into account the following:
6. Net cash flow from operating activities is taken from the net cash flow from operating activities presented in the cash flow statement.
7. Capital expenditure refers to the amount of annual cash outflow for capital investments.
8. The increasing number of inventory shall be calculated if the ending balance is larger than beginning balance, otherwise, calculated in 0.
9. The cash dividend is including ordinary and preference shares.
10.
The gross amount of property, plant, and equipment is the total amount of property, plant, and equipment before deducting
accumulated depreciation.
Note 7：The issuer should identify the operating cost and expense into fixable and variable, if the identification is subjective, the evaluation
judgement should be maintain consistency.
Note 8：The par value of share is 0 or not NTD 10, regarding to paid-up capital calculation will use the ratio attributable to parent company
Shareholders into balance sheet.
1. Ratio of owner's equity to adjusted total debt = owner's equity / (total liabilities - futures trader's equity - transaction loss provision Default loss provision.
2. Ratio of owner's equity to minimum paid-up capital= owner's equity / minimum paid-up capital.
3. Ratio of adjusted net capital to the total amount of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest= adjusted net capital/ total amount
of futures trader’s necessary margin for open interest.

6.2.2 Other significant information with regards to enhance the understanding of
financial status, operating result and changing tendency: None.
6.3 Audit report on the most recent year financial statements by the audit
committee: Please refer to page 118 of this annual report.
6.4 Standalone financial statements audited & certified by Accountants in the
most recent years: Please refer to page 120~193 of this annual report.
6.5 Financial insolvency incidents encountered by the Company and affiliate
companies in the last year, up till the publication date of this annual report:
None.
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Capital Futures Corp.
Audit Committees' Review Report
The Board of Directors has prepared the 2018 fiscal year Financial
Statements (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) of the Company,
among which the financial statements were audited by the CPAs of KPMG
Taiwan, “Lee, Feng-Hui” and “Chung, Tan-Tan”, with an unqualified opinion
issued in the Independent Auditor’s Report. We, as the Audit Committee of the
Company, has reviewed the Financial Statements (including the Consolidated
Financial Statements) that were present fairly with the reports prepared in
accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219
of the Company Law that are hereby presented for your approval.

Capital Futures Corp.
Chairman of Audit Committee
Shea, Jia-Dong

March 27, 2019
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Representation Letter
The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of
Capital Securities Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, under the
Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and
Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in
the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standard 10,“Consolidated Financial Statements” endorsed by Financial
Supervisory Commission. In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined
financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Capital
Securities Corporation and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial
statements.
We hereby certify that the above statement is true.

Company： Capital Futures Corp.

Chairman： Sun, Tien-Shan

Date

: March 27, 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of Capital Futures Corporation
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Capital Futures Corporation (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of Preparing
Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises and the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Firms.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of
Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key audit matters of the Company’s financial statements
are stated as follows:
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Commission income – brokerage recognized:
Related accounting policies of commission income – brokerage recognized, please refer to financial
report note 4(15) revenue recognized. Explaination of commission income – brokerage, please refer
to finicail report note 6(13) a. Comprehensive income statement commission income – brokerage.
Explaination of key audit matters:
Capital Futures Corporation’s main income is commission income – brokerage from entrusted futures
dealing. The existence and accuracy of commission income – brokerage have major affect on the
financial report. Therefore, commission income – brokerage recognized is one of the important
evaluation matters of the Company’s financial report.
Audit procedures in response:
According to the key audit matters main audit procedures, we perform the sampling test on brokerage
business dealing internal control and commission income – brokerage recorded amount , then
compare with the entrusted data from brokerage business and evaluate the revenue recognized
policies are managed by the related bulletin.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures
Commission Merchants, the related rules of Preparing Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises and
the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
investment in other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are LEE, FENG
HUI and CHUNG, TAN TAN.

KPMG
Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.
March 27, 2019
Notes to Readers
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the statement of financial position, financial performance and cash
flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other
jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and
applied in the Republic of China.
The independent auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version
prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ report and financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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TOTAL ASSETS

Non-current Assets
Non-current financial assets at cost (Note 6(2))
Non-current financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note 6(2))
Investments under Equity Method (Note 6(3))
Property and equipment (Note 6(4))
Intangible assets (Note 6(7))
Deferred income tax assets(Note 6(10))
Other non-current assets

Customers margin accounts (Note 6(5))
Receivable - futures margin (Note 6(6))
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - inter co. (Note 7)
Prepayments
Other receivables
Other receivables - inter co. (Note 7)
Leverage contract trading - customers' margin accounts
Other current assets

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6(1))
Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 6(2))
Bonds purchased under resale agreements (Note 6(2))

$

$

86
1
96

198,000
34,122,952

32,139,775

100

3
1
4

-

84
1
96

9
2

Equity
Common stock (Note 6(11))
Capital surplus (Note 6(11))
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings (Notes 6(11) )
Other equity
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Total Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Provision for liabilities - non-current (Note 6(9))
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 6(10))

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 6(2))
Futures traders' equity (Note 6(5))
Leverage contract trading - customers' equity
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - inter co. (Note 7)
Advance receipts
Receipts under custody
Other payables
Other payables - inter co. (Note 7)
Current income tax liabilities
Other current liabilities

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial report)
-4-

100

1,011,150
43,566
56,292
9,392
300,199
1,420,718

3
1
4

1,099,476
44,122
52,405
170
305,979
1,503,207

39,617,064

119
-

-

11,501
26,907,727
1
29,316
694
5,270
15,600
197
151,540
1
30,719,057

2,831,889
765,321

December 31, 2017
Amount
%

1,055

11,986
228
10,925
40,230
19,981
228,564
2
38,113,857

1

8
1

3,211,143
269,845

December 31, 2018
Amount
%

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(English Translation of Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese.)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2018 and 2017

$

$

1,764,376
1,047,338
421,147
990,784
835,315
(26,868)
5,032,092
39,617,064

7,912
9,556
17,468
34,584,972

86
1
-

34,098,182
225,899
34,175
10,922
3,117
3,946
118,899
2,395
52,418
8,488
34,567,504

4
3
1
3
2
13
100

87

87

-

9,063

December 31, 2018
Amount
%

1,603,979
1,207,735
348,116
794,335
730,304
(46,737)
4,637,732
32,139,775

11,855
4,361
16,216
27,502,043

26,894,841
152,840
93,706
14,688
2,381
4,351
141,612
1,771
52,957
3,704
27,485,827

122,976

5
4
1
2
2
14
100

86

84
1
1
86

-

December 31, 2017
Amount
%

(English Translation of Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese.)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except For Earings Per Share)

2018

2017
％

Amount

％

Amount

Income
Commission income - brokerage (Note 6(13))

$1,926,768

Net gains (losses) on sale of trading securities

(81,713)

(3)

5,842

-

5,548

-

(1,803)

-

(12,780)

(1)

Dividend income
Net gains (losses) on measurement of trading securities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments - Taipei Exchange

1,565,613

82

141,247

8

-

-

3,808

-

4,721

-

5,146

-

414,369

18

107,747

6

72,343

3

72,881

4

Net gains (losses) on covering of borrowed securities and bonds with resale agreements
Securities commission income

81

Management fee revenue

1,379

-

1,886

-

Consulting fee revenue

29,057

1

17,834

1

Other operating revenue

2,342

-

2,373,305

100

1,904,683

(4,247)

100

-

251,847

11

208,015

11

4,919

-

8,580

1

Financial costs

12,410

1

7,235

-

(Reversal of) expected credit impairment loss (Note 6(14))

33,522

1

-

-

Futures commission expenses (Note 6(13))

451,960

19

398,671

21

Clearing and settlement expenses

173,218

7

147,313

8

5,964

-

4,134

-

414,995

18

379,345

20

Expenses
Brokerage fees
Brokerage fees - proprietary trading

Other operating expenditure
Employee benefit expenses (Note 6(13))
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 6(13))
Other operating expenses (Note 6(13))

26,505

1

22,119

1

485,689

20

274,964

14

1,861,029

78

1,450,376

76

Non-operating income and expenses
60,171

2

79,774

4

Other gains and losses (Note 6(13))

377,809

16

292,808

15

437,980

18

372,582

19

Net income before income tax

950,256

40

826,889

43

Share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures under equity method (Note 6(3))

Income tax expenses (Note 6(10))
Net income

(115,051)

(5)

(95,874)

(5)

835,205

35

731,015

38

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gain (loss) on defined benefit plans (Note 6(9))
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Income tax related to the components of other comprehensive income

(372)
41
-

Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(331)

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Foreign exchange difference from translating financial reports of foreign operations

-

-

(776)

28,630

1

(84,006)

(4)

-

-

(41,494)

(2)

-

(753)

(475)

Total items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive income (After tax)

-

(776)
-

-

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture－Items that
may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Income tax related to the components of other comprehensive income (Note 6(10))

-

-

-

(9,222)

-

14,281

1

18,933

1

(111,972)

(5)

18,602

1

(112,748)

(5)

853,807

36

618,267

33

Total comprehensive income

$

Basic earnings per share (Dollar) (Note 6(12))

$

4.73

4.25

Dilutived earnings per share (Dollar) (Note 6(12))

$

4.73

4.25

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial report)
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-

Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017

-

Cash dividends

-

Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018

Ending balance, December 31, 2018

1,764,376

421,147

-

-

-

73,031

-

-

-

348,116

-

348,116

-

-

-

51,013

-

-

-

990,784

-

-

196,449

-

-

-

-

794,335

-

794,335

-

-

104,577

-

-

-

-

835,315

-

(460,342)

(27,804)

-

-

936

-

-

-

-

41

41

-

895

895

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(73,031)

18,933

18,933

-

(46,737)

-

(46,737)

-

-

-

-

(70,478)

(70,478)

-

Exchange differences
on translation of
foreign operations
23,741

Other equity
Unrealized gains (losses)
from financial assets
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

(196,449)

834,833

(372)

835,205

730,304

-

730,304

-

(354,479)

(104,577)

(51,013)

730,239

(776)

731,015

Unappropriated
earnings
510,134

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial report)
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1,047,338

(160,397)

-

Changes in other capital surplus：
Issuance of stock dividends from capital surplus (Note 6(11))
160,397

-

-

Cash dividends

-

-

Special reserve

-

-

-

Legal reserve

Appropriation of earnings :

-

Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018

-

1,207,735

1,603,979

1,603,979

17,530
1,207,735

809,025

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2018

Balance on January 1, 2018 after adjustments

Effects of retrospective application

Ending balance, December 31, 2017

Capital increase by remuneration cost of employee stock options (Note 6(11))

380,000

-

Capital increase by cash (Note 6(11))

-

Legal reserve

Special reserve

$

-

Appropriation of earnings :

-

Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017

Legal reserve
297,103

Special reserve
689,758

Capital surplus
381,180

Common stock
$
1,223,979

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2017

Beginning balance, January 1, 2017

Retained earnings

Stock

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(English Translation of Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese.)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(41,494)

(41,494)

-

Unrealized gain/loss
on available-for-sale
financial assets
41,494

5,032,092

-

(460,342)

-

-

853,807

18,602

835,205

4,638,627

895

17,530
4,637,732

1,189,025

(354,479)

-

-

618,267

(112,748)

731,015

Total equity
3,167,389

(English Translation of Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese.)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income before income tax
Adjustments :
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Expected credit loss
Net losses (gains) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Interest expenses
Interest income (Including financial revenue)
Dividend income
Share-based payment remuneration cost
Share of loss (profit) of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures under equity method
Gain on disposal of investments
Total adjustments to reconcile profit
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Increase) decrease in bond purchased under resale agreements
(Increase) decrease in customers margin accounts
(Increase) decrease in receivable - futures margin
(Increase) decrease in leverage contract trading - customers' margin accounts
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-inter co.
(Increase) decrease in prepayments
(Increase) decrease in other receivable
(Increase) decrease in other receivable-inter co.
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
(Increase) decrease in clearing and settlement fund
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits
Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Increase (decrease) in futures traders' equity
Increase (decrease) in leverage contract trading - customers' equity
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable-inter co.
Increase (decrease) in advance receipts
Increase (decrease) in receipts under custody
Increase (decrease) in other payables
Increase (decrease) in other payables-inter co.
Increase (decrease) in provision for liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash inflow generated from operations
Interest collected
Dividend received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
Purchase of properties and equipments
Purchase of intangible assets
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of cash dividends
Capital increase by cash
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial report)
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2017

950,256

826,889

18,844
7,661
33,522
9,341
12,410
(363,732)
(5,891)
0
(60,171)
0
(348,016)

15,878
6,241
12,641
7,235
(239,445)
(7,292)
17,530
(79,774)
(38,920)
(305,906)

486,135
(186,499)
(7,215,225)
(33,370)
(77,024)
17,330
466
(5,655)
(19,065)
(19,766)
(1)
(5,924)
144
(113,913)
7,203,341
73,059
(59,531)
(3,766)
736
(405)
(22,706)
375
(4,315)
4,784
19,205
(328,811)
621,445
357,997
5,891
(12,168)
(110,395)
862,770

(392,229)
137,302
(4,449,895)
893
(151,468)
(19,622)
(442)
7,901
17,343
(193)
1,030
(4,209)
481
68,958
4,451,736
152,770
68,732
1,984
(200)
1,116
27,418
1,521
2
642
(78,429)
(384,335)
442,554
236,286
7,292
(7,253)
(80,236)
598,643

(19,400)
(3,774)
(23,174)

71,827
(21,536)
(11,203)
39,088

(460,342)
(460,342)

(354,479)
1,189,025
834,546
1,472,277
1,359,612
2,831,889

379,254

2,831,889
3,211,143

(English Translation of Financial Report Originally Issued in Chinese.)
CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notes to Financial Report
December 31, 2018 and 2017
(Amounts expressed in thousands of new Taiwan dollars unless otherwise specified)
1.

Company history
Capital Futures Corporation (the “Company”) was incorporated on February 26, 1997 and
registered under the Ministry of Economic Affairs, R.O.C. The address of the Company’s registered
office is 32nd and B1 Fl. No. 97, Tun Hwa South Rd., Sec. 2, Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C. The Company
established the Taichung branch. The Company’s common shares were listed at Taipei Exchange
（TPEx）officially on April 27, 2009, then transferred to Taiwan Stock Exchange（TWSE）on
October 16, 2017. The Company is authorized to conduct the following businesses：
(1) Futures business.
(2) Futures advisory business.
(3) Securities introducing brokerage.
(4) Futures management business.
(5) Securities business on a proprietary basis.
(6) Securities investment consulting
(7)

2.

Lever Exchange Agency

Approval date and procedures of the financial report
The financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March 27, 2019.

3.

New standards amendments and interpretations adopted:
(1) Impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. ("FSC") which have already been adopted.
The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC
and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
per IASB

Amendment to IFRS 2 “Clarifications of Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions”

January 1, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 4 “Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts”

January 1, 2018

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

January 1, 2018

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

January 1, 2018

Amendment to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows- Disclosure Initiative”

January 1, 2017
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New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
per IASB

Amendment to IAS 12 “Income Taxes- Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealized Losses”

January 1, 2017

Amendments to IAS 40 “Transfers of Investment Property”

January 1, 2018

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014–2016 Cycle:
Amendments to IFRS 12
Amendments to IFRS 1 and Amendments to IAS 28

January 1, 2017
January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration”

January 1, 2018

Except for the following items, the Company believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs
would not have any material impact on its financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:
(a) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” replaces IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” which contains classification and measurement of financial instruments,
impairment and hedge accounting.
As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company adopted the consequential amendments
to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” which requires impairment of financial
assets to be presented in a separate item in the statement of comprehensive income.
Previously, the Company’s approach was to include the impairment of account receivables
in operating expenses. Additionally, the Company adopted the consequential amendments
to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” that are applied to disclosures about year
2018 but generally have not been applied to comparative information.
The detail and impact on significant accounting policies of IFRS 9 applied are set out below:
1) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured
at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS
9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and
its contractual cash flow characteristics. The standard eliminates the previous IAS 39
categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS
9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of
the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole
is assessed for classification. For an explanation of how the Company classifies and
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measures financial assets and accounts for related gains and losses under IFRS 9,
please refer to note 4(6).
The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have any significant impact on its accounting policies
on financial liabilities.
2) Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with the ‘expected credit loss’
(ECL) model. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at
amortized cost, contract assets and debt instruments at FVOCI, but not to investments
in equity instruments. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognized earlier than IAS 39
– please refer to note 4(6).
3) Transition
The adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described below,
 Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognized in retained earnings and other
equity items as at January 1, 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017
does not generally reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not
comparable to the information presented for 2018 under IFRS 9.
 The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at the date of initial application.
– The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.
– The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading
as at FVOCI.
4) Classification of financial assets on the date of initial application of IFRS 9
The following table shows the original and new measurement categories under IAS 39
and IFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s financial assets as of January 1, 2018.
There were no changes on the measurement categories and the carrying amount of
financial liabilities.
IAS39
Measurement
Categories
Financial Assets
Cash and equivalents

Amortized cost

Carrying
Amount
$

2,843,390

Amortized cost
FVTPL

2,843,390

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

FVTPL

Customers’ margin account

Amortized cost

26,907,727

Amortized cost

26,907,727

Accounts receivable

Amortized cost

45,808

Amortized cost

45,808
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IFRS9
Measurement
Carrying
Categories
Amount

765,321
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Leverage contract trading customers’ margin account

Amortized cost

151,540

Amortized cost

151,540

Financial assets measured at cost
Other assets

Measured at cost
Amortized cost

119
300,199

FVOCI (Note 1)
Amortized cost

1,014
300,199

Note1: These equity instruments (including financial assets measured at cost)
represent investments that the Company intends to hold for the long term
strategic purposes. In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company has designated
these investments at the date of initial application as measured at FVOCI.
Accordingly, an increase of $895 thousand in those assets recognized, and an
increase of $895 thousand in other equity items on January 1, 2018.
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39
to the carrying amounts under IFRS 9 upon transition to IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018.
2017.12.31
IAS 39
Carrying
Amount
Fair value through other
comprehensive income
Beginning balance of available for
sale (including measured at cost)
(IAS 39)

$

The total change of FVOCI
The balance of financial assets,
types of reclassifications and
Remeasurements

$

Reclassifications

Remeasurements

2018.1.1

2018.1.1

2018.1.1

IFRS 9
Carrying
Amount

Retained
earnings

Other equity

119

-

895

1,014

-

895

119

-

895

1,014

-

895

119

-

895

1,014

-

895

(2) The impact of IFRS endorsed by FSC but not yet effective
The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC
and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 in accordance with
Ruling No. 1070324857 issued by the FSC on July 17, 2018:
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
per IASB

IFRS 16 “Leases”

January 1, 2019

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

January 1, 2019

Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with negative
compensation”

January 1, 2019

Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement”

January 1, 2019

Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures”

January 1, 2019

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle

January 1, 2019
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Except for the following items, the Company believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs
would not have any material impact on its financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:
(a) IFRS 16 “Leases”
IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases –
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease.
IFRS 16 introduces a single and an on balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. In addition, the nature of
expenses related to those leases will now be changed since IFRS 16 replaces the straight line
operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for right of use assets and interest expense
on lease liabilities. There are recognition exemptions for short term leases and leases of low
value items. The lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard – i.e. the lessors
will continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.
1) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
When the transition of IFRS16, the Company can choose to apply either of the following:


IFRS 16 definition of a lease to all its contracts; or



A practical expedient that does not need any reassessment whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease.

The Company plans to apply the practical expedient to exempt the definition of a lease
upon transition. This means that it will apply IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before
January 1, 2019.
2) Transition
As a lessee, the Company can apply the standard using either of the following:


Retrospective approach; or



Modified retrospective approach with optional practical expedients.

On January 1, 2019, the Company plans to initially apply IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS 16 will be
recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at January 1,
2019. Comparative information will not be restated.
When applying the modified retrospective approach to leases previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17, the lessee can elect, on a lease by lease basis, whether to
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apply a number of practical expedients on transition. The Company chooses to elect the
following practical expedients:


The company will apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.



The company will adjust the right of use assets, based on the amount reflected in
IAS 37 onerous contract provision, immediately before the date of initial application,
as an alternative to an impairment review.



The company will apply the exemption not to recognize the right of use assets and
liabilities to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application.



The company will exclude the initial direct costs from measuring the right of use
assets at the date of initial application.



The company will use hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract
contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

3) So far, the most significantly identified impact is that the Company will have to
recognize the new assets and liabilities for the operating leases of its offices. The
company’s estimate of the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities respectively
increase by $37,672 and $37,672 on January 1, 2019, respectively.
The actual impact of adopting the standards may change depending on the economic conditions
and events which may occur in the future.
(3) Newly released or amended standards and interpretations not yet endorsed by the FSC.
As of the date the following IFRSs that have been issued by the IASB, but not yet endorsed by the
FSC：
Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations
per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business”
January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets
Effective date to
be determined by
Between an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture”
IASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”
January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material”

January 1, 2020

The Company assessed that the above IFRSs may not be relevant to the Company.
4.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
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version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any
difference in the interpretation of the English and Chinese language financial statements, the
Chinese version shall prevail.
The significant accounting policies presented in the financial statements are summarized below.
Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies were applied consistently
throughout the periods presented in the financial report.
(1) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, the related rules of
Preparing Financial Reports of Futures Enterprises and the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms.
(2) Basis of preparation
(a) Basis of measurement
Except for the following significant account, the financial statements has been prepared
on a historical cost basis:
i. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value (including derivative instruments);
ii. Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value;
iii. The defined benefit liability is recognized as the fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.
(b) Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in
New Taiwan Dollar, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information presented in New Taiwan Dollar has been rounded to the nearest thousand.
(3) Foreign currency
(a) Foreign currency transaction
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are re-translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary

- 134 -

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notes To Financial Report (Cont’d)

items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning
of the year adjusted for the effective interest and payments during the year, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured based on historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss,
except for equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income which
are recognized in other comprehensive income arising on the retranslation.
(b) Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to the reporting currency at exchange
rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations, excluding
foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated at the average exchange
rate. Translation differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and
presented in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity.
When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is
neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign currency gains and losses
arising from such a monetary items are considered to form part of a net investment in the
foreign operation and are recognized in other comprehensive income.
(4) Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities
An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are
classified as non-current.
(1) It is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating
cycle;
(2) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(3) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(4) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in IAS 7) unless the asset is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities
are classified as non-current.
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An entity shall classify a liability as current when:
(1) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
(2) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(3) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(4) It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its
classification.
(5) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits. Cash equivalent comprises time deposit with
maturity within one year, excess future margin, and commercial paper, short-term and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subjected to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
(6) Financial instruments
(a) Financial assets (policy applicable from January 1, 2018)
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: measured at amortized cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL).
The Company shall reclassify all affected financial assets only when it changes its
business model for managing its financial assets.
1)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL：
 When it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and
 Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates’ cash flows that just completely pay
for principle and interest caused by outstanding principle.

A financial asset measured at amortized cost is initially recognized at fair value,
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. These assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses, and impairment loss, are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.
2)

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
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A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL：
 When it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
 Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
When the Company measures the financial assets at the first time, the Company
can make an irreversible choose that the fair value changes of the financial assets
can be classified as other comprehensive income. The choice follows the basis of
each financial assets.
A financial asset measured at FVOCI is initially recognized at fair value, plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. These assets are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses, and impairment losses, deriving from debt investments
are recognized in profit or loss; whereas dividends deriving from equity
investments are recognized as income in profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses of financial assets, measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI of debt investments are
reclassified to profit or loss. However, gains and losses accumulated in OCI of
equity investments are reclassified to retain earnings instead of profit or loss.
Dividend income derived from equity investments is recognized on the date that
the Company’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted
securities is normally the ex-dividend date.
3)

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above
are measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets and accounts
receivable, which is presented as accounts receivable. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.
Financial assets in this category are measured at fair value at initial recognition.
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes that are measured at fair value included any dividend and
interest income, are recognized in profit or loss.

4)

Impairment of financial assets
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The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, amortized
costs, notes and accounts receivable, other receivable, guarantee deposit paid and
other financial assets), debt investments measured at FVOCI, accounts receivable
measured at FVOCI and contract assets.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss (ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL：


Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date；
and



Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period which is exposed to credit risk by the Company.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking information.
The Company considers a debt security to have a low credit risk when the credit
risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of “investment grade”.
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is overdue more than 30 days or within 30 days but breached the
contract. The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial
asset is overdue more than 90 days or the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full.
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the
cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows

- 138 -

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notes To Financial Report (Cont’d)

that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest
rate of the financial asset.
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset
is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial assets is credit-impaired includes the following observable data：
 The borrower or issuer has significant financial difficulty；
 A breach of contract such as a default or being overdue more than 90 days；
 The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider；
 It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization；or
 The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from
the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss
allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of reducing the
carrying amount of the asset. The Company recognizes the amount of expected
credit losses (or reversal) in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss.
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of overdue amounts.
5)

Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the assets expire, or when the Company transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a debt instrument in its entirety, the Company recognizes the
difference between its carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
or receivable and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented in “other equity-unrealized gains or losses
on fair value through other comprehensive income”, in profit or loss, and presented
it in the line item of non-operating income and expenses in the statement of
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comprehensive income.
On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Company
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss, and
presented in the line item of non-operating income and expenses. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer
recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
(b) Financial assets (policy applicable before January 1, 2018)
The Company classifies financial assets into the following categories: financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss, receivables, and available-for-sale financial
assets.
1)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the short term. This type of financial asset is measured
at fair value at the time of initial recognition, and attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes therein, which take
into account any dividend and interest income, are recognized in profit or loss. A
regular way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognized and
derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at
cost less impairment losses, and are included in financial assets measured at cost.

2)

Available-for sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the other categories
of financial assets. Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized initially at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than
impairment losses, interest income calculated using the effective interest method,
dividend income, and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale debt
instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the
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fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. A regular way purchase or
sale of financial assets shall be recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using
trade-date accounting.
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at
cost less impairment losses, and are included in financial assets measured at cost.
Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date that the Company’s
right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is
normally the ex-dividend date.
3)

Receivables
Receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses other than insignificant interest on short-term
receivables. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognized
and derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting.

4)

Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset is impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be estimated
reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms
that the Company would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer
will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or
issuers, economic conditions that correlate with defaults, or the disappearance of
an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security,
a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is accounted for as
objective evidence of impairment.
All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment.
Receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping assets with similar risk characteristics together. In
assessing collective impairment, the Company uses the probability of default
collected from the historical trend, the timing of recoveries, and the amount of loss
incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and
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credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser
than those suggested by historical trends.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss is not reversible in subsequent periods.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is deducted from the carrying
amount, except for trade receivables, for which an impairment loss is reflected in
an allowance account against the receivables. When it is determined that a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off from the allowance account. Any
subsequent recovery of receivable written off is recorded in the allowance account.
Changes in the amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by
reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or
loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss of a financial asset
measured at amortized cost decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost before impairment was
recognized at the reversal date.
Impairment losses recognized on an available-for-sale equity security are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an
impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive
income, and accumulated in other equity.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt
security increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairment loss is reversed,
with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss.
5)

Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights of the cash
inflow from the asset are terminated, or when the Company transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income
and presented in other equity – unrealized gains or losses from available-for-sale
financial assets is recognized in profit or loss.
The Company separates the part that continues to be recognized and the part that
is derecognized, based on the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
derecognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognized
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income shall be recognized in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is
derecognized, based on the relative fair values of those parts.
(iii) Financial liabilities
1)

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
A financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short term. This type of financial liability
is measured at fair value at the time of initial recognition, and attributable
transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and changes
therein, which take into account any interest expense, are recognized in profit or
loss.

2)

Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities not classified as held-for-trading or designated as measured at
fair value through profit or loss, which comprise accounts payable and other
payables, are measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost
at the time of initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
measured at amortized cost calculated using the effective interest method.

3)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligation has
been discharged or cancelled, or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability removed and the consideration paid (including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

4)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
The Company presents financial assets and liabilities on a net basis when the
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Company has the legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle such
financial assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
(iv) Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss. When the fair value of a
derivative instrument is positive, it is classified as a financial asset, whereas when the
fair value is negative, it is classified as a financial liability.
(7) Investments in associates and joint ventures
Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control.
A holding of 20% or more of the voting power (directly or through subsidiaries) will indicate
significant unless it can be clearly demonstrated otherwise. Investments in associates are
accounted for using equity method and are recognized initially at cost. The carrying amount
of the investment in associates includes goodwill which is arising from the acquisition.
On initial recognition, the investor’s share of the investee’s profit or loss is recognized in the
investor’s profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount
of the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be required arising from
changes in the investee’s other comprehensive income.
Any change in ownership interest of the subsidiaries, not resulting in loss of control, is treated
as equity transaction.
The investor’s share of the changes from foreign exchange translation differences is
recognized in net assets/equity of the investor.
(8) Investments in subsidiaries
When preparing parent-Company-only financial report, the Company uses equity method in
evaluating the control of an investee. Under equity method, the net income or loss for the
period of parent-Company-only financial report and other comprehensive income of parentCompany-only financial report are the same as net income or loss for the period attributed to
owners of parents of consolidated report and other comprehensive income attributed to owners
of parents of consolidated report, respectively. The equity of the parent-Company-only
financial statements are the same as the equity attributable to the owners of parents of the
consolidated report.
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Any change in ownership interest of the subsidiaries, not resulting in loss of control, is treated
as equity transaction between the owners.
(9) Securities under agreements
The Company engages in securities under repurchase / resell agreements trading and the
nature of transaction substance is financing. When entering securities under resell agreements
transactions, the Company establishes an account “Investment in Bonds with resell
agreements” with the actual amount of lending and recognizes financing interest revenue by
the interest period of resell agreements and no profit and loss is recognized.
(10) Securities borrowing transactions
Engage in securities lending transactions, the amount of the sale of securities borrowing
recognized liability, and to distinguish hedging and non-hedging purposes, in accordance with
stocks and bonds. The amount paid to redeem shares or bonds borrowed, as a deduction of the
subjects, the collateral paid in cash recorded as security borrowing margin, short sales
delivered for securities market financing recorded as security borrowing collateral price.
(11) Customers margin accounts and future traders’ equity
The customers’ margin refers to the guarantee deposits and premiums collected from futures
customers and also the spread calculated based on the market prices everyday. It is reflected
under current assets of the balance sheet. Futures traders’ equity refers to futures customers’
deposit the guarantee deposits and option premiums and also the spread calculated based on
the market prices everyday. It is reflected under current liabilities. The loss is offset only
against the balance of the same customers’ own margin accounts. If a customer incurs a loss
in excess of the margin account balance, the excess is recognized a receivable.
(12) Property and equipment
(a) Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributed to
the acquisition of the asset.
Each part of an item of property and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, unless the useful life and the
depreciation method of a significant part of an item of property and equipment are the
same as the useful life and depreciation method of another significant part of that same
item.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property and equipment shall
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be determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item, and it shall be recognized as other income and expenses.
(b) Subsequent cost
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. The carrying amount
of those parts that are replaced is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred.
(c) Depreciation
The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual values, and
it shall be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. Items of property and
equipment with the same useful life may be grouped in determining the depreciation
charge. The remainder of the items may be depreciated separately. The depreciation
charge for each period shall be recognized in profit or loss.
Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property and equipment are as follows:
i.

Office equipment

3 ~ 5 years

ii. Leasehold improvement is depreciated equally over the shorter period of estimated
useful life or the lease term.
Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date. If expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as
a change in an accounting estimate.
(13) Leases
Operating leases are not recognized in the Company’s statement of balance sheet. Payments
made under operating lease (excluding insurance and maintenance expenses) are recognized
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease payments under operating lease shall be recognized in renting expenses
and disclosed in financial report.
(14) Intangible assets
Intangible assets of the Company are the requirements for transacting business on an exchange.
The seats are regarded as intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and measured at cost
while originally recognized. After initial recognition, an intangible asset shall be carried at its
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cost less any accumulated impairment losses. As for computer software, it was amortized on
a straight-line basis over estimated useful life of three years, and in the meanwhile, the
amortization would be recognized in gains or losses. The residual value, amortization period
and amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each
financial year-end. The change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
(15) Revenue recognition
The main revenue is commission income - brokerage and is recognized based on an accrual
basis.
(16) Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are
rendered by employees.
(b) Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The fair value of any plan assets
should be deducted.. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date market yields of
high-quality government bonds on bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in
which the benefits are expected to be paid.
The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The recognized asset is limited to the total of any unrecognized past service
costs and the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate
the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements that apply to any plan in the Company. An economic benefit is available to
the Company if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan
liabilities.
When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to
past service by employees is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (asset) includes:
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i.

Actuarial gains and losses

ii. Return on plan assets except net interests of remeasurement of net defined benefit
liability (asset).
iii. Any changes in the effects of the asset ceiling except net interests of remeasurement
of net defined benefit liability (asset)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (asset) is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The Company will recognize the remeasurement of net defined
benefit plan in retained earnings
The Company recognizes gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment
comprises any resulting change in the fair value of plan assets, and any change in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.
(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminating the employment of employees before the normal retirement date, or to
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefit is expensed at the earlier of the date when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefits and the date when the entity
recognizes related restructuring costs. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after
the reporting period, then they are discounted to their present value.
(d) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus
or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.
(17) Share-based payment
The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employee is recognized
as employee expenses with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards which the related service and non-market
performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as
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an expense is based on the number of award that meet the related service and non-market
performance conditions at the vesting date.
For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for
differences between expected and actual outcomes.
(18) Income tax
Income tax expenses include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses
related to business combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, all current and deferred taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.
Current taxes include tax payables and tax deduction receivables on taxable gains (losses) for
the year calculated using the statutory tax rate on the reporting date or the actual legislative
tax rate, as well as tax adjustments related to prior years.
Deferred income taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income taxes shall not be recognized for the exceptions below:
(a) Assets and liabilities that are initially recognized but are not related to the business
combination and have no effect on net income or taxable gains (losses) during the
transaction.
(b) Temporary differences arising from equity investments in subsidiaries or joint ventures
where there is a high probability that such temporary differences will not reverse.
(c) Initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following criteria are
met:
(a) The entity has the legal right to settle tax assets and liabilities on a net basis; and
(b) The taxing of deferred tax assets and liabilities fulfill one of the below scenarios:
i. levied by the same taxing authority; or
ii. levied by different taxing authorities, but where each such authority intends to settle
tax assets and liabilities (where such amounts are significant) on a net basis every year
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of the period of expected asset realization or debt liquidation, or where the timing of
asset realization and debt liquidation is matched
A deferred income tax asset should be recognized for an unused tax loss carry-forward or
unused tax credit if, and only if, it is considered probable that there will be sufficient future
taxable profit against which the loss or credit carry-forwards can be utilized. The carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets should be reviewed and adjusted at the end of each
reporting period.
The Company’s 10% surtax on unappropriated earnings is recorded as current expense after
the date of the resolution of stockholders’ meeting for declaring the distribution of earnings.
(19) Earnings per share (“EPS”)
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on net income, divided by the weightedaverage number of ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share
is based on net income, divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as
employee bonus. In the event of capital increase through capitalization of retained earnings,
or capital surplus, EPS is retroactively adjusted by the approved capitalization ratio, regardless
of the outstanding period when incremental shares are issued. The dilutive potential ordinary
shares of the Company include employee bonus and compensation.
(20) Segment information
The Company has disclosed the segment information in the consolidated financial report, thus,
the Company does not disclose it in the financial statement.
5.

Major sources of accounting judgments, estimation and assumptions uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants , the related rules of Preparing
Financial Reports for Futures Enterprises and Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Firms requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes
in accounting estimates in the following period.
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:
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The impairment of investments accounted for using equity method: The Company performed the
impairment test of investments accounted for using equity method annually. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit was based on the calculation of the value in use that choosing
the appropriate discount rate and estimating the expected cash flows of the cash-generating unit.
6.

Summary of major accounts
(1) Cash and cash equivalents
December31,2018

Cash

$

Demand deposits
Time deposits
Futures margin-excess margin
Commercial paper
$

December31,2017

60

60

621,489

432,661

2,337,230

1,710,160

229,867

542,046

22,497

146,962

3,211,143

2,831,889

(2) Financial assets and liabilities
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current
December 31, 2018

Open-ended funds and money-market
instruments
Open-ended funds and money-market
instruments valuation adjustment
Trading securities - proprietary trading
Trading securities - proprietary trading
valuation adjustment
Securities invested by securities broker
Securities invested by securities broker
valuation adjustment
Call options
Futures margin-proprietary fund
Foreign exchange rate derivatives
Total

$

December 31, 2017

35,000

10,000

(195)

59

87,054
(7,488)
74,553
(7,283)

$

512,375
(5,685)
-

25
41,212
46,967

119,230
106,896
22,446

269,845

765,321

If there is an increase in the securities price of 1% on the reporting date (assume that all
other variables remain the same), the impact on comprehensive income for 2018 and 2017
will increase $1,816 and $5,167, respectively. Conversely, if there is an decrease in the
securities price of 1% on the reporting date based on all other variables remain the same,
there will be the same amount but opposite direction of influence.
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(b) Bonds purchased under resale agreements
December31,2018

December31,2017

Bonds purchased under resale agreements

$

198,000

11,501

Resale price under the agreements

$

198,034

11,504

0.45%~0.48%

0.40%~0.41%

Interest rate
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets - non-current

The purpose for obtaining the stock of CME Group Inc. is to acquire the membership of
foreign futures exchange, however, the member has been required to pay the subscription
fee instead of holding the shares. Therefore, the Company disposed of 20,000 shares of
stock of CME Group Inc. on April 2017, which generated a gain on disposal of $38,920.
For the years ended December 31, 2017, due to changes in fair value, the Company had
recognized $(41,494) in other comprehensive income, as well as the amount reclassified
from equity to net losses is $(41,494).
(d) Financial assets measured at cost - non-current
December 31, 2017
Ownership
ratio
Amount
0.0042%
119

Investee Company
Taiwan Futures Exchange Co., Ltd

Shares of Taiwan Futures Exchange held by the Company are measured at cost less
impairment losses on December 31, 2017 and reclassified to financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income on December 31, 2018.
(e) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
December 31, 2018
Ownership
ratio
Amount
0.0042%
1,055

Investee Company
Taiwan Futures Exchange Co., Ltd

The Company holds shares of Taiwan Futures Exchange for long-term strategic purposes
and not for trading, therefore, the Company had classified these equity instruments as
FVOCI. These investments were classified as financial assets measured at cost on
December 31, 2017.
During the years ended December 31, 2018, the dividends of $49, related to equity
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investments at fair value through other comprehensive income held on December 31,
2018, were recognized. No strategic investments were disposed in 2018, and there were
no transfers of any cumulative gain or loss within equity relating to these investments.
(f) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss-current
December 31, 2018
$
9,063
$
9,063

Put options
Foreign exchange rate derivatives

December 31, 2017
120,129
2,847
122,976

(3) Investments under Equity Method
Investments under Equity Method on the reporting date were as follows:
December 31, 2018
$
1,053,757
45,719
$
1,099,476

Subsidiary
Associate

December 31, 2017
969,615
41,535
1,011,150

(a) Subsidiary
The accounting figures of investee, which is controlled by the Company, are combined
into the consolidated financial statements; please refer to the consolidated financial report
of 2018.
For the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company’s share of gains or losses
of the subsidiaries were as follows:
2018
2017
Audited by the certified public accountants

$

56,353

78,746

(b) Associate
The Company acquired 49% of True Partner Capital Advisor Co., Ltd. shares with US
$1,123 on October 2, 2015, which indicate significant. Below is the relevant information:

Name of
associate
True Partner
Capital
Advisor Co.,
Ltd.

Relationship with the
Company
Its main business is
assests management, and
it's the Company's
strategic alliances to
expand assets managing
business.

Principal place of
business/Register
country of company
Hong Kong

Ownership equity
and % of right to vote
December 31,
December 31,
2018
2017
49.00%
49.00%

The insignificant associate uses equity method and its financial information is
summarized as follows. The information is included in the financial statement of the
Company:

- 153 -

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notes To Financial Report (Cont’d)

Summerized ending balance of the insignificant associate

December 31, 2018
$
45,719

December 31, 2017
41,535

For the years ended December 31
2018
2017
Shares belong to the Company:
Net loss of the period of continuing business units
Other comprehensive income
Total

$
$

3,818
366
4,184

1,028
(1,009)
19

(c) Collateral and pledge
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company did not provide any investment
accounted for using equity method as collaterals for its loans.
(4) Property and equipment
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the cost and accumulated depreciation of
the property and equipment of the Company were as follows:

Office
equipment
Cost:
Balance at 1 January, 2018
Additions
Balance at 31 December, 2018
Balance at 1 January, 2017
Additions
Disposal
Balance at 31 December, 2017
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at 1 January, 2018
Depreciation
Balance at 31 December, 2018
Balance at 1 January, 2017
Depreciation
Disposal
Balance at 31December, 2017

$
$
$

$
$
$
$

$
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Leasehold
improvements

Total

69,386
13,142
82,528

11,025
6,258
17,283

80,411
19,400
99,811

60,735
16,316
(7,665)
69,386

6,015
5,220
(210)
11,025

66,750
21,536
(7,875)
80,411

33,773
15,309
49,082

3,072
3,535
6,607

36,845
18,844
55,689

27,751
13,687
(7,665)
33,773

1,091
2,191
(210)
3,072

28,842
15,878
(7,875)
36,845
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Carrying amounts:
Balance at 31 December, 2018
Balance at 31 December, 2017

$
$

33,446
35,613

10,676
7,953

44,122
43,566

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company did not provide any property and equipment
as collateral and pledge.
(5) Customers margin accounts/ futures traders' equity
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the difference between customers’ margin accounts and
futures traders' equity were reconciled as follows:
December 31, 2018
Customers margin accounts
Cash in bank
Balance of the futures clearing house
Balance of other futures commission merchants
Marketable securities
Balance of customers margin accounts
Plus adjustment items:
Commision cost
Others
Deduction adjustment items:
Commision income
Futures transaction tax
Interest income
Temporary credits
Remittance amount of the customers after the
market closed
Balance of futures traders' equity

$

$

December 31, 2017

25,603,099
2,339,834
6,179,769
250
34,122,952

19,997,183
3,297,207
3,611,224
2,113
26,907,727

4,288
52

1,651
33

(16,348)
(1,426)
(3,726)
(431)

(8,264)
(1,356)
(2,326)
(200)

(7,179)

(2,424)

34,098,182

26,894,841

December 31, 2018
$
33,371
33,370
$
1

December 31, 2017
1
1

(6) Receivable - futures margin

Receivable - futures margin
Less: Loss allowance
Total

The movement in the allowance for receivable - futures margin was as follows:
2018
Balance on January 1
Impairment losses recognized (reversed)
Balance on December 31
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(7) Intangible assets
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the costs, amortization, and impairment
loss of intangible assets were as follows:
The seats of
foreign futures
exchanges
(Note)
Cost:
Balance at 1 January, 2018
Acquisition
Disposal
Balance at 31 December, 2018
Balance at 1 January, 2017
Acquisition
Disposal
Balance at 31 December, 2017

$

Total

44,325
44,325
44,325
44,325

20,902
3,774
(3,266)
21,410
11,885
11,203
(2,186)
20,902

65,227
3,774
(3,266)
65,735
56,210
11,203
(2,186)
65,227

$

-

8,935
7,661
(3,266)
13,330
4,880
6241
(2,186)
8,935

8,935
7,661
(3,266)
13,330
4,880
6,241
(2,186)
8,935

$
$

44,325
44,325

8,080
11,967

52,405
56,292

$
$

$

Amortization and impairment loss:
Balance at 1 January, 2018
Amortization of current period
Disposal
Balance at 31 December, 2018
Balance at 1 January, 2017
Amortization of current period
Disposal
Balance at 31 December, 2017
Carrying value:
Balance at 31 December, 2018
Balance at 31 December, 2017

Computer
software

$

$
$

Note：The Company obtained the seats of foreign futures Exchanges - NYMEX, COMEX,
CBOT and CME for business development. In accordance with IAS No. 38 “Intangible
Assets” endorsed by the FSC, the seats are regarded as intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life.
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(8) Operating lease
(a) Lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease payables are as follows:

December 31,
2018
22,251
$
17,421
$
39,672

Within 1 year
1-5 years

December 31,
2017
21,287
36,351
57,638

The Company rents several offices under operating lease, the lease terms are within 1 to
5 years and the Company has the preferential renewal options when the lease term expires.
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the operating lease expenses
recognized in profit or loss were $24,254 and $23,611 respectively.
(b) Lessor
The Company had leased the office under operating lease, while the lease contract expired
on July 31, 2017. There is no other contract that brings rental income until December 31,
2018. For the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the rental income were $0 and
$85, respectively.
(9) Employee benefits
(a) Defined benefit plans
The reconciliation in the present value of the defined benefit obligations and fair value of
plan assets were as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Recognized liabilities for defined benefit
obligations

December 31,
2018
$
(26,128)
18,216
$
(7,912)

December 31,
2017
(29,511)
17,656
(11,855)

The Company made defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account at
Bank of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans
(covered by the Labor Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual
payment based on years of service and average salary for the six months prior to
retirement.
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a. Composition of plan assets
The Company set aside the pension funds in accordance with Labor Standards Act, are
put under the management of the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee. In
regards to the utilization of the fund under the “Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund”, the minimum
earnings for the annual distribution shall not be less than the accrued earnings
attainable from the interest rates of two year time deposit offered by the local banks.
The balance of the Company’s labor pension preparatory special account in Bank of
Taiwan amounted to $18,216 at the reporting date. The utilization of the labor pension
fund includes the assets allocation and yield of the fund. Please refer to the information
published on the website under Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee of the
Council of Labor Affairs Executive Yuan.
b. Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation
The Change in the present value of defined benefit obligation of the Company in 2018
and 2017 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
Defined benefit obligation at January 1
Current service costs and interest
Benefits paid
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation
－Experience gain or loss
－Actuarial loss (gain) arising from changes in
financial assumptions
Defined benefit obligation at December 31

$

$

2018
29,511
669
(4,943)

2017
28,055
702
-

699

672

192
26,128

82
29,511

c. Movements in fair value of defined benefit plan assets
The movements in fair value of defined benefit plan assets of the Company in 2018
and 2017 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
Fair value of plan assets at January 1
Interest revenue
Benefits paid
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation
－Return on plan assets (except net interests of period)
Contributions to the plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at December 31
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$

$

2018
17,656
188
(630)

2017
16,978
189
-

519
483
18,216

(22)
511
17,656
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d. Expense recognized in profit or loss
The expenses recognized in profit or loss of the Company in 2018 and 2017 were as
follows:

Current service cost
Net interest of net defined benefit obligation

For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
$
359
394
122
119
$
481
513

e. Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation recognized in other comprehensive
income
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the accumulated remeasurement of
net defined benefit obligation recognized in other comprehensive income was as
follows:

For the years ended December 31,
Accumulated amount on January 1
Recognized during the period
Accumulated amount on December 31

$
$

2018
(11,094)
(372)
(11,466)

2017
(10,318)
(776)
(11,094)

f. Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:
2018
0.93%
2.50%

Discount rate
Future salary growth rate

2017
1.05%
2.50%

The expected contribution to the defined benefit plan for the next year is $481. The
weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3 years.
g. Sensitivity Analysis
When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligations, the Company
uses judgments and estimations to determine the actuarial assumptions, including
discount rate and future salary increases. Any changes in the actuarial assumptions
may significantly impact the amount of the defined benefit obligations.
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For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the effects of adopting significant
actuarial assumptions to defined benefit obligations were as follows:
Effects to defined benefit obligations
Increase 0.5%
Decrease 0.5%
December 31, 2018
Discount rate
Future salary increasing rate

$

December 31, 2017
Discount rate
Future salary increasing rate

(674)
559

703
(543)

(779)
650

813
(631)

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based on the condition that other variables
are unchanged. In practice, the changes of many assumptions are correlated. The
method that the sensitivity analysis adopted is in accordance with the method of
calculating net pension liability
The assumptions and methods adopted for current period sensitivity analysis are
identical with the previous period.
(b) Defined contribution plans
In accordance with the Labor Pension Act of R.O.C, the Company contributes 6% of the
employee’s monthly wages to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance. Therefore, the
Company has no further legal or constructive obligations to make any additional
contribution once the contributions have been paid.
The Company contributed $11,712 and $10,208 under defined contribution plan to the
Bureau of the Labor Insurance in the year 2018 and 2017, respectively.
(10) Income taxes
(a) Income tax expense
On February 7, 2018, the Office of the President of ROC promulgated the amendment of
Income Tax Act. The corporate income tax rate was adjusted from 17% to 20% and
effective in January 1, 2018.
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The amount of income tax expense for the years 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
$
109,856
91,513
5,195
4,361
95,874
$
115,051

Current income tax expense
Deferrd income tax expense
Total

The amount of income tax expense (benefit) recognized in other comprehensive income
of the Company in 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
2018
Foreign exchange difference from translating
financial reports of foreign operations

$

2017
(9,222)

14,281

Reconciliation of income tax expense (benefit) and profit before tax of the Company for
2018 and 2017 were as follows:

For the years ended December 31,
Profit excluding income tax
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax
rate
Adjustment in tax rate
Tax-exempt income
Unrecognized temporary differences for prior
years
Adjustments to prior year's income tax
10% surtax on undistributed earnings
Alternative minimum tax
Others
Total

- 161 -

$

$

2018
950,256
190,051

2017
826,889
140,571

770
(78,403)

(29,426)

(2,817)
6,510
42
(1,102)
115,051

855
(7,426)
(8,700)
95,874
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(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
1) Unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the details of the Company’s unrecognized
deferred tax liabilities were as follows:
December 31, 2018
Aggregate amount of temporary
differences related to investments in
subsidiaries

$

December 31, 2017

28,316

18,983

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. that the Company is able to control has the distribution policy
for the surplus earnings before December 31, 2018 will not distribute. Furthermore,
the Company will not disposal the investment based on the foreseeable future. Hence,
the company did not recognize the deferred tax liabilities of the long term
investments, caused by book value of the subsidiary and temporary tax basis which
has not of distributed and disposed by the company.
2) Recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the details of the Company’s recognized deferred
income tax assets and liabilities:
December 31, 2018
Recognized deferred tax assets:
Foreign exchange difference from
translating
financial reports of foreign operations
Recognized deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on foreign investments
under
Equity Method
Unrealized gains on derivative financial
instruments
Total

December 31, 2017

$

170

9,392

$

1,975

1,030

7,581

3,331

$

9,556

4,361

(c) Income tax assessment status
The Company’s income tax returns through 2016 were assessed by the Tax Authority.

- 162 -

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notes To Financial Report (Cont’d)

(11) Capital and other equity
(a) Common stock
On 29 September 2016, the Company has been authorized by the resolution of board
meeting to issue 38,000 thousand ordinary shares with par value of $10 per share. The
issue price was set from $25 to 35 per share on November 29, 2016 under the resolution
of board meeting, and the actual issue price was authorized to Chairman of the board and
the securities underwriter to set based on above block issue price, related regulation and
considering the market situation on the determined date. As of 21 December 2016, the
Company issued $31.38 per share. The capital increase was allowed per Gin Guan Zheng
Qi No.1050044467 letter on November 15, 2016 and the based-capital increased date was
on February 10, 2017.The issued cost was deducted from stock premium.
According to the resolution of shareholders’ meeting on May 24, 2018, the Company
issued share dividends 16,040 thousand shares with par value of $10 per share from
capital surplus. The paid-in capital became $1,764,376 after the capital increase. The
capital increase was agreed and was immediately effective on July 4, 2018. The basedcapital increased date was on August 11, 2018 under the resolution of board meeting on
July 10, 2018.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had authorized capital both of
$2,500,000, with par value of $10 dollar per share; the issued common stock shares were
176,438 thousand and 160,398 thousand shares, respectively.
(b) Capital surplus
The detail of the capital surplus of the Company is as follows:
December 31, 2018
Share premium
Capital addition-Share premium
Capital addition-Employee stock option
Difference arising from disposal the
subsidiaries'
share price and its carry value
Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries

$

$

December 31, 2017

1,019,733
24,134
2,476

1,180,130
24,134
2,476

995
1,047,338

995
1,207,735

In accordance with the ROC Company Act, realized capital surplus can only be used to
cover accumulated deficit or to issue new shares or cash to shareholders in proportion to
their share ownership, provided that the Company has no accumulated deficit. The
aforementioned capital surplus includes share premiums and donation gains. In
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accordance with the Securities Offering and Issuance Guidelines, the amount of capital
surplus to be capitalized shall not exceed 10 percent of the paid-in capital each year.
Per shares of common stock for the exercise of employee stock options’ fair value was
$4.613. The Company used Black-scholes model to recognize the employee stock options
cost as $17,530, and also adjusted capital surplus. The valuation model adopted
parameters as follows：
Price at given date
Exercise Price
Expected volatility
Expected duration
Risk-free interest rate

$36.60
$31.38
12.93%
34 days
0.38%

Expected volatility is based on Weighted average historical volatility, and might be
adjusted by expected changes from opened information. Expected risk-free interest rate
is based on government bonds.
The above information of employee options as follows:

Outstanding shares on January 1
Given shares
Exercise shares
Out of date shares
Outstanding Shares on December 31

For the years ended December 31
2017
Weighted average
stock option's
exercise price(NT
quatity
doller)
$
31.38
3,800
31.38
(3,800)
31.38
-

(c) Retained earnings
a. Legal reverse
According to Company Act, companies shall set aside 10 percent of net income after
tax as legal reserve until it equals to the paid-in capital. When companies incur no loss,
they are able to distribute new shares or cash dividends through legal reserve under the
resolution of stockholders' meeting but companies can only distributed the part that
the reserve exceeds 25% of the paid in capital.
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b. Special reserve
In accordance with Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Law, 20 percent of the
current year’s earnings after tax should be set aside as special reserve. Ruling No.
1010048029 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission on November 1, 2012,
an equivalent amount of special reserve should be set aside from earnings after tax of
the current year and the undistributed earnings of the prior period based on the
decreased amount of stockholders’ equity. For the cumulative deduction in
stockholders’ equity of the prior period, the equal amount of special reserve set aside
based on undistributed earnings should not be distributed. If there is any reversal of
the deduction in stockholders’ equity, the earnings may be distributed based on the
reversal proportion.
In accordance with Ruling No. 10500278285 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission on August 5, 2016, 0.5% to 1.0% of the current year’s earnings after tax
should be set aside as special reserve for year 2016 to 2018. From year 2017, the
aforementioned special reserve can be reversed within an amount equal to the
expenditures stemming from employee re training, re assignments, or relocations made
necessary by the introduction of financial technology.
c. Undistributed earnings
According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, after-tax earnings should first
offset accumulated deficit, and then 10% of the remainder should be appropriated as
legal reserve .However, when the legal reserve has reached the paid-up capital, is not
within this limit. And then 20% of the remainder should be appropriated as special
reserve due to the need of Company’s operation and the law, if there’s earning plus
undistributed earnings of beginning of the year, the Company’s earnings distribution
was proposed by board of directors and is subject to the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting.
According to the resolution of shareholders’ meeting on May 24, 2018 and May 31,
2017, the Company’s 2017 and 2016 earnings distribution for owners were as follows:
For the years ended December 31,
2017
2016
Dividends for owners of common stock
Cash

$

460,342

354,479

The relevant information on earnings distribution approved by the stockholders’
meeting can be accessed through the Market Observation Post System or other sites.
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(12) Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and dilutive earnings per share of the Company in 2018 and 2017
were as follows:
(a) Basic earnings per share

For the years ended December 31,
Net income
Weighted-average number of common stock shares
outstanding (thousands of shares)
Basic earnings per share (dollar)

$

2018
835,205

2017
731,015

$

176,438
4.73

171,856
4.25

(b) Dilutived earnings per share

For the years ended December 31,
Net income
Weighted-average number of common stock shares
outstanding (thousands of shares)
Influence from stock dividends for employee (thousands of
shares)
Weighted-average outstanding shares of dilutived earnings
per share (thousands of shares)
Dilutived earnings per share (dollar)

$

$

2018
835,205

2017
731,015

176,438

171,856

268

238

176,706
4.73

172,094
4.25

(13) Items of Comprehensive Income
(a) Commission income - brokerage

Brokerage commission-Domestic futures
Brokerage commission-Foreign futures

For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
838,033
$
1,021,406
905,362
727,580
$
1,926,768
1,565,613

(b) Futures commission expenses

Re-consigned futures trading
Futures introducing broker business
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For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
245,730
$
283,333
168,627
152,941
$
451,960
398,671
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(c) Employee benefit, depreciation and amortization expenses
For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
Employee benefit expenses
Salary
Labor and health insurance
Pension
Director remuneration
Others
Depreciation
Amortization

$

$

342,332
21,807
12,193
31,389
7,274
18,844
7,661
441,500

315,468
18,875
10,721
27,694
6,587
15,878
6,241
401,464

(d) Other operating expenses
For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
$
27,661
18,479
75,332
66,090
24,254
23,611
109,140
83,434
186,564
31,045
62,738
52,305
$
485,689
274,964

Postage expenses
Taxes
Rental
Information technology service
Professional service fees
Others

(e) Other income and expenses

Interest revenue
Dividend revenue
Net gain (loss) on non-operating financial
instruments
Net gain (loss) on foreign exchange
Net gain (loss) on disposal of investments
Other non-operating revenue - other
Other non-operating expense - other

For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
$
363,732
239,445
49
1,744
(7,538)
139

$

18,815
(8,366)
12,002
(885)
377,809

(26,769)
48,104
32,710
(2,565)
292,808

(f) Remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors
According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the Company should aside 0.6%2.0% of annual profit to be distributed as employees’ bonus, and aside not higher than
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3% of annual profit to be distributed as remuneration to directors and supervisors.
However, the Company's accumulated losses should first be covered. People to receive
shares or cash include the employees of subsidiaries meeting certain specific
requirements.
For the year, 2018 and 2017, the estimated amounts of remuneration to employee were
$12,083 and $10,777, and to directors and supervisors by the Company were $12,083 and
$10,777, respectively, which were calculated based on the Company’s net profit before
income tax and remuneration to employees and directors and supervisors multiple the
earnings allocation percentage as specified in the Company’s articles. It is recognized as
operating expense for the year, 2018 and 2017. If the Board of Directors resolved to
distribute the employees’ remuneration in the form of shares, the number of shares of the
distribution is based on the closing price of the day before the Board of Directors’ meeting
date.
The estimated amounts of remuneration to employee and director and supervisors by the
Company for 2017 were both $10,777. There was no difference between accounting
estimates and actual distribution. Related information would be available at the Market
Observation Post System website.
(14) Financial Instruments
(a) Credit risk
1)

Credit risk exposure
The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the maximum credit exposure amounted to
$38,409,964 and $31,014,104, respectively.

2)

Concentration of credit risk
The main counterparties which the Company transacts with regarding cash and
cash equivalents, bonds purchased under resale agreements and customer margin
deposit are both domestic and overseas financial institutions.
The exposure area of credit risk in December, 2018 as shown in below, focusing
on Taiwan (proportion 83.17%), secondly was Asia (proportion 16.60% excluded
Taiwan), thirdly was Oceania (proportion 0.22%), and then North America
(proportion 0.01%). The proportion of investment area did not change significantly
compared to the same period last year.
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December 31,2018
$
31,214,655
6,229,925
82,619
4,896
$
37,532,095

Area
Taiwan
Asia(excluded Tawian)
Oceania
North America
Total

3)

December 31,2017
25,968,806
2,613,376
1,166,514
2,421
29,751,117

Impairment loss
The Company’s ageing analysis of receivables at reporting date is as follows:

Not past due

December 31, 2018
Total
Impairment
amount
$ 80,802
8,376

December 31, 2017
Total
Impairment
amount
45,808
-

Past due 0~30 days

-

-

-

-

Past due 31~120 days

-

-

-

-

25,146

25,146

-

-

-

-

-

-

$ 105,948

33,522

45,808

-

Past due 121~360 days
Past due more than 360 days

Allowance for doubtful debts under receivables is recorded for the bad debt
expense or impairment loss. Where a claim becomes definitely uncollectible, the
allowance for doubtful debts should be written off to financial assets account. As
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the loss allowance of accrued receivables were
recognized $33,522 and $0, respectively.
4)

Credit risk of receivables
Regarding how the financial instruments are considered to have low credit risk,
please refer to note 4(6). The Company regards a financial asset as a default when
the client of brokerage business is unable to fulfill the margin call or settlement
obligation or accrued receivables past due, as well as other receivable of stock
default that the company as securities interactive business, which the counterparty
is unable to pay the Company. Thus, the Company regarded the financial assets as
default and recognized impairment losses. The movement of loss allowance for the
year ended December 31, 2018 was as follows:
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12‑month ECL
Balance on January 1 per IAS39
Adjustment on initial application
of IFRS 9
Balance on January 1 per IFRS 9
Impairment loss recognized
Balance on December 31

$

$

-

2018.12.31
Lifetime ECL
‑not credit
impaired
-

Lifetime ECL ‑credit impaired
Receivable Other
futures margin
receivables
-

-

-

-

-

-

33,370
33,370

Total
-

-

-

152
152

33,522
33,522

(b) Liquidity risk
The following table shows the effect of contract maturity on financial liabilities. The
Company predicts the cash flow occurring point or the actual amount of this maturity
analysis will not be significantly earlier or different.
Contract
cash
flow

Carrying
amount
December 31, 2018
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Futures traders' equity
Leverage contract tradingcustomers' equity
Accounts payable
Receipts under custody
Other payable

December 31, 2017
Financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Futures traders' equity
Leverage contract tradingcustomers' equity
Receipts under custody
Accounts payable
Other payable

$

Within
6 months

6-12
months

1-2
year

2-5
year

More
than
5 year

9,063

9,063

9,063

-

-

-

-

34,098,182

34,098,182

34,098,182

-

-

-

-

225,899

225,899

225,899

45,097
3,946
121,294
$ 34,503,481

45,097
3,946
121,294
34,503,481

45,097
3,946
121,294
34,503,481

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Carrying
amount

Contract
cash
flow

Within
6 months

6-12
months

1-2
year

2-5
year

More
than
5 year

122,976
26,894,841

122,976
26,894,841

122,976
26,894,841

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

152,840

152,840

152,840

108,394
4,351
143,383
$ 27,426,785

108,394
4,351
143,383
27,426,785

108,394
4,351
143,383
27,426,785

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$
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(c) Currency risk
a. Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Company’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk of financial assets and
liabilities were as follows:
December 31,2018
Foreign
Currency (dollar)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD
JPY
HKD
GBP
EUR
AUD
SGD
CHF
CNY
NZD
CAD
Non-monetary items
USD
HKD
GBP
JPY
Investments under equity
method
HKD

$

Exchange rate

New Taiwan
Dollars

508,608,787.98
886,599,094.00
168,930,402.87
3,655,300.68
8,575,803.51
3,101,759.03
160,061.50
49,563.86
21,841,083.04
50,761.30
231,506.17

30.7150
0.2782
3.9210
38.8800
35.2000
21.6700
22.4800
31.1900
4.4720
20.6200
22.5800

15,621,919
246,652
662,376
142,118
301,868
67,215
3,598
1,546
97,673
1,047
5,227

4,412,934.61
82,672.00
2,024.62
8,392,500.00

30.7150
3.9210
38.8800
0.2782

135,543
324
79
2,335

268,602,885.23

3.9210

1,053,193
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December 31,2018

Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD
HKD
GBP
AUD
CAD
SGD
CHF
JPY
NZD
EUR
CNY
Non-monetary items
USD
JPY
CAD
AUD
CNY
NZD

Foreign
Currency (dollar)

Exchange rate

$ 500,037,837.54
165,005,037.99
3,552,856.78
3,160,808.66
7,224.19
168,666.16
49,558.86
869,904,919.00
1,273.64
8,298,223.03
18,659,311.38

30.7150
3.9210
38.8800
21.6700
22.5800
22.4800
31.1900
0.2782
20.6200
35.2000
4.4720

15,358,662
646,985
138,135
68,495
163
3,792
1,546
242,008
26
292,097
83,444

178,910.18
9,729,960.00
13,566.14
2,150.07
112,732.03
192.03

30.7150
0.2782
22.5800
21.6700
4.4720
20.6200

5,495
2,707
306
47
504
4
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December 31,2017

Financial assets
Monetary items
USD
JPY
HKD
GBP
EUR
AUD
SGD
CHF
CNY
NZD
CAD
Non-monetary items
USD
JPY
GBP
NZD
Investments under equity
method
HKD

Foreign
Currency (dollar)

Exchange rate

$ 447,763,417.18
993,483,592.00
157,120,051.88
1,752,648.78
7,136,399.99
1,351,282.53
725,612.70
18,315.20
43,270,381.65
(10,274.32)
234,054.64

29.7600
0.2642
3.8070
40.1100
35.5700
23.1900
22.2600
30.4550
4.5650
21.1400
23.7100

13,325,439
262,478
598,156
70,299
253,842
31,336
16,152
558
197,529
(217)
5,549

8,137,838.79
2,340,000.00
3,849.64
1,060.90

29.7600
0.2642
40.1100
21.1400

242,182
618
154
22

253,496,499.61

3.8070

965,062
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December 31,2017

Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD
JPY
HKD
GBP
EUR
AUD
SGD
CHF
CNY
Non-monetary items
USD
JPY
AUD
CNY
CAD

Foreign
Currency (dollar)

Exchange rate

New Taiwan
Dollars

$ 425,927,565.39
948,120,344.00
156,245,889.62
1,674,518.61
7,142,058.72
1,369,658.30
735,183.25
18,315.20
42,647,580.42

29.7600
0.2642
3.8070
40.1100
35.5700
23.1900
22.2600
30.4550
4.5650

12,675,604
250,493
594,828
67,165
254,043
31,762
16,365
558
194,686

48,913.58
3,635,432.00
423.43
77.54
17,728.14

29.7600
0.2642
23.1900
4.5650
23.7100

1,456
961
10
420

Due to the variety of currencies, the Company disclosed the summarized information
on exchange gain or loss. The realized and unrealized exchange gain (loss) amounted
to $22,252 and ($30,318) for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.
b. Sensitivity analysis
The currency risk of the Company arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents,
customers’ margin accounts, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets and futures traders’ equity, which are denominated
in foreign currency. Foreign exchange gain or loss occurs as foreign currency was
translated to NT currency. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, with all
other variable factors that remain constant, when NT currency increases or decreases
1% contrary to other currency, the Company’s comprehensive income will increase or
decrease $14,983 and $18,808, respectively. The analytical basis was the same in both
years.
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(d) Analysis in interest rates
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, with all other variable factors remain
constant, when the interest rate increases or decreases by 100 basis points, the Company’s
net income will increase or decrease by $8,570 and $3,620. This is mainly due to the
Company’s time deposits and guaranty deposited for business operations in variable rates
and settlement fund in variable rate.
(e) Fair value and hierarchy information
a. Fair value information
(1) General description
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction among market participants at the measurement
date.
(2) Definition of fair value hierarchy
A. Level 1
The input of Level 1 is the public quote of the same financial instrument in
an active market. An active market is a market that meets all the conditions
listed below: Products traded in the market is of homogeneity; it is able to
reach buyer and seller anytime in the market and the price information can be
accessed by the public. Listed stock, OTC stock, beneficiary certificates, as
well as equity and derivative instruments with public quote in an active
market possessed by the Company belong to Level 1.
B. Level 2
The input of Level 2 refers to observable price except public quote in an active
market, including direct observable input parameters (such as price) or
indirect observable input parameters (derivation from price).
C. Level 3
Level 3 means input in this level are based neither on direct market data nor
from the counter party.
b. Based on fair value measurement
(1) Hierarchy information of fair value
The Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value are evaluated on a
recurring basis. The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value were as
follows:
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December 31, 2018

Total
Non-derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Beneficiary certificate
Stock investment
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

$

106,368
75,273

Public quote
of the same
Observable
financial
price except
instrument in public quote
an active
in an active
market
market
(Level 1)
(Level 2)

106,368
75,273

-

-

-

88,204

41,237

46,967

-

9,063

-

9,063

-

1,055

Derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

$

Based neither
on direct
market data
nor from the
counter party
(Level 3)

1,055

December 31, 2017

Total
Non-derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Beneficiary certificate
Stock investment
Call warrant
Derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Public quote of
Observable
the same
price except
financial
instrument in public quote in
an active
an active
market
market
(Level 2)
(Level 1)

Based neither
on direct
market data
nor from the
counter party
(Level 3)

$

84,715
423,414
8,620

84,715
423,414
8,620

-

-

$

248,572

226,126

22,446

-

122,976

120,129

2,847

-
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(2) Valuation techniques
A. Non-derivative financial instruments
The valuation of non-derivative financial instruments are based on
transparent offer price as fair value if there is existence of active market, i.e.
TSE, OTC and investment Trust and investment Adviser. The equity of nontransparent offer price shall be evaluated by valuation techniques by using the
Market approach-public company comparable with the discount of lack
equity-liquidity.
B. Derivative financial instruments
The valuation of derivative financial instruments in the active market are
mainly measured settlement price of exchange institution as fair value. The
fair value of the remaining financial instruments are obtained by financial
valuation models or referencing counterparty quotes. Fair value obtained
through the calculations of financial valuation models include, but are not
limited to, fair value references of substantive factors and characteristics from
similar financial instruments, those obtained from the cash flow discounting
method or those obtained by other financial valuation techniques. Fair values
obtained through financial valuation techniques are derived from market
information on the reporting date, and utilizes the fair values derived from
the calculations of financial valuation models.
(3) Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2
There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017.
(4) Movements of financial assets at fair value classified into Level 3
(In Thousands Dollars)
For the years ended December 31, 2018

Item
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income

$

Beginning
Balance
1,014

Gains and losses on valuation
Amount
Amount
recognized in
recognized in
profit or
comprehensive
loss
income
41

Addition

Purchased
or issued
-

Reduction

Transferred
to Level 3
-

Sold, disposed
or settled
-

Transferred
from Level 3
-

Ending
Balance
1,055

(5) Quantified information of fair value measurement for significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)
The Company’s Level 3 fair value measurements are financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income – equity instruments investment.
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The Company’s equity instruments investment without active market include
multiple significant unobservable inputs. Those unobservable inputs of equity
instrument without active market are independent from each other, thus, they are
not correlative. Since the correlation between significant unobservable inputs and
fair value cannot be fully measured in practical, the quantified information is not
disclosed.

Item
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income - equity
instruments without an
active market

Valuation
technique
Market approach

Correlation between
inputs and fair
value
‧The higher
price-to-book ratio
is, the higher fair
value is.

Significant
unobservable inputs
‧ Price-to-Book Ratio

‧ Discount for lack of
marketability

‧The higher
discount for lack
of marketability is,
the lower the fair
value is.

(6) Fair value measurement to Level 3, and the sensitivity analysis of the
substitutable appropriate assumption made on fair value
The fair value measurement that the Company made for the financial instruments
is deemed reasonable; however, different valuation models or inputs could result
in different valuation results. Specifically, if the valuation input of financial
instruments classified in the Level 3 changes by 1%, the effects on other
comprehensive income are as follows:
Change in fair value recognized in other
comprehensive income
Favorable
Unfavorable
December 31, 2018
Financial assets fair value through
other comprehensive income

$

11

(11)

Favorable and unfavorable movements of the Company refer to the fluctuation
of fair value, and the fair value is calculated through the valuation technique
according to the unobservable inputs to different extent. If the fair value of a
financial instrument is affected by more than one input, the above table only
illustrates the effect as a result of one single input, and the correlation and
variance among multiple inputs are not listed here.
c.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
For financial instruments not measured at fair value, such as cash and cash
equivalents, customers’ margin accounts, accounts receivables, deposits, future
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traders’ equity, leverage contract traders’ equity and account payables. The carrying
amount is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. Therefore, the Company does
not disclose the fair value.
(15) Financial risk management
(a) General description
The Company is exposed to risks below due to the application of financial instruments
i.

Credit risk

ii.

Liquidity risk

iii.

Market risk

The note expresses the exposure, measurement and management target, policy and
procedure of the aforementioned risks. Detailed information about the financial
instruments has been disclosed as each note to the financial statements.
(b) Risk management structure
To effectively control risks, a management procedure is to build up from top to bottom that
includes the Board of Directors, managers of all departments and the employees to
participate. From the macroscopic perspective of the Company, qualitative and quantitative
approaches are taken to recognize, evaluate, monitor and respond to various potential risks.
As a result, the Company may make reasonable risky asset allocation and maximize returns
for shareholders within a bearable risk range. On September 21, 2007, the Company
deliberated this institution of risk management based on the “Principles of Futures
Commission Merchant’s Risk Management Practices” and the “Futures Commission
Merchant’s Self Checklist for the Establishment of Risk Management Mechanism” as
promulgated in the letter ref. No. (Taiwan- Futures-Audit) 0940024340 of the Taiwan
Futures Exchange. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board of Directors has established
the Risk Management Committee, attributable to General Manager’ Office and responsible
for developing and monitoring Company’s risk management policies. The committee
reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities
(c) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company engaged in financial trading exposed, including
issuers credit issue, traders credit issue and the subject assets credit risk. And the risk of
financial loss to the Company if a customer of brokerage business fails to meet its
contractual obligations of margin calls or settlement. According to futures trading practices,
futures commission merchant can close position in accordance with the prior agreement of
both parties due to the system designed such as advance customers margin, intraday in-
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time clearing and when customers fail to meet its contractual obligations of margin calls.
Therefore, the influence is not significant to the credit risk of the Company. Moreover,
most brokerage customers are the general investors and professional institutions. The
object sources of investors and the amount of investment are widely dispersed, and thus,
there is no situation such as concentration of credit risk.
Approaches taken to manage credit risk at current stage are as follows:
i. Credit inquiry and assessment before trade: inquire client’s credit and ascertain the
legality before transaction
ii. Credit rating management: treat trades with special credit particularly.
iii. Credit supervision after transaction: regularly inspect client’s profit and loss of
positions. Evaluate and monitor credit enhancement (including collaterals) on a
regular basis.
iv. Other effective risk reduction measures: collaterals, guarantee, credit risk netting and
offset agreement.
Summarize information on expected credit loss (credit risk exposure amount,
counterparty default probability and return rate) and unexpected credit loss, as well as
quantify the credit VaR.
(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risks are market liquidity risk and capital liquidity risk
i.

Market liquidity risk:
Market liquidity risk is the risk which the Company cannot immediately cover or
offset the risk of derivative positions. When the condition of insufficient market
depth or an unexpected event occurs, it’s not easy to obtain trading opportunities or
significant spread risk. Due to small trading volume, some domestic futures contracts
have this liquidity risk. Therefore, when the proprietary segment of the Company
engages in arbitrage trading, it should consider the liquidity risk of goods. Futures
commodity liquidity can depend on daily trading volume and open interest (OI) to
measure. The more the daily trading volume and open interest as well as the greater
liquidity are, the relatively lower the liquidity risk is.

ii.

Capital liquidity risk:
Capital liquidity risk is the one that the Company fails to meet its contractual
obligations when increasing margins is required by settlement or trading. Therefore,
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the Company should control and manage the allocation of capital in order to avoid
the risk of capital liquidity and financial losses of the Company when proprietary
segment of the Company engages in futures trading.
Liquidity risk management of the Company includes：
- Market liquidity risk management: To avoid loss caused by market liquidity risk,
the Company stipulates capital amount budgeted for proprietary trade
department in the annual operating plan. Also, a daily report on the Adjusted
Net Capital (ANC) ratio is filed to the competent authority. As for other
departments and proprietary trade, the risk control office supervises daily trade
by comparing actual cash flow and the authorized amount.
- Capital liquidity risk management：The finance department is independent from
other units in transferring financial resources. To control capital liquidity risk
and to consider capital needs of various products for domestic and foreign
markets, the finance department composes daily reports, such as the “Margin
Withdrawal/Deposit List”, “Securities Transaction Applications”, and other
management report forms. After reviewing and approving by the management,
these reports will be implemented and filed.
(e) Market risk
Market risk is the possibility of loss resulting from trading due to futures price reversal
of the Company’s proprietary business. It means that the market price or fluctuation trend
is not beneficial to the Company’s profitability, which results in risky events happen.
The Company’s market risk management comprises trading strategy monitoring, loss up
limit control, trading margin up limit control, remaining position up limit and open-delta
value control, margins ratio control for domestic and foreign remaining positions and the
implied volatility inspection of option price.
Quantitative Measurement on Market Risk was as follows:
i.

Statistic-based measurement: the Value at Risk (VaR) of linear products (stocks) is
measured by the Variance Co-Variance (Risk Metrics Approach--EWMA), which
calculates the maximal probable risk of portfolio under a certain confidence level for
the next business day. The Value at Risk of non-linear products (options) is measured
by the Delta-Gamma Approximations (the “Greeks”). After offsetting the risks of
trade contracts, the measurement vehicle calculates the maximal probable risk of
portfolio under a certain confidence level for the next business day. To test the
accuracy, back testing approach is taken to try finding out the violations within one
year under pre-calculated VaR using the actual valued profit and loss of inventory
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positions for the previous day (P & L for T-1 day)
ii.

Sensitivity analysis measures the sensitivity of the positions to individual risk factors
(such as interest rate and exchange rate). The sensitivity analysis on exchange rate
variation includes evaluation and analysis on the proprietary overseas capital and
service fee revenue from foreign futures products

iii.

Stress test emulates and measures the impacts on portfolio value at unusual market
change, from which responding actions can be made. The portfolio stress test at
current stage aims at the weighted index or targeted stock price within ±15% change.

(16) Capital management
The Company’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the capacity to continue to
operate and achieve the Group’s operating principles, to continue to provide a return on
shareholders, to maintain the interest of other related parties, and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to the shareholders, reduce the capital for
redistribution to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company adopts a risk-adjusted return
on capital to allocate the company's capital reasonably and effectively.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company didn’t change the method of capital management.
7.

Related-party transactions
(1) Relationships between parents and subsidiaries
The Company’s subsidiaries were as follows:

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.
Capital International Technology Co., Ltd.
Capital True Partner Technology Co., Ltd
Capital Futures Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Location
Hong kong
Taiwan
China
China

December 31,
2018
97.27%
100.00%
51.00%
100.00%

December 31,
2017
97.27%
100.00%
51.00%
100.00%

(2) Parent Company and ultimate controlling party
Capital Securities Corporation is both the Parent Company of the Company and the ultimate
controlling party of the consolidated entity. It owns 56.21 percent of all shares outstanding of
the Company, and has issued the consolidated financial statements available for public use.
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(3) Names and relationship with related parties
The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods
covered in the consolidated financial statements.
Relationship with the
Company

Name of related party
Capital Securities Corporation

The parent company

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

A Subsidiary

Capital International Technology Co., Ltd.

A Subsidiary

CSC Securities (HK) Ltd.

An associate

Capital Investment Trust Corp. (Note)

An associate

Note: The Corporation has become an associate of the Company from February 9, 2018.
(4) Key management personnel compensation
For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
$
77,779
62,836
1,012
1,038
5,794
$
78,791
69,668

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payment
Total

(5) Significant transactions with related parties
(a) The amounts of futures trading between the Company and related parties were as follows:
For the years ended December 31,
2018
2017
Commission income-brokerage
Capital Securities Corporation
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd
Capital Investment Trust Corp.
Management Fee income
Capital Securities Corporation

- 183 -

$

$

21,562
68,377
856
90,795

19,522
55,092
74,614

$

1,117

1,849

CAPITAL FUTURES CORPORATION
Notes To Financial Report (Cont’d)

December 31, 2018
Futures traders' equity
Capital Securities Corporation
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd

$

December 31, 2017

$

1,628,417
2,987,172
287,357
4,902,946

Customers margin accountsother futures commission merchants
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd

$

252,079

310,167

Futures margin
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd

$

4,179

3,104

CSC Securities (HK) Ltd
Capital Investment Trust Corp.

718,153
2,212,699
4
2,930,856

Transaction terms are the same as those with general clients.
Capital Securities Corporation deposits margins to the Company for futures proprietary
trading, and the Company paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2018 and 2017,
interest expense amounted to $436 and $159, respectively.
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. deposits margins to the Company for futures proprietary trading,
and the Company paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2018 and 2017, interest
expense amounted to $2,482 and $888, respectively.
Capital Investment Trust Corp. deposits margins to the Company for futures proprietary
trading, and the Company paid the interest of excess margin annually. In 2018 and 2017,
interest expense amounted to $78 and $0, respectively.
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(b) Accounts payable and receivable:

Accounts receivable

Capital Securities Corporation

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2017

Amount

Amount

%

%

$

228

100

694

100

$

10,922

100

14,688

100

$

19,981

100

197

100

$

444

19

277

16

$

1,951
2,395

81
100

1,494
1,771

Accounts payable

Capital Securities Corporation
Other receivables (Note 1)

Capital Securities Corporation
Other payables
Capital Securities Corporation (Note 2)
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. (Note 3)

84
100

(Note 1) Receivables for information service fee, receivables from future interactive brokers and interest
from bonds investment under resell agreements.
(Note 2) Payables for allocated expense and interest.
(Note 3) Payables for commission-brokerage allowance and interest.

(c) Futures commission expenses
The Company delegated Capital Securities Corporation for introducing brokers. In 2018
and 2017, futures commission expenses amounted to $166,348 and $149,776,
respectively.
The Company delegated CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. for recon-signing foreign futures trading.
In 2018 and 2017, futures commission expenses amounted to $10,289 and $8,849,
respectively.
(d) Lease agreements-rental expense
The Company leased its office and parking lot from Capital Securities Corporation. The
rental expense was based on market price and paid monthly. In 2018 and 2017, rental
expense amounted to $16,455 and $15,813 respectively, and the guarantee deposits paid
for the contract amounted to $3,819 and $3,508, respectively.
(e) Lease agreements-rental income
Capital International Technology Co., Ltd. leased its office from the Company. The rental
income was based on market price and paid monthly. In 2018 and 2017, rental income
were $0 and $85, respectively.
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(f) Information technology service
Computer information system service contract was signed between the Company and
Capital Securities Corporation. In 2018 and 2017, the service fee amounted to $41,637
and $27,291, respectively.
(g) Securities commission income
The Company was delegated by Capital Securities Corporation for securities introducing
brokers. In 2018 and 2017, commission income amounted to $4,721 and $5,147,
respectively.
(h) Stock service fee
In 2018 and 2017, the Company paid the stock service fee to Capital Securities
Corporation both amounted to $406 and $404, respectively.
(i) Human resource and legal service fees
In 2018 and 2017, the Company paid the human resource and legal service fee to Capital
Securities Corporation both amounted to $300.
(j) Securities brokerage charge
In 2018 and 2017, the Company paid the securities brokerage charge to Capital Securities
Corporation amounted to $436 and $12, respectively.
(k) Bonds under resell agreement
The Company conducted investments with the Capital Securities Corporation for bonds
purchased under resell agreements. In 2018 and 2017, the interest income amounted to
$321 and $373, respectively. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the remaining
investment amounted to $198,000 and $11,501, respectively. The maturity dates are from
January 2 to January 14, 2019 and from January 10 to January 15, 2018, respectively. The
agreed interest rate is 0.45% to 0.48% and 0.40% to 0.41%, respectively.
(l) Recon-signing foreign trading charge
In 2018 and 2017, the Company paid the recon-signing foreign trading charge to Capital
Securities Corporation amounted to $0 and $72, respectively.
(m) Professional service fees
The Company delegated Capital International Technology Co., Ltd. for developing
systems. In 2018 and 2017, the professional service fee amounted to $1,400 and $0,
respectively.
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8.

Pledged assets：None

9.

Material contingent liability and unrecognized contract commitment：
The Company purchased software and hardware systems for business development. The price
amounted to NT$18,990, as of December 31, 2018, the Company had outstanding balance
NT$8,903.

10. Significant catastrophic losses：None
11. Significant subsequent events：None
12. Disclosure of information as related to derivative financial instruments
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the open positions of futures and option contracts were as
follows:
December 31,2018

Item
Futures contract：

Trading category
TAIEX Futures
TAIEX Futures
Mini Taiex Futures
Electronic Sector Index Futures
Finance Sector Index Futures
USD/JPY FX Futures
USD/JPY FX Futures
Nifty 50 Index Futures
Nifty 50 Index Futures
EUR/USD FX Futures
US Dollar Index Futures
Euro Dollar Futures
DJIA Index Futures
MSCI India Index Futures
JPY Dollar Futures
Mini Hang Seng Index Futures
2-Year T-Note Futures
Mini-Dow Futures
Mini-Dow Futures
Mini-S&P 500 Futures
Mini-S&P 500 Futures
S&P 500 Futures
S&P 500 Futures
Subtotal

Open positions
Long/ Number of
Short contracts
Long
Short
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Short
Short
Short
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short

131
95
264
23
30
53
213
48
4
113
1
18
58
36
28
4
1
5
2
16
6
18
12

Long

240

Contract size or paid for
(received from) premium
$

Fair value

252,299
(183,069)
(126,317)
35,333
(35,369)
32,509
(130,851)
26,045
(2,193)
79,609
(2,946)
(79,280)
(26,931)
(24,058)
(97,593)
4,067
(6,495)
17,770
(7,113)
60,226
(22,746)
9,008
(6,008)
(234,103)

253,244
(183,350)
(127,524)
35,397
(35,358)
32,120
(130,068)
26,189
(2,192)
80,110
(2,940)
(79,631)
(26,880)
(24,155)
(98,591)
4,055
(6,521)
17,867
(7,151)
61,558
(23,115)
9,005
(5,993)

72

25

Options contract：
TAIEX Weekly Options (Put)
Subtotal
Total

$
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Item
Futures contract：

Trading category
T AIEX Futures
T AIEX Futures
Mini T aiex Futures
Electronic Sector Index Futures
Finance Sector Index Futures
Non-Finance Non-Electronics
Sub-Index Futures
NT Dollar Gold Futures
Stock Futures
Stock Futures
USD/CNY FX Futures
USD/CNY FX Futures
Mini-USD/CNY FX Futures
USD/JPY FX Futures
USD/JPY FX Futures
Nifty 50 Index Futures
EUR/USD FX Futures
EUR/USD FX Futures
FT SE China A50 Index Futures
Euro Dollar Futures
Mini-S&P 500 Futures
Mini-S&P 500 Futures
MSCI India Index Futures
JPY Dollar Futures
MSCI T aiwan Index Futures
Mini-Dow Futures
Mini-Dow Futures
DJIA Index Futures
DJIA Index Futures
S&P 500 Futures
S&P 500 Futures
Subtotal

December 31,2017
O pen positions
Long/ Number of
Short contracts
Long
Short
Short
Short
Long
Long

166
1,421
113
72
2
24

Long
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Long
Short
Short
Long
Short
Long
Long
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short

3
1,332
629
7
17
81
76
90
99
134
188
51
9
1
9
83
3
140
6
2
92
97
63
3
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Contract size or
paid for (received from)
premium
$

Fair value

341,696
(3,011,196)
(59,538)
(126,534)
2,374
29,054

351,721
(3,019,475)
(59,835)
(127,066)
2,376
29,801

1,399
215,492
(59,526)
22,476
(54,697)
52,641
45,094
(53,137)
(52,266)
95,766
(133,994)
20,115
40,182
3,996
(36,031)
52,124
(9,942)
163,256
22,185
(7,362)
45,670
(48,132)
33,766
(1,616)
(2,466,685)

1,399
216,581
(59,774)
20,937
(51,083)
48,696
45,066
(53,082)
(52,272)
96,370
(134,423)
20,099
40,428
3,981
(35,864)
52,161
(9,948)
163,740
22,083
(7,366)
45,711
(48,174)
33,875
(1,614)
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Item
Options contract：

Contract size or
paid for (received from)
premium

Open positions
Long/ Number of
Short
contracts

Trading category
Stock Options (Call)
Stock Options (Call)
Stock Options (Put)
Stock Options (Put)
TAIEX Options (Call)
TAIEX Options (Call)
TAIEX Options (Put)
TAIEX Options (Put)
TAIEX Weekly Options (Call)
TAIEX Weekly Options (Call)
TAIEX Weekly Options (Put)
TAIEX Weekly Options (Put)
Electronic Sector Index Options(Call)
Electronic Sector Index Options(Call)
Electronic Sector Index Options(Put)
Electronic Sector Index Options(Put)
Finance Sector Index Options(Call)
Finance Sector Index Options(Call)
Finance Sector Index Options(Put)
Finance Sector Index Options(Put)
Gold Option (Call)
Gold Option (Call)
Gold Option (Put)
Gold Option (Put)
USD/CNY FX Options(Put)
USD/CNY FX Options(Put)
Mini USD/CNY FX Options(Call)
Mini USD/CNY FX Options(Call)
Mini USD/CNY FX Options(Put)
Subtotal

Long
Short
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Long
Short
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Short
Long
Long
Short
Short
Long
Long

Total

652
528
222
1,147
4,216
22,117
27,283
25,938
3,328
3,086
4,741
21,995
40
2,221
130
473
39
826
42
598
5
1
2
33
12
22
1
2
78

$

-

-$
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2,310
(2,068)
(1,468)
4,810
(27,788)
39,982
(76,981)
56,782
2,811
(10,004)
(6,410)
2,686
4,656
(559)
2,066
(330)
1,025
(10)
1,537
(26)
1
(1)
143
1,155
(463)
(7)
12
1,424
(4,715)
2,471,400

Fair value
1,663
(1,940)
(711)
6,290
(36,956)
60,042
(48,240)
32,393
3,250
(24,342)
(3,951)
1,105
4,830
(275)
1,116
(294)
853
847
(26)
1
(1)
128
2,978
(3,393)
3,734
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13. Restrictions and enforcement of the Company’s various financial ratios under futures trading
law
The restrictions and enforcement of each financial ratio was calculated in accordance with
Regulations Governing Futures Commission Merchants as follow:
Current Period
Calculation
Ratio

Last Period
Calculation
Ratio

Art.

Calculation formula

Standard Enforcement

17

Stockholders' equity
(Total liabilities –futures traders' equity)

5,032,092
486,790

10.34

4,637,732
607,202

7.64

≧1

Satisfactory to
requirement

17

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

38,113,857
34,567,504

1.10

30,719,057
27,485,827

1.12

≧1

〞

22

Stockholders’ equity
Minimum paid-in capital

5,032,092
1,115,000

451.31%

4,637,732
1,115,000

415.94%

≧60%
≧40%

〞

22

Post-adjustment net capital
Total customer margin deposits required
for open positions of customers

3,659,697
6,318,099

57.92%

3,183,040
5,524,491

57.62%

≧20%
≧15%

〞

14. Unique risks to specific futures commission merchant services
Transactions in futures and options carry a high degree of risk because of the amount of initial
margin is small relative to the value of the futures contract, meaning that transactions are heavily
leveraged, the fluctuation of underlying markets is unpredictable, and the variance risk of the
exchange rate is high. Futures industry thus bears higher operation risk than other industries. If the
customers can’t exercise the contract or maintain the proper margin, in order to dealing with such
abrupt condition, the Company needs sufficient liquidity to cover the transactions and suffer the
loss may occur.
15. Others：None
16. Disclosures Required
(1)

Information on significant transactions
(a) Loans to others：Exhibit 1
(b) Endorsement and guarantees for others：None
(c) Acquisition of real estate amounting to over NT$300,000 thousands or 20% of paid-in
capital：None
(d) Disposal of real estate amounting to over NT$300,000 thousands or 20% of paid-in
capital：None
(e) Discount of commissions of handling fees with related parties amounting to over
NT$5,000 thousands：None
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(f) Receivables from related parties amounting to over NT$100,000 thousands or 20% of
paid-in capital：None
(g) Details of material transactions between parent and subsidiaries: Please refer to the
consolidated financial report
(2)

Information on reinvestment business (exclude investment in Mainland China)
Amount of Original
Investment

Names of
investor
company

Names of investee
company

Capital Futures
CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.
Corporation

Capital Futures
Corporation

Capital International
Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

Capital Futures True Partner Capital
Corporation
advisor Co., Ltd.

Approval date
Date of
and number of
establishment
FSC

Area

Main business
scope

Current
Period

Last
Period

Ownership as of
December 31, 2018

Number
of shares

Ratio

Book
value

Current
Operating income Recognized
income of or loss of gain (loss)
investee
investee
on
Cash
company company investment dividend

Note

Hong Komg

1998.12.9

Futures brokerage and
Gin Guan Zheng
other businesses
Zhi No.
permitted by local law
1010027412 letter
of Hong Kong

862,631

862,631

214,000

97.27%

1,007,474

551,086

57,246

55,683

-

Sunsidiary

Taiwan

2014.12.29

Gin Guan Zheng
Consultancy,
Zhi No.
Information software
1030038387 letter
service

50,000

50,000

5,000

100.00%

46,283

1,400

552

670

-

Sunsidiary

Hong Komg

2010.5.31

Gin Guan Zheng
Assets Manangement
Zhi No.
1040027513 letter

36,701

36,701

245

49.00%

45,719

133,223

7,791

3,818

-

Assosiate

(3)

Information on branch units or representative offices overseas: None

(4)

Information on investments in China:
(a) Investment in Mainland China and related information：

Name of the
investee in
Mainland
China

Major
operations

Capital True Management,
Partner
consulting
Technology
and
Co., Ltd.
information
service
business
Capital
Futures
Technology
(Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Remittance or recoverable
Accumulated
investment this period
Method of remittance
Issued
investment
as of
capital
(Note 1) January 1, Remittance Recoverable
amount
amount
2018

Investment
Accumulated
Direct or
Investment
Net gains
Ending
income
remittance as
indirect
gains and losses
or losses
balance remitted back
of
recognized
shareholdings
of
of
as of
December 31,
during this
(%) by the
investee
investment December 31,
2018
period (Note 2)
company
2018

5,013

C

24,372

-

-

24,372

2,506

51.00%

1,397
B (2)

23,029

-

Management, 18,863
consulting
and
information
service
business

C

18,863

-

-

18,863

2,374

100.00%

2,374
B (2)

22,597

-

Note 1: Investment methods are classified into the following three categories:
A. Directly invest in a Company in Mainland China.
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B. Through investing in an existing Company in the third area, which then invested in the investee in
Mainland China (Please indicate the investee name of the third area).
C. Through a subsidiary to invest in a Company in Mainland China.
Note 2: Investment gains and losses recognized during the period
A.It should be indicated if the investee was still in the incorporation arrangements and had not yet any
profit during this period.
B. . Indicate the basis for investment gains and losses recognition in the number of one of the following
three categories:
(1) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements audited by
international certified public accountant cooperated with certified public accountant of the
Republic of China.
(2) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements audited by
certified public accountant of the Company.
(3) The recognition of investment gains or losses is based on the financial statements provided by the
investee without audited by certified public account.

(b) Limitation of investment in China:
Unit: NT$ thousands

Name of the
Company
Capital
International
Technology Co.,
Ltd.

Accumulative
remittance from Taiwan
to Mainland China

Amount of investment approved
by Investment Commission,
Ministry of Economic Affairs
(MOEA)

Limit on the amount of
investment in Mainland
China by MOEA

43,235

43,235

80,000

Note: The Company invests through a subsidiary, Capital International Technology Co.,
Ltd., to invest in Mainland China. According to the relevant rules to small and
medium enterprises, the upper limit for investment in China is $ 80,000.
17. Segment information
Please refer to the consolidated financial report for the year ended December 31, 2018.

- 192 -

- 193 -

No

No

No

No

No

No

Account receivables Customer

Account receivables Customer

Account receivables Customer

Account receivables Customer

Account receivables Customer

Account receivables Customer

AAA Fintech Limited

Future Leading
Investment Pte. Ltd.

Tetrion Capital Limited

Alpha Rnd Singapore
Pte Ltd

Pinnacle Corp. Pte. Ltd.

Klaw Trading Limited

Related Party

3,047

5,864

0

85,313

60,938

27,422

0

85,313

6,671

85,313

85,313

42,656

Ending
Balance

-

-

-

-

-

14,320

Capital
Employed

4%

5.4%

0.0%

3.5%

5.4%

5%

Range of
interest Rate

2

2

2

2

2

2

Type of
Loans

Amount of
Transactions

-

-

-

-

-

-

Tradings

Tradings

Tradings

Tradings

Tradings

Tradings

Purposes of
the
Borrowers

Note2: Type of Loans
1. Business transactions
2. Necessaries of short-term financing

Note1: Type of Numbering
1. 0 represents Parent company
2. Invested company is being numbered by company type from 1, same company should have same number.

Remark Each loan limit by an individual is 10% amount of the net assets of CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. on the Financial Statements. Total credit line is 40% of CSC Futures (HK) Ltd. Net income on the Financial statements.

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

1

1

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

1

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

1

1

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

1

No.

Maximum Balance
of the Period

(Amounts expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Account
Classification

Name of the company
Party to Transactions
providing Loans to Others

Exhibit 1: Loans to others
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-

-

-

-

-

-

Allowance of
Doubtful
Accounts
Name

-

-

-

-

-

-

Value

Collateral

103,575

103,575

103,575

103,575

103,575

103,575

414,300

414,300

414,300

414,300

414,300

414,300

(In thousands dollars)
Limit on the
Limit on loans
Amount of
to a single
Loans
business

VII. Review of Financial Position, Business Performance and Risk Issues
7.1 Financial status

The financial analysis in the last 2 years (standalone)
Year

Item
Current assets

Property and equipment
Other non-current assets
Current
liabilities

Financial information in the last 2
years (note 1)
2018
2017
38,113,857
30,719,057
44,122
43,566
1,459,085
1,377,152

Before
distribution
After
distribution

%
24.07
1.28
5.95

7,081,677

25.76

Note 2

27,946,169

-

-

17,468
1,764,376

16,216
1,603,979

1,252
160,397

7.72
10.00

Before
distribution

2,247,246

1,872,755

374,491

20.00

After
distribution

Note 2

1,412,413

-

-

39,617,064

32,139,775

7,477,289

23.26

34,584,972

27,502,043

7,082,929

25.75

Note 2

27,962,385

-

-

5,032,092

4,637,732

394,360

8.50

Note 2

4,177,390

-

-

Total Assets

Total
shareholders’
equity

Amount
7,394,800
556
81,933

27,485,827

Capital stock

Total
liabilities

Difference

34,567,504

Non-current liabilities

Retained
earnings

Unit: NT$ thousand

Before
distribution
After
distribution
Before
distribution
After
distribution

Note 1：All financial information has been audited.
Note 2：Appropriation of 2018 earnings had yet to be resolved in a shareholders' meeting.

7.2 Financial performance
The financial performance analysis in the last 2 years (standalone)
Item
Income
Operating expense
Operating profits
Other income and
expenses
Income before tax
Tax
Net income from
continuing
operations

Year

2018

2017

Unit: NT$ thousand

Difference
Amount
468,622
410,653
57,969

%
24.60
28.31
12.76

$2,373,305
1,861,029
512,276

$1,904,683
1,450,376
454,307

437,980

372,582

65,398

17.55

950,256
115,051

826,889
95,874

123,367
19,177

14.92
20.00

$835,205

$731,015

104,190

14.25
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Explanation to major variations:
1. Current liabilities and assets: The Current liabilities and assets was increased from
the previous year, due to the customer’s trading margin and trader’s equity has
increased which related to the trading volume of leverage transaction business
increased.
2. Capital: The capital increased due to cash issue.
3. Retained earnings: Retained earnings increased due to the profit increased.

7.3 Cash flow
7.3.1 Liquidity analysis for the last 2 years
Item

Year

Current ratio (%)
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)
Cash reinvestment ratio (%)

Unit: NT$ thousand

2018

2017

Variation (%)

2.5
112.41
7.88

2.18
90.99
5.21

14.68
23.54
51.25

7.3.2 Cash flow analysis for the coming year
Opening cash
balance
(1)

Net cash flow
from operating
activities for the
year (2)

Cash outflow
for the year
(3)

Cash surplus
(deficit)
(1)+(2)-(3)

3,211,143

741,408

680,398

3,272,153

Unit: NT$ thousand
Financing of cash deficits
Investment
plans

Financing
plans

-

-

7.4 Impacts of major capital expenditures in the last year to financial
performance: None.
7.5 Causes of profit or loss incurred on investments in the last year, and any
improvement or investment planned for the next year:
A. The Company’s investment policy:
The Company's investments were planned and executed according to its internal control
system and it’s “Procedures for the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets ". As part of its
administration over invested businesses, the Accounting Department analyzes investees'
financial statements on a regular basis for insights into their individual business
operations.
B. The major causes for profits or losses incurred by invested businesses, and any corrective
actions: The sales of Reinvestment Company became stable gradually, the income also
grow up constantly this year.
C. Investment plan for the coming year: None.

7.6 Analysis of Risk Management
The Company's operation risk (such as market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk, legal risk, model risk, reputation risk and other risks related to
the operation of futures dealers) is to be established a “Risk Management Policy”
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under an effective risk management situation and also create a procedure which
obeyed by all employees. Each business units shall implement risk management
operations and activities, and the risk management department is responsible to
monitor matters in connection with risk management.
Also, the risk management and other related reports should be submitted by risk
management department, internal auditing department and financial & accounting
office on Boarding of Directors meeting, it will affect the financial and sales
related rules with regards to the capital distribution of the Company. Within a
sustainable level of risk, the Board of Directors shall take all types of
corresponding measures considering other financial and business regulations that
may affect the allocation of capital, the effects after aggregating the company’s
overall risks and the subjective and objective environment.
In order to manage effectively the Company's operational risks, the Company
has established a risk management policy whose content does reflect the
Company's operational strategy and objectives, risk preferences and the
characteristics of current risk of the Company. Moreover, the Company establish a
consistent management process as the norms and basis for the Company's daily
execution risk management operations. Also, it is supported by the Board of
Directors, management personnel at all levels and employees. The risk
management policy not only rationalize the Company's risky asset allocation but
also maximize the shareholder return ratio within the scope of acceptable risk.
Besides, the Company should regularly review the appropriateness of the risk
management policy and adjust it in a timely manner to cope with changes in the
subjective and objective environment.
The management personnel and employees of each business unit of the
Company perform jointly all business and trading activities. The supervisors are
responsible for all risk management matters such as analyzing, controlling and
reporting risky matters, and are responsible for meeting the requirements of legal
regulations and corporate risk management policies for operational risk
management of the Company. The Company develops a contingency plan and
take countermeasures when it necessary, and deliver the relevant information to
the management to ensure that the risk control mechanism and procedures are
implemented effectively.
High-level management, risk management office, and legal compliance
department implement risk monitoring, management, and emergency response
measures according to their responsibilities. The functional risk-based approach
has been adopted for auditing assessment of overall business and operations level
to ensure that every risky factor of the Company is under effective control. Also,
through the application of risk management information system, it conducts
real-time monitoring and after-hour summary analysis, detects and checks the
usage of risk limits of each business unit, assesses exposure and concentration of
risk, and presents risk management related reports timely and completely.
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Internal auditing department is responsible for the compliance and operational
risk management of the Company's regulations and internal control system, and
also responsible for supervising and ensuring the effective implementation of the
Company's operational risk management procedures. The Company follows the
internal control system issued by the competent authority, employs experienced
personnel to conduct auditing operations for the business activities, and
cooperates with the competent authorities, Taiwan Futures Exchange or Chinese
National Futures Association to amend the relevant specifications or change and
adjust operational risk management procedures for business needs.
Legal compliance department is responsible for reviewing the legality of
transaction contract documents of the Company such as commodity contracts and
transaction behaviors to provide the professional suggestions which would
implement legal compliance work with internal auditing department jointly.

7.6.1 Impact of interest rate, exchange rate, and inflation on the Company's
earnings, and responsive measures in the last year:
A. Impacts of interest rate variations to the Company's profit and loss, and responsive
measures in the future
1. The Company has sound financial structure and stable cash flow, there is no interest
rate risk due to without outside loan. The interest revenue of the Company was from
NT$ 239,445 thousand dollars increased to NT$ 363,732 thousand dollars due to the
amount of customer margin increased and the interest rate of foreign currency raised
in 2018.
2. Except for the sound financial structure, the Company keeps close contact with
banking institutions for grasping the financial market situation.
B. Impacts of exchange rate variations to The Company's profit and loss, and responsive
measures in the future
The revenue of the Company is mainly from the commission revenues of futures
services which includes the commission revenues denominated in foreign currencies.
The Company recognizes them as income in accordance with its Customers' Margin
Policy. In 2018, changes in the exchange rate resulted in a net income of NT$22,252
thousand dollars.
C. Impacts of inflation to The Company's profit and loss, and responsive measures in the
future:
Inflation triggers changes in interest rates, exchange rates, unemployment rates and
other economic uncertainties, and therefore considered a material factor to the overall
economy and financial activities. It is a common consensus around the world that the
inflation rate in 2019 will higher than past few years which would contribute to overall
economy due to the high inflation rate would make enterprises to reinvest their earnings to
financial markets. Therefore, inflation induced by commodity prices will trigger producers'
needs to hedge against material prices and speculators' desires to exploit price spreads, and
thereby contributing trade volumes to the futures market. Being a globalized futures service
provider, The Company expects to gain from increased volatility in commodity prices.
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7.6.2 Policies on high-risk and highly leveraged investments, loans to third
parties, endorsements / guarantees, and trading of derivatives; describe the
main causes of any profits or losses incurred and future responsive measures:
The Company trades high-risk and high leveraged investments and derivatives only
within the scope and regulations permitted by the authority. As for loans to third parties, the
Company does not establish any regulations and also incurred above related affairs.

7.6.3 Future research and development plans and projected expenses:
The current configuration of develop department is around 10~20 research
professionals, and it expected to expand in the future. In the next years, the Company will
take 1%~2% of consolidated sales to continuously recruit related professionals. The
predicted research expense will be around NT$20~40 million dollars.
The company actively develop the domestic/foreign financial products that would relate to
futures and options with high-gross profit, high-adding value and overall solutions ability.
The future research plan is including overseas futures market analysis, trading strategy
development, and the risk management of derivative products, for constructing the
research integrated platform and cloud strategy platform.

7.6.4 The effect of major changes in policies and legal practices, whether
domestic or foreign, to the company’s financial and business performance,
and the responsive actions:
For domestic and foreign important changes in policies and legislation, each relevant
department of the company should perform an analysis and evaluation for those impacts to
each business items beforehand, and then adjust related operational strategies and
procedures to respond changes in relevant policies and legislations.

7.6.5 Effects of technological and industrial changes to the company's
financial and business performance, and the responsive actions:
The Securities and Futures market develop quickly and connect with the international
market, therefore, the Company is going to focus on two key points: recruit constantly the
financial professionals and develop Information Technology. For enhancing the global
transaction platform (smart trader) to provide speedy and safe investment environment and
maintaining the lead of innovation, the Company connects with social medium and
develops platform subscription economy for providing global financial information and
professional research suggestions which towards to member management and community
business. The Company’s IT department leads the group’s technological strategy
development. It has independent system research and development and customization
capabilities, and can assist in rapid business development and provide differentiated and
high value-added services in order to create leading core competitiveness. And also, the
team works towards to enhancing its capacities, creating leading core competitive
advantages in order to lay a solid foundation and to provide clients with safe, stable, and
speedy services.
The Company sets “Statement of Information Security Policy” that upholds the
information security concept of maintaining the Company's operating environment. It
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should provide comprehensive protection and prevention of the information which was
stored or transmitted by the Company and prevent some accidental loss such as: damage,
theft, leakage, tampering, abuse and infringement. The information security policy will be
revised and implemented on a regular basis to improve all operations continuously for the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of the information services system.
According to the letter from the Financial Supervisory Committee, the overall
implementation status of information security will be reported to the Board of Directors
within three months after the end of the fiscal year. The chief executive officer of
information security and Chairman, president and internal auditing supervisor will jointly
issue the statement of overall implementation status for information security. Moreover,
this statement will be disclosed to Market Observation Post System.
The Company sets information security personnel to conduct regular security
inspections on a daily, monthly and annual basis, including the protection for
denial-of-service attack (DDoS) and data leakage, system review for user authority, drills
for remote backup and evacuation, scan of system vulnerability, intrusion penetration tests,
communication security, personal security education, e-mail social engineering exercises
and regular inspection and evaluation of key information systems. The Company
strengthen the security protection according to Financial Information Sharing and Analysis
Center (FISAC) share the information. And internal auditor of the Company would
strengthen the integrity of the overall information security through regularly authorizing
the external auditing of ISO and BSI standards.

7.6.6 Impacts of changes in corporate image to the company's crisis
management, and the responsive measures:
For the resolution of the Company’s reputation risk due to corporate image changes,
the auditing and legal compliance department will provide professional consulting to
potential crisis. On top of which was a strong proprietary trading team that delivered
top-notch performance and profitability in the futures industry. The Company's
professional reputation image has long been recognized in the market. In the future, the
Company will take the “public interest” as the first priority, and provide the service to
public constantly.

7.6.7 The expected benefits from mergers and acquisitions, the potential risks
associated, and the responsive measures: None.
7.6.8 The expected benefits from plant expansion, the potential risks
associated, and the responsive measures: None.
7.6.9 Risks of concentrated purchases or sales, and responsive measures to
such risks:
The Company actively expand domestic/foreign broker service and continue
enhancing the integration between subsidies for risk diversification.

7.6.10 The risks and impacts of significant shareholding transfers by directors,
supervisors, or major shareholders with more than 10% ownership interest,
and the responsive measures to such risks:
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The Company’s directors, supervisors, or major shareholders with more than 10%
ownership interest shall not have any significant shareholding transferring since its
establishment, in addition, the directors, supervisors, or major shareholders reported the
changes in the shareholding in accordance with Securities Exchange Act. On a regular
basis. The largest shareholder is Capital Securities with shareholding for 56%, and there is
no significant transfer since the Company was founded, therefore, the shareholder’s equity
is stable relatively.

7.6.11The effects, risks and responsive measures associated with changes in
management:
On top of which was a strong proprietary trading team that delivered top-notch
performance and profitability in the futures industry. The Company's professional
reputation has long been recognized in the market. In the future, the Company will take the
“public interest” as the first priority, and make contributions to capital market.

7.6.12 Major litigation and non-contentious cases:

The major institutional shareholder of the Company is Capital Securities Co., which
has the major litigation cases by the end of 107.12.31 as following:

Event

Civil

Civil

Brief of Facts

Litigants

The Plaintiff claims that the Plaintiff: Securities
prospectus prepared by ABIT and Futures
Computer Corporation for the Investors Protection
2002 cash issue contained
Center
false information that misled Defendant: ABIT
investors and caused them to Computer
suffer losses. The Company, Corporation
being the underwriter of that Capital Securities
cash issue, was being held
Corp. and others
jointly responsible under
Article 32 of the Securities
and Exchange Act.
16 customers of Taiwan
Plaintiff: 16
International Securities
customers
Corp. including ｏ-Hua Lai including ｏ-Hua
accused Taiwan
Lai
International Securities Corp. (currently only 9
for illegal sale of
remain,
GVEC products that caused including ｏ-Rong
them US$1,930,000
Huang)
in losses (the amount claimed Defendant:
during appeal of the third
Capital Securities
instance has been reduced to Corp.
US$703,919), and held
Chun Jin Co., Ltd.
Taiwan International
Securities Corp. liable for
compensation. Given
the fact that Taiwan
International Securities
Corp. was dissolved after
being merged by the
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Current progress

Litigation
Start Date

The case is being
reviewed by Taiwan
Shilin District Court.

2006.11.23

Value of
Claim
(Unit: dollars)

2,003,697
(NTD)

According the judgement
of the first instance and
the second instance, The
Company did not liable
for compensation. It has
been confirmed that
the Company is not
liable to compensate
for the losses of 7
703,919
2010.03.02
customers including
(USD)
ｏ-Hua Lai.
9 other customers
including ｏ-Rong
Huang raised an appeal.
The Supreme
Court remand the
case to the High
Court. The High Court
judgments the

Company, the litigation has
since been assumed by the
Company.

The customerｏ-Lan Wu who
traded at Da-Shin branch of
Capital Securities Corp.
accused that the ex-salesｏ
-Lan Lu unauthorized trading
stocks forｏ-Neng Chen
Civil
during 2005, and caused loss.
Therefore, the prosecution
request has been submitted
thatｏ-Lan Lu, ｏ-Neng
Chen and Capital Securities
Corp. are liable for joint
indemnity.
Civil
The customer of stock
transfer agent :ｏ-Ming Chen
who held 57 first unsecured
convertible bonds of Sinon
Corp. (Code: 71721) and
would like to apply
transferring to common
stocks but rejected by Capital
Securities Corp. since the
transfer date has already
overdue. Therefore,ｏ-Ming
Chen submitted the
prosecution request that
Sinon Corp.and the Company
are liable for joint indemnity
for NTD 1,490,000.
Criminal The sales who worked at
shi-Song branch: ｏ-Ping
Chiang (discharged) forged
the documents of Capital
Securities Corp. to defraud
customers' property.

Plaintiff: ｏ-Lan
Wu
Defendant:
ｏ-Lan Lu, ｏ
-Neng Chen
Capital Securities
Corp.

Plaintiff: ｏ-Ming
Chen
Defendant:
Sinon Corp.
Capital Securities
Corp.

Plaintiff: Capital
Securities Corp.
Defendant:
ｏ-Ping Chiang
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Company and Chun Jin
Co., Ltd. shall
compensate 8
customers including
ｏ-Rong Huang for a
total of US$507,928.
Appeals were raised
by the Company,
Chun Jin Co., Ltd.
and ｏ-Hua Cheng.
The Supreme Court
remand the case to the
High Court again.
The case is being
reviewed by the High
Court.
The case is being
reviewed by Taipei
district court.

2017.7.21

2,192,404
(NTD)

2018.10.5

1,490,000
(NTD)

The conclusion of the
first judgment verdict
was Capital Securities
Corp. is not liable for the
compensation.

When the customer who
traded at shi-Song
branch:ｏ-Ping Yu ,
inspected the transaction
documents, Capital
Securities Corp.
discovered thatｏ-Ping 2018.12.18
Chiang forged the
inexistent documents of
Principal-Guaranteed
Notes, the victims
includingｏ-Ping Yu
were total 15 customers.

-

7.6.13 Risk management framework and responsibilities
Article 1: Establishment Basis
This institution of risk management is based on the “Principles of Futures
Commission Merchant’s Risk Management Practices” and the “Futures Commission
Merchant’s Self Checklist for the Establishment of Risk Management Mechanism”.
Article 2: Purpose
To effectively control risks, a management procedure is built up from top to bottom
that includes the Board of Directors, managers of all departments and the employees
to participate. Qualitative and quantitative approaches are taken to recognize,
evaluate, monitor and respond to various potential risks. As a result, the company
may make reasonable asset allocation and maximize returns for shareholders within
a bearable risk range.
Article 3: Risk Management Organization Structure
Section
Responsibilities
I. Chairman
1. Make policies and establish qualitative and quantitative
(Board of Directors)
criteria of risk control. Report timely to the Board of
Directors the implementation of risk management and
advice necessary measures.
2. Assess operational strategies and make decisions.
3. Approve operational application and authorize trading.
4. Ensure the effectiveness of risk management and
undertake the ultimate responsibility of risk management.
II. General Manager

1. Report to the Board of Directors the risk evaluation of
positions, trading performance and execution percentage of
the target.
2. Report to the Board of Directors immediately if any
abnormal situation happens (e.g. positions exceeding total
stop-loss limits), and demand the subordinates to take
necessary approaches.

III. Risk Management
Department

1. Assist in risk management system making.
2. Assist departments set up risk limits and assignment
methods.
3. Ensure the execution of the risk management system
determined by the Board of Directors.
4. Present timely and completely risk management related
reports to the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and General
Manager.
5. Be familiarized with the content of each trade before it
takes place and monitor the positions of completed trade.
6. Upgrade risk assessment capabilities over the
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quantifiable financial products.
7. Be familiarized with the risk limits of each business
department and how they are used.
8. Assess the company’s risk exposure and risk
concentration.
9. Develop and apply stress-testing and back-testing
methods.
10. Inspect the variation between the actual and forecasted
P & L of the portfolio.
11. Review product pricing models and valuation system
used by business departments.
12. Monitor other risk control associated issues.
IV.
Business Department
(subsidiary)

middle-level directors’ function (risk control personnel)
1. Ensure the delivery of risk management information in a
timely and correct manner.
2. Ensure effective enforcement of risk limits associated
regulations by the business department (subsidiary).
3. Supervise risk exposure and report on the over limit
situation, including approaches taken by the business
department (subsidiary).
4. Ensure effective internal control in the business
department (subsidiary) to meet regulations and risk
management system.
Business department manager(Responsible person of the
subsidiary)
1. Undertake all risk management associated issues of the
business department (subsidiary). Supervise operational
risk and take necessary approaches.
2. Supervise the delivery of risk management information.

V.
Audit Department

1. Inspect regularly the appropriateness of the internal
control of product trading in business departments.
2. Oversee the implementation of risk management system
and record in auditor’s report. Follow up on faults and
abnormal issues and make notes of improvements.
3. Oversee the compliance of rules and regulations.

VI.
Finance Department

1. Process accounts and transfer capital according to
authorized contracts and trade documents.
2. Make a memorandum for off-balance sheet trade
contract.
3. Acquire price information from quotation system of
trading department to re-valuate positions.
4. Make timely entry of completed transaction and
recognize profit and loss.
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5. Make promulgations in accordance with the competent
authorities.
VII. Clearing and
Settlement Department

1. Inquire for client’s credits at account opening before
trade.
2. Safeguard opening account contracts and trade contracts.
3. Make product clearing and settlement.
4. Execute margin call and counter transaction under
insufficient margin.
5. Report to the competent authorities on trade contracts.
6. Confirm trade contents.
7. Monitor special clients’ credit after transaction.

VIII.
Compliance and Legal
Division

1. Consult with legal professionals of related management
policies.
2. Review the obligatory relationship,
appropriateness
and legal documents of each trade contract before signing.
3. Scrutinize each application that requires the official
signatures.
4. Supervises legal and compliance affairs.
5. Supervises business units in assessing impact of new
regulations on the company’s businesses.
6. Before the launch of any new product, service or
business segment, the compliance officer is required to
issue a signed opinion regarding compliance with laws
and internal policies.

Article 4: Risk Management Flow
The risk management flow includes risk recognition, risk measurement, risk
supervision, risk report and its responding approaches.
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Risk Management Flowchart
Risk Management Policy

Communication and

Authorized Limit

Policy Making

Risk Load

Risk Identification

Risk Measurement

Value at Risk Calculation

Market Risk

*VaR
*Credit VaR

Risk Monitoring

Risk Limit under

Risk Report

Regular/ Random
Reports

Surveillance

Credit Risk

Operational Risk

P & L Analysis
*Market Valuation
*Theoretical Price
Valuation

Liquidity Risk

Legal
Risks

and

Other

Overload
Management

Disclosure

of

Key Issues
All Risks under
Surveillance

Performance

Stress Test

Evaluation

Risk Management
after

Meetings

Adjustment

A.

Risk Recognition
Due to the characteristics of futures industry, the company may encounter mainly
market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk and other risks.
Market risk is resulted from unstable market prices during some period of time.
For example, interest rate, exchange rate, equity securities and product price change
may cause losses on and off balance sheet.
Credit risk may happen when trading counterpart (including the issuer, contract
counterpart or debtor) fails to perform the agreement, which will provoke risk in
financial losses to our issuer.
Liquidity risk happens when the company is unable to liquidize assets or acquire
enough capital to fulfill responsibilities at due time (also called “capital liquidity
risk”). Also, when market is under scale or disordered, the risk (called “market
liquidity risk”) exists when handling positions or offsetting positions with massively
varying market prices.
Operational risk occurs either when internal personnel or system operates
improperly or when external events cause direct or indirect losses.
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Legal risk means the potential loss as a result of failure to comply with relevant
laws and regulations, and a voidance of the contract caused by illegality of the
contract, overstepping powers, neglect of clauses or incompletion of standards.
Other risks include strategy risk and reputation risk.
B.

Risk Measurement
1. Quantitative Measurement on Market Risk
Statistic-based Measurement: the Value at Risk (VaR) of linear products (stocks) is
measured by the Variance Co-Variance (Risk Metrics Approach--EWMA), which
calculates the maximal probable risk of portfolio under a certain confidence level
for the next business day. The Value at Risk of non-linear products (options) is
measured by the Delta-Gamma Approximations (the “Greeks”). Following the risks
of trade contracts offset, the measurement vehicle calculates the maximal probable
risk of portfolio under a certain confidence level for the next business day. To test
the accuracy, Backtesting approach is taken to try out the violations within one year
under pre-calculated VaR using the actual valuated profit and loss of inventory
positions for the previous day (P & L for T-1 day).
Sensitivity analysis measures the sensitivity of the positions to individual risk
factors (such as interest rate, exchange rate). The sensitivity analysis on exchange
rate variation includes evaluation and analysis on the proprietary overseas capital
and service fee revenue from foreign futures products.
Stress test emulates and measures the impacts on portfolio value at unusual market
change, from which responding actions can be made. The portfolio stress test at
current stage aims at the weighted index or targeted stock price within ±15%
change.
Other risk control issues for proprietary trading position:
(1) Loss limit control: based on each trader’s trading strategy and trading amount,
establish monthly, quarterly and annual loss limits, and departmental monthly,
quarterly and annual loss limits.
(2) Trading margin control: mandate position limits during trading session and
remaining position limits.
(3) Remaining position limits and open-delta position control: calculate the
open-delta value limit of the remaining positions of each individual trader and
as a whole.
(4) Margins ratio control for open interest of domestic and foreign futures trades
(The amount of the original margin required for the futures contract, option
contract and futures option contract of which the underlying asset are domestic
securities, securities portfolio or stock price index, adding the premium paid by
option contract, deducting the premium received from option contract) - the
amount that is in the domestic futures market shall be greater than 200 percent of
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the amount that is in overseas futures markets.
(5) Options trading price inspection: use options trade inquiry to check if the
implied volatility rates between positions offset in each transaction and daily
settlement price are normal.
2. Measurement on Credit Risk
Summarize information on expected credit loss (credit risk exposure amount, client
default rate and return rate) and unexpected credit loss, and quantify the credit VaR.
Approaches taken to manage credit risk:
(1) Credit inquiry and assessment before trade: inquire client’s credit and ascertain
the legality before transaction.
(2) Credit rating management: treat clients with special credit particularly.
(3) Credit supervision after transaction: regularly inspect client’s profit and loss of
positions. Evaluate and monitor credit enhancement (including collaterals) on a
regular basis.
(4) Other effective risk reduction measures: collaterals, guarantee, credit risk netting
and offset agreement.
3. Liquidity Risk Measurement
Market Liquidity Risk Management:
To avoid losses caused by market liquidity risk, the company considered
concentration and market trading volume of its positions held by proprietary trade
and the funds not required for business operation, so as to proceed with the
quantitative management on liquidity risk. In addition, the company established
position limits of the securities issued by any domestic or foreign company to
effectively control market liquidity risk.
Capital Liquidity Risk Management:
The Finance Department is an independent from others in transfer of financial
resources. To control capital liquidity risk and to consider capital needs of various
products for domestic and foreign markets, the Finance Department composes daily
reports, such as the “Margin Withdrawal/Deposit List”, “Securities Transaction
Applications”, “Margin and Premium Accounts of Futures Clients”, etc. After
reviewed and approved, these reports will be implemented and filed.
4. Measurement on Operational Risk
Operational risk includes both direct and indirect losses caused by internal
personnel, operational process, information system and external events. It is as
important as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Any operational risk related
data (including occurring time, type of events, documentation and the scale of
losses) shall be collected and consolidated in order to make appropriate quantitative
measurement.
As the internal control system is established, the Audit Department conducted a
routine or special inspection according to the operational procedures and critical

- 207 -

control points as required by its internal control systems. This suitable monitoring
and controlling mechanism is implemented against operational risks occurring in
the course of business and trading process.
5. As for unquantifiable risks such as legal risk, strategy risk and reputation risk,
there should be tactics to tackle risks and to make qualitative assessment.
C.

Risk Supervision
To monitor how risk limits are used and if any over limit occurs so that an
immediate response is taken and further evaluation is made, it is the responsibilities
of the Risk Management Department, managers from business departments and
subsidiaries and middle-level directors (risk control staff) to supervise and control
the risks together.
Risk Management Department, based on the annual operational plan and risk
management regulations, shall monitor the risk limits for the company and for each
department, and for market risk, credit risk and capital liquidity risk of each product.
The exceeding part shall be reported to Audit Department and immediate
improvement is required from the related department (or subsidiary). Risk
Management Department shall be responsible for calculating how many times the
proprietary departments exceed limits. The rest departments shall be calculated by
Audit Department and the records shall be evaluated as the KPI performance for the
month.

D.

Risk Report
Business Department manager (or subsidiary responsible person) shall ensure the
correctness and effectiveness of transaction report. All transactions should be
recorded and reported in accordance with regulations of the company and the
authorities.

Our risk report mechanism includes:
1. “Risk Management Log” generated daily by Risk Management Department,
describing positions of each product exposed to market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk, and comparing them with the regulated limits. The report is
presented to Chairman, General Manager, and related department heads.
2. General Manager’s weekly meeting with the proprietary trade to review equity
positions and P & L in each individual case.
3. A bi-weekly meeting participated by all managers and a monthly operational
meeting, in which all departments make business reports and examine abnormal
situations.
E. Risk Response Approaches
After assessing and summarizing risks, risk response approaches taken include:
1.
Risk avoidance: taking measures to avoid risks.
2.
Risk reduction: taking measures to reduce the impact and (or) the possibility of
the occurrence.
3.
Risk Diversification: transferring part or all of risks to others.
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4.
5.

Risk undertaking: undertake the impact and the possibility of occurrence by
not taking any measures.
For risks with low occurring rate but possible threats to company’s existence,
they shall be treated with prudence. The goal of risk management is to
maximize returns for shareholders within a bearable risk range.

Article 5: Risk-based Performance Management
Currently, commonly used RAPM indicators include RAROC, SVA, Sharpe Ratio,
etc.
RAPM = Profit / Economic Capital
Economic Capital is the cash reserve for the company’s sustainable operation.
The risk-adjusted performance of each department is measured currently by the
concept of RAROC considering the risks exposed to economic capital (risk capital)
and the need to quantify risks. The performance returns shall subtract the cost of the
capital, transfer costs between internal departments and risk associated reserves
such as a proportional reserve for possible losses in the proprietary trade. A
proportional reserve from brokerage fee revenue is appropriated for default to reveal
the actual management performance of each business department and to pursue the
maximal profit within a bearable risk scope.
The goal of risk-adjusted performance management is to evaluate each department’s
performance in a consistent way by taking risk types into account, and to allocate
capital accordingly.
Also, a daily report on the Adjusted Net Capital (ANC) ratio is filed to the
competent authority.
ANC ratio = ANC / total margin required for open positions
Article 6: Information System of Risk Management
We have signed an information service agreement with the parent company and
joined their Information Safety Committee. The risk management information
system, set up by the Information Department, involves 3 major services in
application, data and technology providing.
Application framework：The information system may apply to financial products
like securities, futures and options. Its function is to manage market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and part of operational risk, capital allocation, asset and liability, and
performance evaluation.
The risk control information system is developed and maintained by a specialized
in-house team under the Information Department of the parent company. A new
program is developed at the request of the needing department, and is completed
and utilized in business after users’ test and confirmation of its functions. The
Information Department meets with business departments on a regular basis to
discuss about the utilization of the information system.
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Data framework ： The evaluation models used in the risk management
information system and in each business department are the same. The risk
management office writes a new program with financial engineering software which
will be consolidated into the risk control information system by the Information
Department. The options evaluation models are mainly Black-Scholes, Binomial
and Monte Carlo Evaluation.
Verifying risk information sources and Confirmation Procedure:
1. User must key in their ID first. Its entry shall be allowed when assessed and
approved by risk control staff and/or associated manager.
2. Information transmitted into transaction system comes into force when data
verified.
3. The system compares information characteristics and the source automatically.
Provided any abnormality, the system shall notify the information staff.
Inquiring risk management information:
The system determines applicable programs and permitted information range
according to user’s business field and authorization. The applicable functions
define how much information can be inquired.
Technology framework: The risk management information system only accepts
Intranet users’ entry and blocks all external connection by firewalls to barricade
hackers and other Internet connection. CA’s Brightstor software backs up all
programs and information, and TNG monitors backup execution. Provided that any
abnormal situation happens, the system shall notify the information staff by sending
E-mail and messages.
Retrieval procedures involve file retrieval and databank retrieval. Standardized
procedure to handle damaged execution files: cease network service, back up the
file in network server, and resume network service. Microsoft SQL Server is used
as backup facility for our risk management information system. In the case of
system abnormality caused by damaged databank, standardized procedure includes
discontinuing the databank function, backing up the damaged databank, retrieving
backup data of previous day to databank server, and resuming databank service. A
different location backup support system is established in Taoyuan site.
Article 7: Disclosure of Risk Information
Qualitative and quantitative risk-related information shall be disclosed in the annual
report and on company website in compliance with authority’s stipulation.
Article 8: The system shall take effect after the approval of the Board of Directors and so
shall the amendment.

7.7 Other material issues: None.
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- 211 1998.12.09
2014.12.29
2008.08.20

2016.10.14

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

Capital International Technology Corp.

Capital True Partner Technology
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

Capital Futures Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Company Name

Date of
Establishment

100%

8.1.2 Profile of Affiliated Companies

Capital Futures Corp.

97.27%

100%

51%

Paid-up capital

Main business activities
or products

Capital Futures Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Capital True Partner Co., Ltd.

P.R.China

Unit 3204-07, 32F., Cosco Tower, Grand
Securities Transaction
HKD 220,000,000
Millennium Plaza, 183, Queen’s Road
Futures Contract Transaction
Center, Hong Kong
32F., No.97, Sec.2, Dunhua S. Rd, Da’an
Management consulting,
NTD50,000,000
Dist., Taipei City 10601, Taiwan, R.O.C.
Information software service
Room 408-410, 4F., Poly Center Tower C,
Management consulting,
No.1, Jinxiu Road, Wuhou District Chengdu,
CNY 1,000,000
Information software service
610041, P.R.China
6S New Shanghai International Tower,
Management consulting,
No.360
Pudong
Road(S),
Shanghai,
CNY 4,000,000 Information software service

Address

Capital International Technology Corp.

CSC Futures (HK) Ltd.

8.1 Information of affiliated companies
8.1.1 2018 Organizational chart of affiliates

VIII. Special Remarks
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Capital Futures
Technology
(Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.

Capital True
Partner Technology
(Chengdu) Co.,
Ltd.

Capital
International
Technology Corp.

CSC Futures (HK)
Ltd.

Company Name

Legal Person
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Legal Person
Chairman
Director
Director
Supervisor
President
Legal Person
Legal Person
Chairman
Director
Director
Director
Supervisor
Supervisor
President
Legal Person
Chairman
Director
Director

Title
Capital Futures Corp.
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Sun, Tien-Shan
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Wang, Jiunn-Chih
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Chen, Min-Hsi
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Fang, Chih-Hung
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Kao, Cheng-Yung
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Liang, Cheng-Chung
Capital Futures Corp.
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Sun, Tien-Shan
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Lee, Wen-Chu
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Chen, Wen-Tsay
Capital Futures Corp., representative：Lin, Li-Juan
Lee, Wen-Chu
Capital International Technology Corp.
True Partner China Holding Limited
Capital International Technology Corp. representative：Sun, Tien-Shan
Capital International Technology Corp. representative：Lee, Wen-Chu
True Partner China Holding Limited representative Ralph Paul Johan VANPUT
True Partner China Holding Limited representative：Tobias Benjamin Hekster
Capital International Technology Corp. representative：Chen, Wen-Tsay
True Partner China Holding Limited representative：Remco Janssen
Teng,I
Capital International Technology Corp.
Capital International Technology Corp. representative：Sun, Tien-Shan
Capital International Technology Corp. representative：Mao, Chen-Hua
Capital International Technology Corp. representative：Lee, Wen-Chu

Name or name of representative

8.1.4 Directors, Supervisors, and President of Affiliated Companies

Unit: Shares; % Date: March 31st, 2017
Shares held
Shareholding
Shares
percentage
214,000,000
97.27%
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
5,000,000
100.00%
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
510,000
51%
490,000
49%
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
4,000,000
100%
0
0
0
0
0
0

8.1.3 Information on shareholders presumed to have a controlling and dependent relationship: None
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Supervisor
President

Title
Capital International Technology Corp. representative：Chen, Wen-Tsay
Hung, Ming-Nan

Name or name of representative

Ltd.

18,863

29,878

6,346

5,011,003

862,631

5,013

46,373

50,000

Capital

7,281

4,501

3,975,254

90

22,597

1,845

1,035,749

46,283

331

20,524

551,086

1,400

-4,770

2,480

17,935

-3,106

Total
Operating Operating
Net Worth
Liabilities
Revenue
Profit

2,374

2,506

57,246

552

Current period
profit/loss
(after-tax)

NA

NA

0.26

0.11

EPS($)
(After-tax)

8.5 Occurrences of events defined under Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 2, Article 36 of the Securities and Exchange Act in the
latest year up till the publishing date of this annual report that significantly impacted shareholders’ equity or security
prices：None.

8.4 Other supplementary information: None.

8.3 Holding or disposal of the Company's shares by subsidiaries in the last financial year, up till the publication date of this
annual report: None

8.2 Private placement of securities in the last year up till the publication date of this annual report: None

8.1.6 The affiliation report: Please refer to page 215~217 of this annual report.

Shares held
Shareholding
Shares
percentage
0
0
0
0

Unit: NT$ thousands; Date: Dec. 31st, 2018

Note：The exchange rate (2018.12.31)： Assets and liabilities：TWD/HKD=3.891/1，TWD/CNY= 4.447/1; Profit and loss: TWD/HKD＝3.864/1, TWD/CNY=4.519/1

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Capital Futures Technology

(Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

Capital True Partner Technology

CSC Futures (HK)

Corp.

Capital International Technology

Company Name

Total
Assets

8.1.5 Operational Overview of Affiliated companies

Company Name

Declaration
The Company’s 2018 Affiliation Report (for the period from January 1 to December 31,
2018) has been prepared in accordance with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises”. No material discrepancies were found between the information disclosed in the
above report and the notes to financial statements for the corresponding period.

Declared by:

Company： Capital Futures Corp.

Chairman： Sun, Tien-Shan

Date

: March 27, 2019
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2018 Affiliation Report
I. Group organization chart and shareholding structure
Date：Mar. 31st, 2019

Capital Securities Corp.
97.27%

56.21%

Capital Futures Corp.
100%

Capital Investment
Management Corp.

100%

CSC Futures (HK)
Ltd.

100%

Capital International
Technology Corp.

Capital Futures
Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Capital True Partner
Technology Co., Ltd.
51%

100%

Capital Insurance
Advisory Corp.

100%

Capital Insurance
Agency Corp.

100%

CSC Venture Capital
Corp.

100%

CSC International
Holdings Ltd.

100%

CSC Securities (HK)
Ltd.

100%

CSC International
Holdings Ltd. Shanghai
Rep. Office

99.92%
Taiwan International
Securities Investment
Consulting Corp.
100%

Taiwan International
Securities (B.V.I.) Corp.

100%

TIS Securities (HK)
Limited
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100%

100%

Capital Securities
Nominee Ltd.

Taiwan International
Capital (HK) Ltd.
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Exercises significant
influence

Capital Securities Corp.

99,183

Number of shares held
(shares)

Transactions with financing: Not applicable.

56.21﹪

Shareholding
percentage
(%)

－

Shares Pledged

Location

B1, B2&32F.,
No.97, Sec.2,
Tunnan Dunhua S. Rd.,
Tower Da’an Dist., Taipei
City 10601, Taiwan,
R.O.C.

property

Name of

Note 1: Refundable deposits is NT$ 3,819 thousand dollars.

Lessee

Lessee)

(Lease/

Type

106.8.1~
109.7.31

Period

Operating
leasehold

Leasing

Refer to current
market standards

Rent

Monthly

terms

Payment

Name

No differentiation

other normal rent

16,455
(Note 1)

Normal

situation

2018 rent payment

Current

None

remarks

Other

NT$ thousand

Capital Securities Corp.
Representative: Sun, Tien-Shan
Representative: Wang, Jiunn-Chih
Representative: Liu, Ching–Tsun

Compare with

Chairman
Director
Director

Title

Unit: shares; %

Directors, Supervisors or Managers Appointed by the
Controlling Company

V.I. Transaction with asset lease: Renting the office and parking space from Capital Securities Co.

V.

IV. Transactions with property: Not applicable.

III. Transactions with trading of inventory: Not applicable.

Means of Control

The Name of Controlling
Company

Shares Held and Pledged by the Controlling Company

II. Relationship between the controlling and the controlled company

VII. Disclosure of major transactions:
1. The Company earned the brokerage commission revenue NT$ 21,562 thousand
dollars and management revenue NT$ 1,117 thousand dollars from Capital
Securities Co. in 2018, besides, the amount to its futures trader’s equity was
NT$1,628,417 thousand dollars and the interest expense of deposits received from
futures transactions was NT$436 thousand dollars on Dec. 31st, 2018.
2. The payment situation to Capital Securities Co. on Dec. 31st, 2018: Account
receivable is NT$228 thousand dollars, account payable is NT$10,922 thousand
dollars, other account receivable is NT$19,981 thousand dollars and other account
payable is NT$444 thousand dollars.
3. The Company appointed Capital Securities Co. to Futures Introducing Broker, the
commission payment was NT$ 166,348 thousand dollars in 2018.
4. The Company rented office space from Capital Securities Co., payment of rent
was NT$ 16,455 thousand dollars, and refundable deposits was NT $ 3,819
thousand dollars in 2018.
5. The Company signed the “Computer information system management service
contract” with Capital Securities Co. for the computer information system
management services. The service expense in 2018 was NT$ 41,637 thousand
dollars.
6. The Company was appointed by Capital Securities Co. to Securities Introducing
Broker, the commission revenue was NT$ 4,721 thousand dollars in 2018.
7. The Company paid NT$ 406 thousand dollars for agent services of stock affairs to
Capital Securities Co. in 2018.
8. The Company paid NT$ 300 thousand dollars for human resource and legal
service expense to Capital Securities Co. in 2018.
9. The Company paid NT$ 436 thousand dollars for securities brokerage fee to
Capital Securities Co. in 2018.
10. The Company earned the interest revenue NT$321 thousand dollars from the
Reverse repurchase agreement bonds which traded through Capital Securities Co.
as of Dec. 31st, 2018. The revenue of trading Reverse repurchase agreement bonds
was NT$198,000 thousand dollars, the expiration date is Jan 2nd, 2019~ Jan 14th,
2019, and contract interest rate is 0.45% to 0.48%.
VIII. Guarantees and endorsements: None.
IX. Disclosure of other financial or business items with material impact: None.
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Capital Futures Corp.
Chairman Sun, Tien-Shan

